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SINO-LIFE GROUP LIMITED
OB R AR A A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 8296)

ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for
the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

This announcement, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-Life Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or in this announcement misleading.



The Board is pleased to present the audited annual consolidated financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”). This announcement, which
contains the full text of the annual report of the Company for the Year (the “2022 Annual
Report™), complies with the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules in relation to
information of the preliminary announcement of annual results. Printed version of the 2022
Annual Report will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company and made available for
viewing on the websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and of the Company at
www.sinolifegroup.com on the date of this announcement.

By Order of the Board
Sino-Life Group Limited
XU Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

As at the date hereof, the Board comprises Mr. XU Jianchun, Mr. LIU Tien-Tsai and Dr. XU
Qiang being executive Directors; and Mr. CHAI Chung Wai, Dr. YANG Jingjing and Mr. SUN Fei
being independent non-executive Directors.

This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this announcement is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Listed Company Informations” page of the Stock
Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk for 7 days from the date of its posting. This
announcement will also be posted on the Company’s website at http.//www.sinolifegroup.com.



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this report misleading.
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Corporate information of the Company as at the date of this

report is as follows:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)
Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Dr. Yang Jingjing (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chu Kin Ming CPA, FCCA, ACG, ACMA
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
Mr. Chu Kin Ming CPA, FCCA, ACG, ACMA

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman)

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Dr. Yang Jingjing (Appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Sun Fei

Dr. Yang Jingjing (Appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Yang Jingjing (Chairman) (Appointed on 4 March 2022)

Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei
Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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Corporate Information
/NGNS
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Bank SinoPac

First Commercial Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre
Oleander Way
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P.O. Box 32052

Grand Cayman KY1-1208

Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE IN HONG KONG

18/F, Ovest

77 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
OFFICES

Principal share registrar and transfer office
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
8296

WEBSITE

www.sinolifegroup.com
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Chairman’s Statement

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year"”), under
the pressure of multiple factors, the world economy has
experienced a relatively obvious stagflation. China’s economy
faced a series of challenges such as the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Russian-Ukrainian conflict, the adjustment of the real
estate market, the significant interest rate hike by the Federal
Reserve, and geopolitical rivalry, which led to an increase in
the complexity, severity and uncertainty of the development
environment. The Chinese government insisted on seeking
progress while maintaining stability, strengthened the
adjustment of macro policies and made early efforts in various
policies to stabilize the economy, maintain stable development
of overall economic and social situation, and promote high-
quality and sustainable economic development. In 2022,
China's Gross Domestics Product (“GDP") reached Renminbi
("RMB") 121.02 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of
3.0% at constant prices.

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”), and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) have formed a business pattern
focusing on traditional funeral services and emerging
biotechnology. At present, the traditional funeral services
business accounts for a large proportion of the Group's
business and the revenue of the Group is mainly derived
from the PRC. The death rate has increased to a certain
extent in the short term after the rescission of the COVID-19
control measures in the PRC, thus the operating results for
the Year have increased steadily. The revenue for the Year
was approximately RMB77,969,000, as compared with
RMB72,864,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Prior Year"), representing a year-on-year increase of 7.0%.

Due to the special business nature of the funeral services,
the funeral services business of the Group was less affected
by the macro-economy, and the overall operation remained
stable. During the Year, revenue from the PRC and Taiwan
market were approximately RMB74,468,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB69,561,000) and RMB1,531,000 (The Prior Year:
RMB1,450,000), representing a year-on-year increase of 7.1%
and 5.6% respectively. The funeral arrangement and related
consultancy services in Hong Kong obtained rapid development
and achieved a revenue of approximately RMB1,278,000 (The
Prior Year: RMB892,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 43.3%.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEME

Biotechnology is the Group’s long-term focus for its business
development. With the gradual elimination of the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the advanced biotechnical
equipment distributed by the Group have been gradually
delivered and installed during the Year. In order to further
promote the rapid development of the biotechnology business,
the Group established a specialized and comprehensive
investment platform in December 2021, mainly focusing on
the biotechnology industry and emerging industries with
development prospects for equity and securities investment,
including but not limited to, biomedicine, medical healthcare,
life science instruments etc., as well as those emerging
industries which could create synergy effect.

Looking ahead, the world is undergoing major changes unseen
in a century. Geopolitical risks are intensifying. China is also
facing the triple pressure of “shrinking demand, supply shock
and expected weakening”, and the uncertainty of economic
development is increasing. However, China’s strategic goal
of continuously deepening innovation-driven development,
supporting the rapid development of emerging industries
and promoting high-quality economic development remain
unchanged. Therefore, the Group will continue to adhere to
diversified development. While consolidating the traditional
funeral services business, the Group will actively seize the
strategic opportunities arising from the booming development
of the biotechnology industry, allocate more resources to
support the development of the Group’s biotechnology
business, and will actively seek suitable investment targets and
opportunities from time to time to diversify income sources and
promote business development.

Finally, | would again like to acknowledge and thank the
health and emergency personnel who have worked so hard
to ensure the safety of the nation. | would also like to thank
the Group’s entire management and staff for their efforts and
contributions. | would also like to take this opportunity to
express heartfelt thanks to the Company's shareholders and
business partners for their longtime support and trust.

Chairman
Xu Jianchun

31 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B 2 [Z &7

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), despite
coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") pandemic in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") resurged in the second quarter
and in the fourth quarter, the revenue from the operation of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) in the PRC and Taiwan remained
relatively steady as compared with the corresponding year in
2021 (the “Prior Year”), while performance in Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, the PRC (“Hong Kong")
and Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) recorded an
outstanding improvement during the Year.

The Group has formed a business pattern focusing on
traditional funeral services and emerging biotechnology. While
the traditional funeral services business currently accounts for
a large proportion of the Group's business and the revenue
of the Group is mainly derived from the PRC market, the
biotechnology is the Group's long-term strategic focus for its
business expansion.

In order to further promote the rapid development of its
biotechnology business, the Group established a specialized
and comprehensive investment platform in December 2021,
mainly focusing on investment in the development direction
of the biotechnology industry, including but not limited to,
biomedicine, medical healthcare, life science instruments etc.,
as well as those emerging industries which could create synergy
effect.

During the Year and the Prior Year, the amount and percentage
of the revenue derived from respective geographical segments
were as follow:
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Hong Kong BB 1,278 1.6 892 1.2
Vietnam B 692 0.9 228 0.3
77,969 100.0 72,864 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E & W Ao

The PRC
Business in the PRC continues to be the major source of
income of the operations of the Group during the Year.

Despite of the resurgence of the COVID-19 in the second
quarter and in the fourth quarter of the Year, the impact
of COVID-19 was less severe than expected as less control
measures were adopted in Chongging as compared to those
of the Prior Year. The Group's revenue that was derived from
the PRC market recorded on year-on-year increase of 5.9% to
approximately RMB74,468,000 to the Group for the Year from
approximately RMB70,294,000 of the Prior Year.

In the PRC, the Group is principally engaged in provision of
funeral, cremation and cemetery services in funeral parlours
and funeral service centres under the Group’s management in
Chongqging. The Group also carried out the advisory service
on stem cells and immunocytes under an agency agreement in
Guangzhou city, Guangdong province.

Benefited from the recovery of the impact of COVID-19
outbreak, the performance of the Group's funeral services in
the PRC continued to bounce back from COVID-19 outbreak
impact during the Year. The provision of funeral, cremation
and cemetery services business contributed approximately
RMB74,468,000 (The Prior Period: RMB69,561,000) during the
Year, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.1% as compare
d to the Prior Year.

On the other hand, there had been sanitary restrictions in
Guangzhou due to another round of spread of Omicron of
COVID-19 pandemic in the second quarter and in the fourth
quarter of the Year, the Group's advisory service on stem
cells and immunocytes was unavoidably penalized and the
service of this business segment was forced to temporarily
suspend during the Year. During the Prior Year, the Group's
immunocytes business recorded RMB733,000 of revenue in the
PRC.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B

Taiwan and Hong Kong

In Taiwan and Hong Kong, the Group is principally engaged in
the sales of funeral services deeds, which was accounted for
by the Group as contract liabilities, and provision of funeral
arrangement services to the deed holders and non-funeral
services deed holders, which are accounted for by the Group
as revenue. The Group also carries out sales of biotechnical
machineries and other electronics products in Hong Kong
during the Year.

Despite of the outbreak of Omicron of the COVID-19
pandemic, the impact of COVID-19 pandemic was less severe
than expected and less control measures were adopted in
Taiwan compared with those of the Prior Year. Revenue from
the Taiwan market recorded a year-on-year increase of 5.6% to
approximately RMB 1,531,000 during the Year.

On the other hand, despite of the continuing sanitary
restrictions in Hong Kong, the business in Hong Kong strongly
bounced back during the Year, and recorded revenue of
approximately RMB1,278,000 for the Year (The Prior Year:
RMB892,000), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 43.3% from the Prior Year. During the Year and
the Prior Year, revenue in Hong Kong was solely derived from
the funeral arrangement and related consultancy services. No
revenue was recognized for sales of biotechnical machineries
and other electronics products business in Hong Kong
during the Year and the Prior Year since such sales have not
yet fulfilled the revenue recognition criteria due to delayed
installation as the result of the travel restriction in the PRC. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group also recorded RMB6,731,000
unearned revenue in connection to its sales of biotechnical
machineries and other electronics products in Hong Kong.

Vietnam

The Group's revenue from the sales of burial plots in
Vietnam increased by approximately 2 folds to approximately
RMB692,000 for the Year (The Prior Year: RMB228,000). The
increase was mainly resulted from the resumption of Group’s
operation during the Year while temporary lockdown was
implemented by the local government in Vietnam in the Prior
Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E & W Ao

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Bt %5 B BR

Revenue W =
2022 2021
k- ot —T--F
Segment Segment
Segment operating Segment operating
operating profit/(loss) operating profit/(loss)
Revenue profit/(loss) margin Revenue profit/(loss) margin
HEEE HpEE HEbEe AEEE
& R (BR) @ (B = Was R/ (BB) &R/ (BE)%
RMB'000 RMB’000 % RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTTR ARBTT Bl ARETTT ARETT ARl
Funeral services BERE 77,969 16,697 21.4% 72,131 3,071 4.3%
Stem cells and immunocytes and BAAR R AR N/A
other business REMEH - (301) TER 733 (520) (70.9)%
71,969 16,39 21.0% 72,864 2,551 35%
The Group generated its revenue from its: AEEREEAEE:

(i) funeral services, which manly involve provision of
funeral related service, including arrangement services
and related consultancy services, provision of funeral
and cremation services and sale of burial plots and
tombstones;

(i)  provision of advisory service on stem cells and
immunocytes; and

(iii)  sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products.

For the Year, the Group's revenue was approximately
RMB77,969,000 (The Prior Year: RMB72,864,000), representing
an increase of approximately 7.0% as compared with the Prior
Year. The increase was mainly contributed by the provision of
funeral, cremation and cemetery services business of the Group
in Chongging, the PRC since the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic was less severe than expected as less control
measures were adopted in Chongging compared with the Prior
Year.
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Cost of sales

For the Group's funeral services, the cost of sales primarily
consists of costs directly attributable to the provision of its
services, which mainly include:

(i) direct labour and staff cost for the funeral services
provided by individuals during the funeral ceremony held
in a funeral parlour or a funeral service centre managed
by the Group;

(i) subcontracting charges for services provided by the
subcontractors in Taiwan;

(iii)  commission expenses from the recognition of commission
paid to sales agents for funeral services deeds at the
point when the services of the funeral services deeds are
provided;

(iv)  the management fee and operating lease charges for hire
of funeral parlours and funeral service centres; and

(v)  materials used for funeral ceremonies and cremation
services such as fresh flowers, fuel for the cremation
furnace and cost of the goods sold in the funeral
parlour and funeral service centres under the Group’s
management in the PRC.

On the other hand, the cost sales of the Group’s business in
provision of advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes
and sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products businesses primarily consist of the costs of provision of
advisory services on stem cells and immunocytes and the costs
of the biotechnical machineries and other electronic products.

Cost of sales for the Year was approximately RMB38,169,000
(The Prior Period: RMB34,887,000), increased by approximately
9.4% as compared with the Prior Year. The increase in cost of
sales for the Current Period was in line with the increase in
revenue of the Group.
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Gross profit

Gross profit for the Year was approximately RMB39,800,000
(The Prior Year: RMB37,977,000), and representing a year on
year increase of 4.8%. The increase in gross profit was mainly
contributed by the funeral services in the PRC.

The gross profit margin for the Year was approximately 51.0%,
and was relatively stable as compared with that of 52.1% for
the Prior Year.

Other income and other net gains/(losses)

The Group recorded other income and other net gains of
approximately RMB3,007,000 during the Year, against the other
income and other net loss of approximately RMB10,771,000
during the Prior Year. The other income and other net gains
was mainly contributed by written back of provision for cost of
service of approximately RMB 1,680,000 during the Year. During
the Prior Year, other income and other net losses was mainly
contributed by the written off of prepayment of approximately
RMB12,013,000.

During the Prior Year, one of the agents, which was
incorporated in Taiwan with limited liability, was dissolved.
The Company considered that the Group is no longer able
to request future services from this agent, and the chance
of recovering the prepayments made to this agent is remote
as advised by the Group’s Taiwan legal adviser. Thus, the
Group has written off the relevant amount of prepayments
with this agent in full under the funeral services segment,
and recognised a loss on written off of prepayment of
approximately RMB12,013,000.
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Selling and administrative expenses

Compared with the Prior Year, selling expenses for the
Year decreased by approximately 18.6% to approximately
RMB1,941,000 as the result of the stricter control on marketing
activities to reduce costs and improve efficiency of marketing
expenses during the Year.

Administrative expenses, which accounted for approximately
41.0% (The Prior Year: 48.6%) of revenue, decreased by
approximately 9.7% to approximately RMB31,991,000 (The
Prior Year: RMB35,432,000) during the Year. The decrease
in the administrative expenses were mainly contributed by
voluntary salary cut of Company’s executive director and senior
management personnel during the Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group manly consisted of the interest
expenses on the bank borrowings and the interest expenses on
the lease liabilities under HKFRS 16. The finance costs decreased
to approximately RMB1,861,000 from that of the Prior Year of
approximately RMB2,182,000. The decrease in finance costs
was mainly due to decrease in the interest in lease liabilities
as the result of lower rental rate upon the renewal of various
lease contracts.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was mainly incurred by operations in
the PRC, which was approximately RMB7,262,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB2,902,000) for the Year, representing an increase
of approximately RMB4,360,000 as compared with the Prior
Year. The increase in the tax expenses was mainly due to
the under-provision of RMB3,269,000 for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) in the Prior Year and the increase in EIT of
approximately RMB1,119,000 for the Year due to the increase
in the taxable profit in the PRC as the result of the improved
operation performance of funeral business in Chongging.

Loss for the Year attributable to the owners of the
Company

As the result of the cumulative effect from the above-
mentioned factors, the loss attributable to the owners of
the Company for the Year was approximately RMB847,000,
as compared with that of approximately RMB9,872,000 for
the Prior Year. Loss per share for the Year was approximately
RMBO0.11 cents (the Prior Year: RMB1.33 cents).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB121,811,000 (2021: RMB117,557,000)
while current and non-current bank borrowings were
approximately RMB1,198,000 and approximately
RMB3,590,000 respectively (2021: RMB1,192,000 and
RMB4,812,000 respectively). All bank borrowings were
denominated in New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD"), at prevailing
market interest rate.

During the Year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

It is the Group's policy to adopt a prudent financial
management strategy and maintain a suitable level of liquidity
facilities to meet operation requirements and acquisition
opportunities.

The Group remained in a healthy and sound liquidity position
as at 31 December 2022. Despite of the relaxation of the
“zero-COVID” policy near year end of 2022, there are still
uncertainties on the road of the society’s return to normal.
Further changes in economic conditions for the Group arising
thereof may have impact on the financial results for the year
ending 31 December 2023 of the Group, the extent of which
could not be estimated as at the date of this report. The Group
will keep continuous attention on the situation and react
actively if any circumstances arose that may impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

Treasury investments and significant investments
held

As at 31 December 2022, the Group also invested
approximately RMB26,006,000 (2021: RMB4,095,000)
in certain equity and debt securities, and exchange trade
fund (“ETF") listed outside Hong Kong. These listed equity
and debt investments are denominated in RMB and were
classified as financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"”). The directors of the Company
considered that the closing price of those listed equity and
debt securities and ETF as at 31 December 2022 was the fair
value of those investments. As at 31 December 2022, the fair
value of the Group’s investment portfolio was approximately
RMB26,006,000 (2021: RMB4,095,000).
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The movements in the investment portfolio held by ZEBFRAFEEIFHEZREHASEZE

the Group during the Year

% of Fair value
% of Group's change
Number of ~ the Group’s  investment 1 January Disposal/ in profit 31 December
securities  total assets portfolio 2022 Addition redemption  and loss 2022
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("GD Hongda") 1 5.5% 60.1% 3,819 39,197 (27,360) (25) 15,631
- Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong - REBEN LTz RAER 6 0.0% 0.4% 276 26,142 (27,554) 1,234 98
- ETF listed outside Hong Kong - RERBNETZRAMEE
i 3 2.0% 22.1% - 10,866 (5,160) 39 5,745
~ Debt instruments listed outside Hong Kong - REBRINEMZERTE 3 1.6% 17.4% - 7,666 (2,810) (324) 4,532
Total ] 13 90%  10000% 4095 83871 (28%4) 924 26,006

The aggregate value of the investment portfolio increased by
approximately RMB21,911,000 during the Year.

Additions to investment portfolio during the Year totalled
approximately RMB83,871,000, including investments in 10
equity securities or ETFs listed outside Hong Kong amounted
to approximately RMB76,205,000 and 3 debt securities listed
outside Hong Kong amounted to approximately RMB7,666,000,
whereas disposals in investment portfolio during the Year
totalled approximately RMB62,884,000, including divestments
of 16 equity securities or ETFs listed outside Hong Kong
amounted to approximately RMB60,074,000 and 1 debt
security listed outside Hong Kong amounted to approximately
RMB2,810,000.

Other movements of the investment portfolio during the Year
included net fair value loss on financial assets measured at
FVTPL of approximately RMB924,000.
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Significant investments of individual fair value of
5% or above of the Group’s total asset

Guangdong Hongda Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
Guangdong Hongda is a listed company listed in Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: SZ002683). The principal business
of GD Hongda is provision of civilian blasting equipment
products, mine services such as infrastructure stripping, mine
construction, overall blasting scheme design, blasting mining,
mineral packaging and transportation, and research and
development and sales of missile weapon systems, intelligent
ammunition equipment and individual combat equipment
and other products. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
has 579,800 ordinary shares and recorded a fair value of
approximately RMB15,631,000 in respect of its holding,
which approximately 1.8% lower than the purchase cost
of approximately RMB15,911,000 for such investment and
represented approximately 5.5% of the Group's total assets and
60.1% of the aggregate fair value of the Group's investment
portfolio. In terms of performance, a fair value loss of
approximately RMB25,000 on such investment was recognised
in profit or loss for the Year. Distribution of RMB66,000 was
received from such investment for the Year.

With the aim of broadening the Group’s source of income and
maximizing the return of the invested capital of the Group,
and in turn bringing value to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), the Group invested in various equity
securities with different focuses on industries, sectors, regions,
and asset types, in order to achieve investment objectives of
reducing investment concentration risk, utilising the valuable
idle financial resources of the Group and enhancing returns for
its Shareholders. The Group has partnered with an investment
company, which has solid principally engaged in venture capital
and investment consultation which focuses on investment in
emerging industries, and has a professional investment team
with extensive investment experience.

During the Year, while the Group strived to seek for investment
opportunities that can benefit the Group’s long term business
strategy, the Group also exploited every opportunity to capture
any short-term potential to fully utilise the valuable idle
financial resources of the Group through investing in various
kind of securities investment for capital appreciation purpose.
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Equity securities or ETFs held by the Group at 31 December
2022 comprised a total of 10 listed equity securities or ETFs
with an aggregate fair value of RMB21,474,000 (accounting
for 7.6% of the Group's total assets) covering various industry
sectors including optical optoelectronics, industrial products
and consumables and index fund.

Listed debt instruments held by the Group at 31 December
2022 comprised a total of 3 listed bonds with an aggregate
fair value of RMB4,532,000 (accounting for 1.6% of the
Group's total assets) with coupon rates ranging from 0.3% to
1.0% per annum, and they are issued by PRC listed companies
or its subsidiary primarily operating in industrial and medical
sectors in the PRC. All the debt instruments have convertible
options that allow the Group to convert into shares of the
investee upon fulfilment of certain conditions. Despite of the
convertible options embedded in the listed debt securities, as
at 31 December 2022, the Group neither has an intention to
convert the debt instruments into shares of the investee, nor
has an intention to hold the debt instruments for long term
purpose.

The Group's investment objective is to increase the value of
its treasury management business so as to enhance returns
for its Shareholders. While the Group continues to seek for
investment opportunities that can benefit the Group’s long
term business strategy and strengthen the competitive edges
of the Group, through a prudent investment strategy of
maintaining a balanced portfolio that an appropriate mix of
investment instruments and level of risks in its portfolio , the
Group also strives for maximising the return of the idle capital
of the Group by taking appropriate level of risk exposure but
without impairing the liquidity of the Group. This is achieved
by utilising various kind of securities instruments, including
but not limited to equity securities and debt instruments,
for potential capital appreciation purpose. Together with the
investment expertise that the Group partners with, the Group’s
investment team reviews the Group’s portfolio from time to
time to ensure no excessive risk is taken. The Group seeks not
only to enhance its source of revenue in order to mitigate the
risks of losing income from any one particular source, but also
to achieve consistent risk adjusted returns in its investment
portfolio. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment
portfolio only constituted 9.2% of the Group’s total assets, and
the largest exposure of a single securities was only 5.5% of the
Group’s total assets.
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The future prospects of the Group's equity securities will be
subject to various factors, including but not limited to political,
economic, technology, financial and risk factors that are
specific to individual industry sectors of the investments and
will therefore vary from one investment to another depending
on the overall capital and investment markets conditions,
macroeconomic conditions as well as the prospects of the
relevant industry. The future prospects of the Group’s debt
securities are exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rate change on their fair values, and other factors, including
but not limited to political, economic, technology, financial and
risk factors that are specific to individual industry sectors of the
investments. However, the Group will benefit from a portfolio
constructed of different kinds of investments aiming to, on
average, yield higher returns and lower the risk associated with
any individual investment.

Treasury policy

The Group continues to adopt a conservative treasury policy
in liquidity and financial management. The Group conducted
its continuing operational business transactions mainly in RMB
and HKD. Surplus cash is generally placed in fixed deposits and
high-quality debt securities mostly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), United States dollar (“USD"”) or Renminbi
(“RMB"). During the Year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio representing the
ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of the Group was
approximately 1.7% (2021: 2.3%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at the reporting date of each of the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group had commitment
for the capital injections in associates and a joint venture,
and construction in progress amounted to approximately
RMB8,960,000 and RMB18,428,000 respectively.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Save as disclosed above and in note 37 to these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no other material capital
commitments, material contracts, contingent liabilities or
significant investment plans.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of risks. Further
details of the Group’s inherent risk exposures are set out at
note 34 of the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’'s operations are geographically based in the PRC,
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam. These consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in RMB, except for
certain incomes and expenses which are denominated in USD,
NTD, HKD and Vietnamese Dong (“VTD").

It is possible that the value of RMB may fluctuate against that
of USD, NTD, HKD and VTD. The Group's operating results and
financial condition may be affected by changes in the exchange
rates of RMB against USD, NTD, HKD and VTD in which the
Group’s revenue and expenses are denominated.

As at 31 December 2022, The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the directors of the
Company monitor the Group's foreign currency exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arises.

Credit risk exposure

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits paid, debt
instruments measured at FVTPL, time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Except for debt securities measured at FVTPL, the Group
performed impairment assessment for financial assets and
other items under expected credit loss (“ECL") model. Besides,
the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from refundable
rental deposits is considered to be low, taking into account (i)
the landlords’ credit rating and (ii) the remaining lease term
and the period covered by the rental deposits.
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The Group has established a credit risk management policy
under which individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the Group generally offer credit period of 45 days to
customers, whereas no credit period is granted to customers
for other services rendered by the Group. Normally, the Group
does not hold any collateral over trade receivables. The Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral
held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. The Group segments its trade receivables
based on geographic regions, due to different loss patterns
experienced in the different regions. Expected loss rates are
based on actual loss experience over the past 12 months. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any significant acquisitions and
disposal of investments during the Year.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s
bank borrowings was approximately RMB22,578,000 (2021:
RMB23,552,000).
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THE NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 218
employees (2021: 171 employees). The Group determines
staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary
scales, individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration
packages including performance bonuses and entitlements to
share options are reviewed on regular basis.

PROSPECTS

The Russia-Ukraine war broke out early this year, and countries
led by the United States and the European Union have imposed
a series of economic sanctions against Russia, resulting in
severe volatility in the global financial market, continued surge
in commodity prices and aggravated global inflation, which
further dragged down the growth of the global economy

Meanwhile, despite of the relaxation of the “zero-COVID”
policy near year end of 2022, there are still uncertainties on the
road of the society’s return to normal.

In light of the current economic environment, the Company
continues to closely monitor the developments related to the
pandemic and the war, impacts of which will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain, constantly evolving
and difficult to predict. These impacts may differ in magnitude
depending on a number of scenarios, which we continue to
monitor and take into consideration in our decision making as
we continue to assess medium to long-term impacts.

In the face of the complex and ever-changing global economic
environment and the uncertainties surrounding the road of the
society’s return to normal, China’s economy has been under
increasing downward pressure. In order to achieve stable
growth, China has continued to make its best effort to restore
the normal production and living in order, during the post-
pandemic era, while optimizing the role of counter-cyclical
adjustment, continuously supporting stable growth with macro
policies and vigorously supporting the development of strategic
emerging industries. Industries such as the new energy,
new materials, Internet of Things, biotechnology have been
developing rapidly.

Further changes in economic conditions for the Group arising
thereof may have impact on the financial results for the year
ending 31 December 2023 of the Group, the extent of which
could not be estimated as at the date of this report. The Group
will keep continuous attention on the situation and react
actively if any circumstances arose that may impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.
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The Group has formed a business system focusing on
traditional funeral services and emerging biotechnology. The
Group has made a presence in the biotechnology business since
early 2019. After several years of development, the life science
instrument sales business has made a substantial progress. The
Group as positions one of the Company’s subsidiaries, Zhongke
Zhenhui (Guangdong) Medical Technology Company Limited*
(FRIZZ (ER) BERZBR AR (“Zhongke Zhenhui”) as
a specialized and comprehensive investment platform to focus
on investment in the development direction of biotechnology,
including but not limited to, biomedicine, medical healthcare,
life science instruments etc., as well as those emerging
industries which could create synergy effect.

Looking forward, the Board remains cautiously optimistic
about the prospects of our core businesses, including funeral
services business, and life science instrument sales business.
The Group will adopt a prudent and diversified business
strategy to ensure sustainable business development in 2023.
While consolidating the traditional funeral services, the Group
will actively seize the significant opportunities arising from the
booming development of the emerging biotechnology industry,
and allocate more resources to support the development of the
Group's biotechnology business. Through commencing equity
and securities investment business, which is centered on the
development direction of the biotechnology industry, and will
actively seek suitable investment goals and opportunities from
time to time to expand the investment scale of the Group and
maximize the investment income of the Group and the return
to shareholders of the Company.

From operational management perspective, the Group will
formulate a combination of various incentives to attract and
retain cutting-edge talents, management talents and relevant
persons who have contributed to the development of the
Group, so as to improve the current operating conditions of the
Group, optimize the business structure, enhance profitability,
and promote the long-term sustainable and high-quality
development of the Group's business.

Through commencing equity and securities investment
business, which is centered on the development direction
of the biotechnology industry, and will actively seek suitable
investment goals and opportunities from time to time to
expand the investment scale of the Group and maximize the
investment income of the Group and the return to shareholders
of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance practices of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) are based on the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”). The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year”).

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of its business and to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure they comply with the
statutory requirements and the Code and align with the latest
developments.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL
REPORTING PROVISIONS OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Due to the travel restriction in force in Taiwan and Vietnam
to combat the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the audit
of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 has been affected. The Company was
unable to publish and despatch the audited annual results
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (the "“2021
Annual Results”) and the related annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “2021 Annual Report”) on or
before 31 March 2022 as required by the GEM Listing Rules.
Such delay has constituted non-compliance with Rules 18.03
and 18.49 of the GEM Listing Rules. However, in accordance
with the FURTHER GUIDANCE ON THE JOINT STATEMENT IN
RELATION TO RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENTS IN LIGHT OF THE
COVID-19 PANDEMIC released on 16 March 2020 (the “Further
Guidance”) by The Securities and Futures Commission and
the Stock Exchange, an issuer may defer the publication of
the annual report initially for up to 60 days from the date of
the Further Guidance if, among other things, on or before 15
May 2022. The Company has published its preliminary 2021
Annual Results without its auditors’ agreement pursuant to
the Further Guidance on 30 March 2022. The supplemental
announcements on the 2021 Annual Results have been
published on 14 April 2022 and the 2021 Annual Report has
been published and delivered on 26 April 2022.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A) Board Composition
For the Year and until the date of this report, the Board
comprises members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)
Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei
Dr. Yang Jingjing
(Appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun
(Resigned on 4 March 2022)
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The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”, and further elaborate
below). The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board's
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. There
were changes in members of the Board during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report, as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules, as below:

Name of Directors
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Dr. Yang Jingjing

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman and

member of nomination committee and member of each of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 4 March 2022.
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Mr. Wang Jun

Resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman and

member of nomination committee and member of each of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 4 March 2022.
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The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among the members of the Board, if any, are
set out in the “Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management” on pages from 51 to 54 of this
annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)
between the members of the Board. Every Director has
sufficient time and attention to deal with the affairs of
the Group.
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Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring
the business performance of the Group, with the
goal of maximising long-term shareholder’s value,
while balancing broader stakeholder interests. The
Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”), for the manner in which the affairs of
the Group are managed and operated.

The Board has the following main duties:
. determine all the corporate matters;

o be responsible for the management, direction and
supervision of the businesses of the Group; and

o be responsible to ensure the effectiveness on
Group's financial reporting and compliance.

As and when necessary, the Directors can access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary, and in
the appropriate circumstances, seeking of independent
professional advice at the Group’s expense to ensure
that the Board's procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers
delegated to the management for the day-to-day
management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management should report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management
to discharge its duties and responsibilities in all
circumstances. The Board will review those arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have brought
in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and
serving on various Board committees, all independent
non-executive Directors will make various contributions
to the Company.
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Mechanisms to ensure Independent Views
from Directors

The Board has implemented different ways to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.
The implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism
was reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers
that such mechanism has been implemented properly
and effectively.

The mechanism is disclosed below:

(i)  Composition
The Board ensures the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors
and at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive Directors with at
least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Currently, 50% of the Board members
are independent non-executive Directors, which
exceeds the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.
Further, independent non-executive Directors
will be appointed to Board Committees as
required under the GEM Listing Rules and as far
as practicable to ensure independent views are
available.

(i) Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to
the Board Nomination Policy with regard to the
nomination and appointment of independent
non-executive Directors, and is mandated to
assess annually the independence of independent
non-executive Directors to ensure that they can
continually exercise independent judgement.

<)

Al A~~~ N =+
TEBRWME

BRESBIUSRNES

EEeCRKBTRASTABRESS
AESBYBRARER ZHFNE
EREREEBFETRS EFER
REBHNEZERBYILEE -

BHEEUT -
(i) A

EEEeHREREEL =B
FATEEREL =92 —K
BEABYIERTEET BED
— BB TESHARE
EEERA S NEETEE
BEZEANHFH -ZA 50%ME
EeXEABYIENITES
BBGEMETAANEE -
BtoN - B IEHITE R IE
GEMEMRAIMWBEREYE
ATHBERTEZTIMAES
ZES UBRUESBILE
ﬁo

(i) B MERFA
REZECEBBRETABRS
MEEBIUFRITESENE
ZERBBR LATFTH
BUFAITESTNE L K
FEOR 1 5 BE S 5 4B 1F 2 B S #)
B o

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH

27



28

Corporate Governance Report

fa

ES

(iii)

== JA

B /A $&%

Directors’
Commitments
The Directors, independent non-executive
Directors in particular, have demonstrated a strong
commitment to the Board affairs and they are well
aware that they are expected to have a sufficient
time commitment to the Board. Directors have
given certain confirmations and made disclosures
about their other commitments.

Time and Directorship

Directors disclose to the Company twice a year
the number, identity and nature of offices held in
Hong Kong or overseas listed public companies and
organizations and other significant commitments,
together with an indication of the time involved.

Currently, none of the Directors, individually, held
directorships in more than seven public companies
(including the Company) as at 31 December 2022.
The executive Directors do not hold directorship
in other public companies, however, they are
encouraged to participate in professional, public
and community organizations.

Board Decision Making

The Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors), upon reasonable request, may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense, to assist the performance of their duties.

To safeguard the interests of the Group, all
Directors are required to declare their direct/indirect
interests, if any, in any business proposals to be
considered at the meetings and, where appropriate,
they are required to abstain from voting on any
Board resolution concerned. If a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the
matter would be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution.
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Board Evaluation

The Board assesses and reviews the time
contributed by every independent non-executive
Director and their attendance to meetings of the
Board and the Board committees so as to ensure
that every independent non-executive Director has
devoted sufficient time to the Board to discharge
his/her responsibilities as a Director.

Independent Views and Inputs Treasured and
Valued

During the Board and Board committee meetings,
the independent non-executive Directors are
encouraged to express freely their independent
views and inputs in an open and candid manner.
The Chairman also encourages questions
and challenges from Directors, in particular
independent non-executive Directors and their
comments and concerns are closely followed up by
the management. In addition to Board meetings,
the Chairman schedules a meeting annually with
independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors to discuss the affairs of
the Group.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms have been reviewed by the Board
on an annual basis and the Board believes these
measures would allow Directors to contribute
effectively and independent views and input are
available to the Board and Board committees.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board normally should schedule four regular meetings a
year at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required to
discuss the overall business, development strategy, operations
and financial reporting of the Company. For the Year, the
Board held 7 meetings within which 4 were regular meetings.
In addition to regular Board meetings, the chairman of the
Board had met with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other executive Directors during the
Year. The attendance records of individual Directors at these
Board meetings are set out in the table on page 31 of this
annual report. The Directors can attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”). All minutes of the meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors at any time. The meetings are structured to allow
open discussion. All Directors participate in discussing the
strategy, operational and financial performance and internal
control of the Group.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman to prepare the
agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. At least 14 days’ notice
is given to the Directors for the regular meetings by the
Company. All substantive agenda items have comprehensive
briefing papers, which are distributed by the Company
Secretary to the Directors within reasonable time before the
Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors may receive
accurate, timely and clear information to make informed
decisions regarding the matters discussed in the meetings.
Directors who are considered to have conflict of interests or
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and
will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board opinions on
matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of
the Board meetings.
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The Board is regularly provided with brief reports containing ZEE&@FTHIRT B U AEEEE BN
balanced and comprehensive evaluation on the Group's KAl S #1715 E & 2 @ T (6 58 3H
performance, status and prospects to keep it abreast of the & NEHAEENES TREZEER
Group's affairs and to facilitate the Directors’ performance of JEGEMLEMEEIMEBREEBITER -
their obligations under the relevant requirements of the GEM

Listing Rules.
2022 AGM
held on
Board meetings 17 June 2022
N=—T=-=
~A+tHET
2T/,
EEEER BEBEXE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman) HERRLE (FE) 717 11
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai E Nz e
(Chief executive officer) (7TIB A2 %) 6/7 1/1
Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer) %% 1B+ (H/EHTE) 5/7 11
Independent non-executive BIAFERTES
Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BRELE 717 1/1
Mr. Sun Fei BRFEE 6/7 1/
Dr. Yang Jingjing BEEELT
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) (R=—F=—=
= AMBEZE) 77 1/
Mr. Wang Jun FHEAE(RZEZZ
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) = AMB#E) N/ATS 38 N/ATS 3 A

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EBRITHE &K

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the Code, the roles of RIEFRIFEC 2. HETAMEN  RAR 2 &
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive ZE&EJFE ([E/F])EBTHRAR ([1THE
officer (the “CEO(s)") of the Company should be segregated #H I)MAGBEAERED T/EHE— AR
and should not be performed by the same individual. The fF-EFETRAK ZEBEND TEE
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEOs % &7 I LA Z 51 & o

should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The positions of Chairman and CEOs of the Company for the RANFEE AARRQ A 2 T F M1THAER 2 B
Year are held separately by Mr. Xu Jianchun as Chairman, #SHFEFLRE (EZFE) BRE KL (17
and Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai as CEO and Dr. Xu Qiang as CEO. The B##)MGRIEL (BFERTE)ET-
Chairman is responsible for the Group's strategic planning and FTFEEEAEENEERI N EEDEE
the management of the operations of the Board, while the HEE X MITRAHGEERAEFNKL S
CEOs take the lead in the Group’s operations and business FREBER TERITRAHNBESSE
development. There is a clear division of responsibilities Wi 25 8% 49 {R 125 7 /7 B2 4% 4 1) - 18
between the Chairman and CEOs of the Company which

provides a balance of power and authority.

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board complies at all times with
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive Directors
presenting at least one-third of the Board with at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent for the
Year.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT
FOR DIRECTORS

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, all Directors
have confirmed that they have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to roles,
functions and duties of a director of a listed company. In
order to ensure every newly appointed Director, if any, have
a proper understanding on the operations and business of
the Group and fully aware of his responsibilities under the
relevant applicable legal and regulatory requirements, every
newly appointed Directors before his/her appointment will
be given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties
and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Attending
expert briefings/ Reading
seminars/ materials
conferences relevant to
relevant to the the Group'’s
Group'’s business, business,
the GEM Listing the GEM Listing
Rules and Rules and
directors’ duties directors’ duties
HE B
EEREETR-
GEM_E T #R Bl & FERRH
EEREN EEREET-
ERWHE - GEMLHRAIR
Name of Directors EENA HE g% EERENEHR
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xu Jianchun RELE - v
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai Nz e - v
Dr. Xu Qiang moaE T = v
Independent non-executive Directors BIIFEHITESE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BHRETAE v 4
Mr. Sun Fei BRI E - 4
Dr. Yang Jingjing Nete V) 12 fE - (D _ v
Mr. Wang Jun (Nete 2) F 15 4 A (D) N/A i N/A 7~
Notes: B 5 :
1. Dr. YANG lingjing was appointed on 4 March 2022. 1. HEEETR_T__F=AMNBEZE-
2. Mr. WANG Jun resigned on 4 March 2022. 2. FHEER-_T_F=AWBEE-
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEE
The Board has also established the following committees with ZEE& RS KM N ZE & @ I R E B
defined terms of reference: & #
. Audit Committee . BEZLZE®
. Remuneration Committee . FMEE=
. Nomination Committee . RELZE®

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms
of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

FEFZESHEAMBRESRE M ERE
RAZEEEHRE- ZIK’A_HHTﬂﬂMu

EREEZBERE RERKE-
PHEDEBERAT —B--FFR
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the Year, 6 meetings were held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman) 5/6
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 6/6
Dr. Yang Jingjing

(Appointed on 4 March 2022) 5/5
Mr. Wang Jun

(Resigned on 4 March 2022) 11

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor of the Company (the "External
Auditor”);

i. reviewing and monitoring the External Auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
accounting standard;

iii.  reviewing the policy on engaging the Auditor in
the provision of non-audit services;

iv. . monitoring the integrity of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, annual reports
and accounts, half-yearly reports and quarterly
reports;

V. liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the External Auditor;

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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vi.  overviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vii.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual report
before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee
focused not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the
compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing
Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the
Group's quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual
report. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, considered the re-election of External Auditor
and discussed with the External Auditor about the audit
plan.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the
relevant provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company's website. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management.
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Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee

For the Year, 2 meetings were held. The following table shows
the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the Year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Sun Fei 1/2
Dr. Yang Jingjing

(Appointed on 4 March 2022) 2/2
Mr. Wang Jun

(Resigned on 4 March 2022) N/A

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i. making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management;

ii. determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management;

iii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

iv.  reviewing and approving matters related to share option
schemes of the Company; and

V. reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not
excessive for the Company.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration package of the Board members and the
senior management of the Company and the granting of share
options. No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Remuneration of Senior Management by Band REEE D NS REEEH M
Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 the Code, details of BEFRIZBENSETRE &R
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior BEEEKRENAFENFE N
management by band for the Year were as follows: BiREEEHS T :
Number of
employee(s)
EEHH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to Z % 1,000,000/ 7T
approximately RMB858,795 (FHE R ARMS58,7957T
(2021: RMB829,601)) —T - —F: AR¥%829,6017T) ) 1
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000;% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FBEE MAARESS8,7957T &
RMB858,795 to RMB1,717,591) AR#1,717,5917T)
(2021: RMB829,601 to RMB1,659,203) —E - —F: AR%829601TE
AR¥1,659,2037T) 2
Nomination Committee Q) REZEES
The Company has established a nomination committee $ AIERVIREZEG ([REZE
(the “Nomination Committee”) with written terms E@ | )UWREBIMBETHTELES
of reference in accordance with requirements of the HBESHE EH=2B I FNTE
Stock Exchange which consists of three independent FHK - HEREBEZEGRE BE
non-executive Directors. The terms of reference setting K E (A Bk 4 &0 B m) 0 B 22 B A9
out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and RARGHELEITER -

responsibilities are available on both the Stock Exchange'’s
website and the Company’s website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the REZESRERSETH
Nomination Committee
For the Year, 1 meeting was held. The following table RAFE BERIT-REE - TERH
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the FIENESRAFELERGRZIE
meetings held during the Year: i
Dr. Yang Jingjing (Chairman) 1/1 BEEELT (£/E) 1/1
(Appointed on 4 March 2022) (K==
“TANBEZE)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 1/1 BRELE 1/1
Mr. Sun Fei 11 BRRELE 1/1
Mr. Wang Jun N/A FHEE(RZZEZZ N iE A
(Resigned on 4 March 2022) =AM HEEE)

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

Vi

reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversify for consistency (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a
regular basis and making recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes;

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors;

making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the CEO;

making recommendations to the Board on the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members;
and

reviewing and giving full consideration to the
Board Diversity Policy adopted from time to time.

The summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is as follows:

To review the existing Board's structure, size,
composition and diversity;

To review the Board Diversity Policy;
To review the nomination policy of the Board
(“Board Nomination Policy” and further elaborate

below);

To review and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors;

To make recommendations on the retiring Directors

at the 2022 AGM of the Company; and

To consider and make recommendation on the
appointment of new Director.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Company adopted the Board Nomination Policy, which
establishes written guidelines to the Nomination Committee to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships with reference to the
formulated criteria. The Board is ultimately responsible for
selection and appointment of new Directors.

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to the
Nomination Committee, has used its best efforts to ensure
that Directors appointed to the Board possess the relevant
background, experience and knowledge in business, finance
and management skills critical to the Group's business to
enable the Board to make sound and well considered decisions.
Collectively, they have competencies in areas which are relevant
and valuable to the Group.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy
on the Board has been created or is expected on a regular basis
or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for
identifying candidates, including recommendations from Board
members, management, and professional search firms. All
candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated
by Shareholders are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director’s qualifications. While candidates will
be evaluated on the same criteria through review of resume,
personal interview and performance of background checks.
The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish
the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based
on the composition, skill sets, age, gender and experiences of
the collective Board rather than on the individual candidate
for the purpose of diversity perspectives appropriate to the
requirement of the Company’s businesses.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account a variety of
factors including without limitation to whether a candidate has
the qualifications, skills, experience and gender diversity that
add to and complement the range of skills, experience and
background of existing Directors by considering the highest
personal and professional ethics and integrity of the candidates,
proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment, skills
that are complementary to those of the existing Board, the
ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and
the Shareholders.

During the Year, Dr. Yang lJingjing was appointed as a new
independent non-executive Director on 4 March 2022 by
going through the nomination process in accordance with the
Company’'s Board Diversity Policy and the Board Nomination
Policy.

The Company shall review and reassess the Board Nomination
Policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Board Diversity Policy

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis
by the Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate mix of expertise and experience, and collectively
possesses the necessary core competence for informed
decision-making and effective functioning. The Company
adopted the Board Diversity Policy and recognises the benefits
of having diversity in the composition of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Company noted that people from different background
and with different professional and life experience are likely
to approach problems in different ways and accordingly,
members of the Board with diverse background will bring
different concerns and questions to the table, and allow the
Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the
Group. In determining the Board’s composition and selection
of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider factors including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service.
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All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against the selection criteria,
having regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the
business model and specific needs of the Group. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Composition of the Diversified Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors. The following table further illustrate the composition
and diversity of the Board in terms of age, length of service
with the Group, educational background and professional
experience as of the date of this annual report:

Al A~~~ N =+
TEBRWME

MBEESEZERERNBARESRA I
RAEREZREREAN ETEZEES
EXREEZ TS AEBEEHTRARA
BER - RBRREBRFEEMRBAZE
FMEBRESSHRNERME

BEZn{tRECESE2HEMK

RAFHRBAW EFERAAUEFHAK-
TRE-—FHARAFHREN EFEH
Fik RASEZRBFEH BEERR
BEXRRITEIAKRMKEZTTILREE

Age Group Length of Service Educational Background Professional Experience
FRE BHEH 2EER EX4R
less than more than Accounting
Name of Directors 35t0 50 over 50 5 years 5 years Science  Accountancy  Others Science and Finance  Management
ESnE BHES R SOEME  SEENT  SEME Mg gt £t L EtREm £
Mr. Xu Jianchun / / / / /
HRELE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai / / / /
AR L
Dr. Xu Qiang v/ v v / /
HABL
Mr. Chai Chung Wai / / / v/ /
ERREE
Mr. Sun Fei / / 4 /
HREE
Dr. Yang Jingjing "¢ ! / / / Y
BEEEL I
Mr. Wang Jun M2 / / / /
F i b (2
Notes: B 5
1. Dr. Yang Jingjing was appointed as an independent non- 1. HESHELTR _ZT_F=ZAMNAEZ
executive Director on 4 March 2022. ERBILIFNITES -
2. Mr. Wang Jun resigned as an independent non-executive 2. FHRERZT__F=ATHBEHEE
Director on 4 March 2022. S EITES

The Nomination Committee believes that the current
composition of the Board demonstrates a thorough
consideration of the measurable objectives for achieving board
diversity.

Currently, all Board members are male. The Board has set down
its goals to appoint one female as Board member no later than
31 December 2024 as part of its effort to achieve diversity on
the Board level. The Nomination Committee will continue to
monitor and actively consider different aspects of diversity in
the boardroom, and recommend further actions or plan to the
Board when necessary.

For details of gender diversity at the workforce level, please
refer to the Group's published “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2022".
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Chai Chung Wai, Mr. Sun Fei and Dr. Yang Jingjing,
the independent non-executive Directors, have been appointed
for a specific term of three years.

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles
of Association, at every annual general meeting of the
Company one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in code provision
A.2.1 of the Code, which include reviewing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and performed the
above corporate governance functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the External Auditor
of the Company. The External Auditor is primarily responsible
for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements. During the Year, the total
remuneration in respect of services provided by Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited amounted to approximately RMB902,000, which
solely incurred for statutory audit purpose.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for the period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and on a going concern
basis. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. It is the External Auditor’s responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and to report their opinion
solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of the independent
auditor’s report. The statement of the External Auditor about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 74 to 81 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (“Mr. Chu") was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 11 June 2019. Mr. Chu has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

Biographical detail of Mr. Chu is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND

PN

INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Company has established the framework of risk
management and internal control below with a view to
adopting the Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules:

(a)

(b)

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification — Identifies risks that may potentially
affect the Group's business and operations.

Risk Assessment — (i) Assesses the risks identified by using
the assessment criteria developed by the management;
and (i) Considers the impacts and consequences on the
business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response — (i) Prioritises the risks by comparing the
results of the risk assessment; and (ii) Determines the risk
management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — (i) Performs ongoing
and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that
appropriate internal control processes are in place; (ii)
Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and (iii) Reports the results of risk monitoring
to the management and the Board regularly.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to: (i) safeguard
assets against misappropriation and disposition; (ii)
ensure compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations; (iii) ensure proper maintenance of accounting
records for provision of reliable financial information used
within the business or for publication; and (iv) to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss
or fraud.
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(d)
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An acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining
the sound risk management and internal control
systems of the Company on an ongoing basis, as well as
reviewing and evaluating their design and effectiveness
at least annually. The Board oversees the overall risk
management of the Group, endeavours to identify
respective risks of major business segments, analyse
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatements or losses.

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company has engaged an external internal
control adviser (the “Adviser”) with a view to facilitate
maintenance of the internal audit function carried out by
the Company. The Company has reviewed the prevailing
internal audit charter to ascertain the scope, duties,
responsibilities and reporting protocol of the internal
audit function.

The Adviser has assisted the Company in conducting
an annual risk assessment to identify significant risks
by strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and
compliance risks of its major business segments. A three-
year internal audit plan was determined based upon
the results of risk assessment under the risk-based audit
approach.

(c)

(d)
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(e)

PN

The Adviser has also assisted the Board and the Audit
Committee in performing an independent annual
review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems for the Year.
Such review is conducted annually according to the
three-year internal audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. Findings and areas for improvement of
the review were reported by the management to the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Board and the
Audit Committee are of the view that there were no
material internal control defects noted for the Year. All
recommendations from the Adviser would be properly
followed up by the Group to ensure that they would be
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Board therefore considered that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Year.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure
potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The policy regulates the
handling and dissemination of inside information, which
includes: (i) designated reporting channels from different
operations informing any potential inside information
to designated departments; (ii) designated persons
and departments to determine further escalation and
disclosure as required; and (iii) designated persons
authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to
external enquiries.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the “EGM(s)")
shall also be convened on the requisition of two or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may do so in
the same manner, provided that such meeting shall be held
within three months after the deposit of such requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s), as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to nominate a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles of Association, no
person shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting
unless during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, there has been given to the Company Secretary
notice in writing by a Shareholder (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

The details of the Company's procedures for Shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director are set out in the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director” which is available on the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com.
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PETHRBE

Procedures for Shareholders to put enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong or the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office.

Shareholders or investors can raise questions or provide
comments and suggestions to the Company through the
following means:

By post: 18/F, Ovest
77 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan
Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinolifegroup.com

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings
under the memorandum of the Company and the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands. However,
Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating
to the operations and management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be
sent to the Company Secretary at the contact details as set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to
put enquiries to the Board” above by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should
convene an EGM by following the procedures set out in the
paragraphs headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting” above.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the
business of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Communication Policy”). Under
the Communication Policy, the Company's information
shall be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through
general meetings, including annual general meetings, the
Group's financial reports (quarterly reports, half-yearly report
and annual report), its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and meetings with investors and
analysts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the “Dividend Policy”) in March 2019, which establishes an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company.
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TRERHRE

The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to the Shareholders after considering the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, which will depend on a number of
factors, including but not limited to:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(i)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iii) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(iv)  the Group's liquidity position;

(v)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors
of and affecting the Group. The Board may also consider
declaring interim dividends from time to time.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and
its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.
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Biographical Detalls of the Dwectors and Senior Management

N E]

As the date of this annual report, the biographical information
of the Group’s Directors and senior management are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Jianchun (E¥8%F), aged 44, was appointed on
22 December 2017 as the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Xu
holds a doctorate degree in economics from Renmin University
of China. Mr. Xu has many years of investment experience in
the biotechnology sector. He has extensive experience in the
biotechnology investment and operation field.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (2I#581), aged 65, was appointed on
24 February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
corporate strategies, planning, overall operational management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Liu is a director
of all subsidiaries of the Group (including Bau Shan Life
Science Technology Co., Ltd (BILAGRIERHBBER A
al) (“Bau Shan”). Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also
the team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the
Group's establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in
training its team. Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit
Making Organisation Management and Mortuary Science and
Funeral Service Management from Nanhua University (5%
AKE)in 2000 and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of
managerial, corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began
his career in funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a
member of Japan Environmental Zhai Yuan Association ( B
RN IRIWEIHE ), the National Funeral Director Association
of the United States and the FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a
council member of Society of Chinese Funeral Education (#
EREBZHEHAEZE) and Chinese Society of Life and Death
Studies (AR EAILEE) . Mr. Liu had also been a lecturer
holding seminars on the skills of being a ceremonial master
and cosmetology at the Continuing Education Centre, Ling
Tung College (£ R X 1T Lt E(EEHEEZE F0) in Taiwan.
Mr. Liu is currently an honorary member of the China Funeral
Association (R Bl ZE# & ) in the PRC.
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Dr. Xu Qiang (#&3%) , aged 45, was appointed on 1 March
2019 as a non-executive Director and was redesignated from a
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 22 January
2021. Dr. Xu obtained his master's degree in Materials
Physics and Chemistry from Tsinghua University in 2003. In
2008, he has obtained a doctorate’s degree in Quantitative
Electron Diffraction from Delft University of Technology in
the Netherlands. Since 2012, Dr. Xu has served successively
as Product Manager, Director of Application and is now the
Vice President of Business Development in a nanotechnology
company, focusing on the development of electron microscope
related products, in the Netherlands.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (BB &), aged 56, was appointed
on 16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master degree
of Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004 and
of business administration from the University of Manchester
in December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai
has extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting
and financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary
of Ping Shan Tea Group Limited. He was an independent
non-executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings
Group Limited (a company formerly listed in Hong Kong, stock
code: 1096 and cancelled listing on 15 December 2022) from
February 2019 to August 2022. Mr. Chai was an independent
non-executive director of Asia Coal Limited (a company
formerly listed in Hong Kong, stock code: 835, and cancelled
listing on 18 June 2019) from September 2018 to June 2019.
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Biographical Detalls of the Dwectors and Senior Management
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Mr. Sun Fei (3%7) , aged 43, was appointed on 23 January
2018. Mr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
biophysics from the Department for Intensive Instruction
of Science and Arts of Nanjing University in 2001, and
obtained a doctorate degree in biophysics from the School
of Medicine, Tsinghua University in 2006. Since 2006, he has
been a researcher at the Institute of Biophysics of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences, conducting an independent research on
biophysics and structural biology. Since 2012, he has served as
the director of the Center for Biological Imaging of the Institute
of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, leading
the establishment and operation of the international-class
Center for Biological Imaging. Since 2015, he has been
appointed as professor at the University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences, teaching graduate and undergraduate students.
He has extensive research experience in biophysical technology,
cryo-electron microscopy, biological macromolecular structure
and biological imaging, and has extensive management
experience in the operation and maintenance of research
platforms. In 2009, Mr. Sun was awarded the Shizhang Bei
Prize in Biophysics. In 2013, he was chosen to participate as
a teenage talent in the National Special Support Program for
High-Level Talents, the “Ten Thousand Talent Program”. In
2017, Mr. Sun was awarded the Outstanding Contribution
Award for his contributions to cryo-electron microscopy in
China. In 2017, he was elected as the managing director of
the Biophysical Society of China and the vice-chairman of the
Cryo-electron Microscopy Branch of the Biophysical Society of
China.
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Dr. YANG lingjing (88 %) , aged 40, was appointed on 4
March 2022. He obtained a master's degree in finance from
University of Technology Sydney in Australia and a doctorate
degree in finance from Massey University in New Zealand. He
worked as a visiting researcher at City University of Hong Kong.
He is a professor, doctoral tutor, and deputy dean of the School
of Finance, Guangdong University of Foreign Studies, and has
been selected as a high-level financial specialist in Guangzhou.
Currently, he is mainly engaged in teaching and scientific
research in corporate finance and corporate governance.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, aged 42, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 June 2019. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Chartered Governance Institute and
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Chu holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and he has extensive experiences in the
field of accounting and financial management.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is here to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year"”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group’s principal activities during the
Year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments
in the group’s business, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 7 to
22 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business
risks, operational risks, and financial risks that may have
different levels of impact on the Group’s financial performance,
operations, business as well as future prospects.

As the death care industry in the PRC, Taiwan and Vietnam
is originated from a long cultural history, it features a
geographically distinctive and traditional operation model.
The conventions of such industry are now facing challenging
innovation and the maturity of relevant regulations remains to
be seen while the world keeps progressing and updating. The
Group is adhered to the modernization reform of the death
care business across different geographical locations that the
Group has operations in so as to reduce the risk arising from
outdated regulations for the industry.

The death care industry, subject to the strict requirement of
relevant regulations imposed by the government, is a highly
regulated industry. There are strict restrictions on licenses and
land supply which pose risks and uncertainties on the Group’s
business expansion.
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Requirements and restrictions still exist in the PRC on fund flow
under capital accounts, which may affect the Group’s flexibility
to make use of global funds to implement business expansion
and our ability to distribute dividends to foreign investors.

The Group is also exposed to certain financial risk, including
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk, equity
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of financial
risks are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements and the section headed “Principal Risks” under the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” to this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

For the details of the environmental, social and governance
performance of the Group, please refer to the Group’s
published “Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2022".

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

Save as disclosed in the section “Non-Compliance with
Financial Reporting Provisions of the GEM Listing Rules” in
the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report, as
far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

During the Year, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or other
stakeholders. For details, please refer to the Group’s published
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022".

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the Year is set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 82 and 83 and the state of affairs of the Group at
that date are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position on pages 84 and 85.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2021: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover;
and the aggregate amount of purchases (not including the
purchases of items which are of a capital nature) attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 52.2% of the
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 14.3%.
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At no time during the Year, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Details of segment reporting for the Year are set out in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There are no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 86, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

At 31 December 2022, the Company did not have distributable
reserve to shareholders.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations of RMB38,000 (2021: RMB153,000) was
made by the Group during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Jianchun

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Dr. Xu Qiang

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Sun Fei
Dr. Yang Jingjing
(Appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Wang Jun (Resigned on 4 March 2022)

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and Dr. Xu Qiang will retire by
rotation in accordance with article 16.18 of the Article of
Association, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM").

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, biographical details of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages from 51 to 54 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Mr. Xu Jianchun (“Mr. Xu”), an executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 22 December 2017, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
two months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 9 September 2009, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Dr. Xu Qiang, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 22 January 2021, which continues thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than two
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Chai Chung Wai, an independent non-executive Director,
has renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 9 September 2021,
which can be terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Sun Fei, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years from 23 January 2021, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month's
notice in writing to the other party.

Dr. Yang Jingjing, an independent non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years from 4 March 2022, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month'’s
notice in writing to the other party.
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None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM, has a service agreement which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees (full-
time and part-time), directors, advisors, consultants, service
providers, agents, customers, partners or joint-venture partners
of the of the Group and to promote the success of the business
of the Group.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
EMPLOYEES WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five employees
with highest emoluments for the Year are set out in note 8 and
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
held by the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares (the “Shares”),
underlying shares (the “Underlying Shares”) and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they have
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Aggregated long positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares
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Number of
Underlying
Shares held

pursuant to the

Number of Shares held

share options

IR R Approximate
Fiti ik b M E HE R b HE percentage of the
Personal Corporate Personal total number of
Name of Directors interest interest interest Total Shares in issue
EEETRH
EEfE EAER LEED BAER @i ST
Mr. XU = 220,475,000 = 220,475,000 29.69%
(Note 1)
FEAE (&£
Dr. XU Qiang - - 3,712,000 3,712,000 0.50%
(Note 2)
frEEt (Fi&E2)
Mr. SUN Fei = = 3,712,000 3,712,000 0.50%
(Note 2)
BREE (P 5E2)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Xu is interested in 220,475,000 Shares through his
controlling interests in Hong Kong Gaogi Biological Technology
Company Limited (“HK Gaogqi”). Mr. Xu is interested in HK
Gaogqi through his 25.55% direct beneficial interests and 9.78%
through Houp Bio-Technology Limited (“HBT Limited”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. HBT Limited
has two classes of shares, namely class A and class B, in which
shareholders of class A and class B have 30 votes and 1 vote
per share in the shareholders’ meeting respectively. Mr. Xu
holds 94.07% class A interests and Ms. Qiu Qi (), the
spouse of Mr. Xu, holds 5.93% class A interests and 10.74%
class B interests in HBT Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is
taken to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Qiu Qi, so
Mr. Xu collectively holds 86.78% of the total voting rights of
HBT Limited, and in turn is interested in 9.78% of HK Gaoqi.
Accordingly, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by HK Gaogi by virtue of SFO.

2. These Shares represent the share options granted by the
Company under the share option scheme of the Company on
19 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors, chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short position which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which will be required to be entered into the register
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022,
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company
whose interests or short positions are disclosed under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or its Associated Corporations”
above, the following persons and corporations have interests or
short position in the Shares or Underlying Shares which has to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, and who
were expected, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or
more of the Shares is listed as follows:
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Aggregate long positions in the Shares

R 2R &ER

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of the
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held Company
ERATERET
xR & EEME il 8 E RABBOESEE
HK Gaoqi Beneficial Owner 220,475,000 29.69%
EEBIE EREAA
Ms. QIU Qi Interests of controlled 220,475,000 29.69%
corporation (Note 2)
A+ ZRRA A A (FTRE2)
Notes: Bt 5E

1.

Save as disclosed above and the Directors’
disclosed in

Mr. Xu is the director of HK Gaogi, which holds 29.69%
Shares, and the director of HBT Limited, which holds 9.78%
of equity interests in HK Gaogi. Mr. Xu is interested in HK
Gaogi through his 25.55% direct beneficial interests and
9.78% through HBT Limited. HBT Limited has two classes of
shares, namely class A and class B, in which shareholders of
class A and class B have 30 votes and 1 vote per share in the
shareholders’ meeting respectively, and Mr. Xu holds 94.07%
class A interests in HBT Limited and Ms. Qiu Qi, the spouse
of Mr. Xu, holds 5.93% class A interests and 10.74% class B
interests in HBT Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu is taken
to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Qiu Qi, so Mr. Xu
collectively holds 86.78% of the total voting rights of the HBT
Limited, and in turn is interested in 9.78% of HK Gaoq.

By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Qiu Qi, the spouse of Mr. Xu, is
taken to be interested in all the shares held by Mr. Xu.

interests as
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in and

Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or its Associated Corporations”, no person
had interests in shares or short positions in the shares of
the Company or underlying shares which are required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement
or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or parent company was a party and in which a
Director or his connected entity had, directly or indirectly, a
material interest subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

All other related party transactions and balances did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS'’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN A COMPETING

As disclosed in the announcement (the “Announcement”)
dated 13 September 2021 and the circular (the “Circular”)
dated 29 October 2021 of the Company with respect to (i)
the major and connected transaction in relation to the capital
increase in Zhongke Zhenhui; and (ii) the major transaction in
relation to the formation of the JV Company, the Company
has entered into the Capital Increase Agreement and the JV
Agreement on 13 September 2021. Capitalised terms used in
this report shall bear the same meanings as those defined in
the Announcement and the Circular unless the context requires
otherwise.

If the Capital Increase and the Formation of the JV Company
are crystalised, the Group through (i) the JV Company will
engage in equity and/or securities investment business; and
(ii) Zhongke Zhenhui engaged in technical development
and consultation services, investment activities and business
management consultation. The businesses of Nanyue AM
are mainly engaged in asset management, investment
management, equity investment and investment consulting
services through its private equity funds. Mr. Xu is a director
of Nanyue AM and, together with his associates, ultimately
owned as to approximately 71.25% equity interests of Nanyue
AM, therefore, Mr. Xu may be regarded as being interested in
the competing business with the business of the Group.

As the Company’s management and administrative structure
are independent to that of Nanyue AM, and coupled with the
diligence of the independent non-executive Directors and the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
Group is capable of carrying its businesses independently on an
arm’s length basis.

For more details, please refer to the Announcement, the

Circular and the announcement dated 22 November 2021 of
the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) is interested in
a business apart from the Group’s business which competes or
is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, and is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Group are also subject to
compliance with the same code. No incident of non-compliance
was noted by the Company for the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The old share option scheme, which was adopted by the
Company on 24 August 2009, was expired and there was no
outstanding share option. A new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 22 April 2021. The Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing from the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme from 22 April
2021 (the “Date of Adoption”) (that is from 22 April 2021 to
21 April 2031). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to the participants and to promote the
success of the business of the Group. The participants include
any director, employee (full-time and part-time), advisor,
consultant, supplier, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company,
who, in the absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group so as to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any director, employee, advisors consultant, supplier, agent,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company whom the Board considers, in
its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the Date of Adoption and as at the
approval date of refreshment from time to time, excluding for
this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined at the absolute discretion of the
Directors but in any event will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares
as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five consecutive business days immediately preceding
the offer date of that particular option; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date of the particular option.
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Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee of the Share
Option Scheme shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer of the
grant of the option must be made within 10 days from the
date of offer. The exercise period of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board upon
granting the options but in any event must not be more than
10 years commencing on the date of grant. Unless determined
by the Directors otherwise, there is no minimum holding period
before the options can be exercised.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’ approval,
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Share Option Scheme. The Board may seek approval by the
shareholders of the Company at general meeting to refresh the
10% limit. However, the total number of shares available for
issue under exercise of options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme in these circumstances must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the refreshment of the 10%
limit.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 48,294,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 6.50% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue from
time to time and the maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to each eligible participant shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue for the time being in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of offer of the grant.
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The Share Option Scheme does not set out any performance
targets that must be achieved before the share options may be
exercised. However, the Board may at its sole discretion specify,
as part of the terms and conditions of any share option, such
performance conditions that must be satisfied before the share
option can be exercised.

The period during which a share option may be exercised is
determined and notified by the Board to each grantee at the
time of making an offer for the grant of the share option and
such period shall not expire later than ten years from the date
of grant of the share option.

Details of the share options movements during the Year under
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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Number of share options

BREYE
Exercise Granted Balance
Name or category of Date of grant of Price Vesting Balance  during the as at
grantees share options (HKS)  Exercise Period Period as at 1/1/2022 Year 31/12/2022
R-B--%& R-B--%&
i@ -B-BW  RE¥£E +ZA=t+-AH
REAEZTER REEREDS (Bx) fREHAE GRYE G i i &5 6
Directors
gz
Dr. XU Qiang 19/5/2022 0.137 19/5/2022-18/5/2032 N/A & 3,712,000 3,712,000
RaET “E--F “E-_F#RAtNRE TER
AA+hA ZEEZERATNR
Mr. SUN Fei 19/5/2022 0.137 19/5/2022-18/5/2032 N/A - 3,712,000 3,712,000
BREE it St 3 “EZZFRATHRE AR
AA+hA ZEEZERATNR
Other eligible participants:
EoEReEE:
Employee 19/5/2022 0.137 19/5/2022-18/5/2032 N/A - 3,700,000 3,700,000
B8 it k3 ZRZZERATNEE A
iz RN ZE=_%8RA+NA
Business partners 19/5/2022 0.137 19/5/2022-18/5/2032 N/A - 14,832,000 14,832,000
XBEERE il St 3 “E--ERATARE TR
iR ZE-_%8RATNA
Total - 25,956,000 25,956,000
@t

During the Year, 25,956,000 share options have been granted
and no share option was lapsed, cancelled and exercised. The
closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on
which 25,956,000 share options were granted during the Year
was HK$0.137 per Share.

Further details of Share Options Scheme were set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company's corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
23 to 50 of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM for 2023 will be held on Wednesday, 31 May
2023 (the 2023 AGM"). A notice of meeting together with
the circular for the 2023 AGM will be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company according to the Articles of
Association and the GEM Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 25 May 2023, to Wednesday, 31 May 2023, (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending at the 2023
AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 24 May 2023.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year, a permitted indemnity provision that meets
the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the Companies
Ordinance for the benefit of the Directors is in force.

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty by any of the Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers during
the Year and the indemnity provision and Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance remains in force as of the date of
this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in Directors’ information during the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, are set
out below:

Name of Directors

EEMS

Details of Changes
BEFE

¥E T 2 1B R XX

RAFE EREZNEZZFERQREDH
F469(2) 16 B it 17 7€ M 2/ FT 2 BB R XX
BERM-

MBERANRE EFTKEAARAE
ERFBERBERS LYRERETEE
BEATREZBERAMEL BHAEW
EREITERMBEARINAEFA
?ﬁiﬁﬁ WE -BR BERAXIEB ER

MERENCHEEEFNEEHRFRTD
aﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@&ﬁ%ﬂo

ARARERAFEREEEREREEA
BRIBEE Y A RABRIEEE 2 RIRZHE
ARAFHREH BERXERESERER
EBABZEERBRAERAR

EEEHNEY

)\Wﬁiﬁ)&éﬁiﬁiiﬁaﬁﬁ BEERH
///// FE) (RIBEGEM ET AR BIE 17 . 50A(N)EFT
TRWE)FHHNM T :

Dr. Yang Jingjing

BEEBL

Mr. Wang Jun

FHELE

Appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman and
member of nomination committee and member of each of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 4 March 2022.
MRIEBEZ—F=ANBEZERARABUINTES BEEZEEEIRER
KENREZEEGRFNEEEREEGKE -

Resigned as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman and
member of nomination committee and member of each of audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company on 4 March 2022.
R—F_—_%F=H E H %ﬂEZ!SA RAIBEVIHFNITES REZECFRERKE
NhEZZESFHEEEREEGKE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 248 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year comply with
applicable reporting standards, GEM Listing Rules, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

On 14 December 2020, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned
as the auditor of the Company and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
was then appointed as the auditor of the Company thereafter.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022, were audited by Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited. Save as disclosed, there were no other change in
the Company’s independent auditor in the past three years.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited will retire at the end of the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director

31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report

Yo N Tz RN R
A\ Crowe

To the shareholders of
Sino-Life Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
82 to 247, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Y& N Az BRED ¥
BRER
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T8 N A% LA S

Key audit matter

P EsT IR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E AR E FIRETRE

Valuation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties

KAEELMREFURREMENGE

We identified the valuation of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the
fair values.
HAERKAEE L REFUARREYMENEE
RAREBFFHERNEEATER S REFHNEH I
H B Ko (5t o

As disclosed in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amounts of freehold
land and buildings and investment properties were
approximately RMB26,813,000 and RMB6,132,000
as at 31 December 2022 respectively. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, a revaluation deficit
on freehold land and buildings of approximately
RMB911,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income, and a fair value loss on investment properties
of approximately RMB1,231,000 was recognised in
profit or loss.

BINR A M B RERWFI14RI6EE R
FTA=1T—"RH XKAXELHWEBFURKEY
EMBREES IO/ ARMK26,813,0007T & AR
6,132,000 HE-—E-_—&F+_-_A=+—HI*F
B XKAZRITUMEEF I ERHEBANARE
911,000t E 2 MR MIREWE L A FE
BERHOARYE,231,000T RN BETER
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
freehold land and buildings and investment
properties included:
BMBBATEKAZEL M REBFRREDEZ
RFERE:

3 Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s valuation processes and
significant assumptions to assess if these
approaches are in compliance with the
requirements of HKFRSs and industry norms;

. THREEEBNMERRF RNEABRR AT
ZENEREBENEEEMBREERMITE
ERHER

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer's scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

e FEHEMZER BEHORFEHMN I TR
1B R &Y T 85 B N = IS 15K

o Obtaining the detailed work of the Valuer to
evaluate the accuracy and relevance of key
inputs used in the valuation;

e ERMEEMNIEFE UFELEMAH
ABUE 2 EME M RARRIE

3 Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methods used based on our knowledge of the
property markets; and

e REEFHMEMSH THKFEAERN
HEDENAELE: &

3 Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
and assumptions, including unit sale rate by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific
information and market data based on our
knowledge of the property markets.

e REEZHVETESNTH BBEZEFM
FAEERBEEENRTISBEAL AT
ARAABBEIRR (BEELEE)NEE
o
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Y& 7 iz BXED ¥R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB EH AR S R IRETRE

Key audit matter
FgEET SR
KAKELIHRIEFURBEMENGE (&)

As disclosed in notes 2(g) and 2(f) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s freehold land and
buildings and investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer (“Valuer”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations of freehold land and buildings, and
investment properties are disclosed in notes 14 and 16
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

WAnAR & B R M T 2(g) R2(NFT#E B8 - E&EKA
FELHEBFRREMETDIRBEB LS ERMEER
([fEER])ETHEERAFETR B KA ERE
T REFREEMELEMANGEELERR
ABEBEZHFBEDRRBERNGE M BRRMT14R16 ¢

The valuations have been arrived at using direct
comparison method, which are dependent on certain
key inputs and assumptions in respect of prevailing
market conditions such as unit sale rate.
ZERMEDRKAERLBURER HEUARBHARIT
MRZETEREAZIERBR (NELEE) -

TEEDEEERA A

CEC__FER
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T8 N A% LA S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

T8 N A% BLAD S
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE B HHESHBRRMB:
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL &S (#&)
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Otner Comprehensive Income
meEEm MAEMEAE WS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021

—®g-= s e

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Ff 5 ARETR ARET T

Revenue Wy 2% 4 77,969 72,864
Cost of sales and services rendered  $5%& & AR 7% B¢ Z< (38,169) (34,887)
Gross profit EA 39,800 37,977

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment &&¥%¥ 2 AFE

properties (E18) Uz 16 (1,231) 711
Fair value gain on financial BRAFER AR

assets measured at fair value ([ZAFEFAEE])

through profit or loss (“FVTPL") FTECHMBEEZ

RN ERE 19 690 811
Other income and other A R E A
net gains/(losses) Wz, (E518) 35 5 3,007 (10,771)
Selling expenses HER X (1,941) (2,385)
Administrative expenses TR X (31,991) (35,432)
Reversal of impairment losses/ B 5 K H e W IE 2
(impairment losses) recognised EHEEEE
under expected credit loss (“"ECL")  ([FEEAEE&1E])
model on trade and other BRERIET 2 B R
receivables, net BEEERE
CREEE) FHE 6(d) 1,404 (2,797)
Other operating expenses H g X (489) (674)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBARZEE 41 - (31)
Gain on disposal of associates =3 b/ Ly 18 500 =
Profit/(loss) from operations wERH O (EE) 9,749 (12,591)
Finance costs R E A A 6(a) (1,861) (2,182)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrBimiF (E58E) 6 7,888 (14,773)
Income tax expense P8 & 2 7 (7,262) (2,902)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERM(EBEE) 626 (17,675)

Other comprehensive (expense)/ HE2HE (FX) Mk

income
Items that will not be reclassified to #-T & & #7728 2 15 2% /Y
profit or loss: HA :

(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of KA ERE L NIEF 2
freehold land and buildings Bih (B4 Btk 14(c) (911) 3,704
Exchange differences arising on REMEEZER

translation =5 5,607 (2,803)
4,696 901
Item that may be reclassified BEeeEX 7EE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamaEE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEEES
translation of foreign ZENER
operations (8,393) 5,686
Other comprehensive FEHtZE (%)
(expense)/income for the year, W25 (30BRFTE#H)
net of income tax 10 (3,697) 6,587
Total comprehensive expense FSEE2EBAXER
for the year, net of income tax ($0BRFFE %) (3,071) (11,088)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss aﬂd Other Comprehensive |ncome

H iy, 2 | I =

T —_F+-_A=+—BItFE

=

=3 \/

i BEs N

For the year ended 31 December 2022 E}zi

AN

32}

2022 2021
—T/- —E=-—4F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTR AR®ETTT
Profit/(loss) for the year DTALTEIGEEE
attributable to: wF (E548) -
Owners of the Company PINNEIEF =N (847) (9,872)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 1,473 (7,803)
626 (17,675)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ KT ATEEEZE
income attributable to: (FX) Wazz48%E
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE =N (3,290) (5,023)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 219 (6,065)
(3,071) (11,088)
Loss per share BiREE 11
Basic HAR RMB(0.11) cents RMB(1.33) cents
AR%(0.11)% AR®(1.33)0
Diluted e RMB(0.11) cents RMB(1.33) cents
AEE(0.11)% AR¥(1.33)72

The notes on pages 90 to 247 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR e MR R

As at 31 December 2022 AT -_—F+_-_H=+—H

84

2022 2021
—g-= T —4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
s ARETT AREEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R AE 14 31,588 32,773
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 22,918 27,638
Investment properties TEYE 16 6,132 7,401
Intangible assets BREEAE 17 1,158 2,024
Interests in associates B & D R R 2 18 - =
Goodwill B 20 = =
Other receivables and deposits paid £t [fE Y 518 K
BEfi&kE 23 915 44
Deposits for hire of funeral parlours 78 F 78 & 68 M & &
and funeral services centres RGH O ZIRE 23 1,000 1,000
63,711 70,880
CURRENT ASSETS mBEE
Financial assets measured BAFEFABE 2
at FVTPL 2 EE 19 58,777 38,577
Development and formation costs % & fk 37 pk 2K 21 4,657 4,529
Inventories FE 22 1,617 1,625
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A eI A K&
and deposits paid BfE® 23 34,201 30,686
Income tax receivable e U BT 15 AR 29(a) 14 =
Time deposits with original R E| BAR AR 3B = (8 A
maturity over three months B E HiTF 30 24(b) 9,334 =
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 24(a) 112,477 117,557
221,077 192,974
CURRENT LIABILITIES it I=L i
Trade and other payables B REMEMNRIAR
and deposits received B iz % 25 12,971 14,099
Contract liabilities EHEaE 26 89,660 90,207
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 4,757 4,564
Bank borrowings RITIEE 28 1,198 1,192
Income tax liabilities FrEfiaE 29(a) 5,056 3,567
Amounts due to directors JEREE 208 35(e) 2,756 1,563
Amount due to a shareholder BN — R AR R ZKIB 35(f) 10,325 11,899
Provisions B 30 1,380 3,086
128,103 130,177
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 92,974 62,797
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 156,685 133,677
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Contract liabilities ARAaE 26 456 353
Other payables and H A FE A RIE K
deposits received Bz E 25 1,135 =
Amount due to a shareholder BT — R AR R 2 508 35(f) 2,330 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 18,357 22,924
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 3,590 4,812
25,868 28,089
NET ASSETS AEFE 130,817 105,588
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Consolidated Statement of Fimancial Position

AR e MR R

As at 31 December 2022 E’:\:%::E—I—:H =+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5 ARETFR ARETT

EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners EATHA NEIL#ER
of the Company

Share capital [N 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves 1 32 44,000 45,390
113,218 114,608

Non-controlling interests FEfEIRER 17,599 (9,020)
TOTAL EQUITY Ry 130,817 105,588

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director
EE
TEFHTEE

The notes on pages 90 to 247 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.

HEFER _T_=F=—A=+t—H#tE
MEREEHBLAATALTRRESE

Liu Tien-Tsai
Executive Director
2R
HITEE

FIVEF247TBE 2T AZEHE VIR
RZ—8#D e

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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Gonsoliolatepl Statement of Changes in Equity
SE L LES

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHAAEL
Foreign
Statutory Properties currency Share-based
Share Merger Statutory surplus revaluation translation  compensation Other
Share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Non-
capital (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) Accumulated controlling
(Note 31) (0)] (ii)) (i) (iv)) v) (vi)) (vii) (vii)) losses Sub-total interests Total
¥4 HEEE HEER  IBRBEER
R R Bt R L] L L] L] ZHMRER Ribit
.23 (Kit32(b) (Mi&3200) (Wi&k3a(b) (MaE32(b) (Wi&k3a(b) (Ma32(b) (Wek3a(b) (K32 (b)
(K1) (0] (i) (ii)) () ) (i) (vii)) (viii)) RithH Nt kERES £
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT  ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R-¥=-%-5-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 12,058 304 (19,170) = = (151,139) 119,270 (7,544) 111,726
Loss for the year FEEA - - - = - - - - - (9,872) (9,872) (7,803) (17,675)
Surplus on revaluation of KAZELHRETZ
freehold land and buildings RS = = - - - 2354 - - - - 235 1350 3704
Exchange differences arisngon ~ BE B EHHEEZ
translation of foreign EXZR
operations - - - - - - 249 - - - 249 388 2883
Other comprehensiveincome ~ E-fe 2 ki - - - - - 2354 2495 - - - 4849 1738 6,587
Total comprehensive income/  FE2ERE/
(expense) for the year (B%) a8 - - - - - 2354 2495 - - (9.872) (503) (6,065) (11,088)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary 5 HEMEAR
without loss of conrol (BE%=EHE)
(note 40) (Btzta0) > = > = = = = = 361 = 361 (361) =
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) & —FHBAF
( - = - = - - - - - - - 830) (830)
Contribution from
non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 5780 5,780
At31 December 2021 RZ®=-%
+ZA=t-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 12,058 549 (16,675) = 361 (161,011) 114,608 (9,020) 105,588
At 1 January 2022 R-$-Z%#-5-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 12,058 5495 (16,675) o 361 (161,011) 114,608 (9,020) 105,588
(Loss)profit for the year FE(B8) /&7 - - - - - - - - - (847) (847) 1473 626
Deficit on revaluation of KARELHRET
freehold land and buildings E - - - - - (343) - - - - (383) (568) (011
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign AER
operations - - = = = ] (2,100) - - - (2,100) (686) (2,786)
Other comprehensive expense ~ EH2ERR - - - - = (383) (2,100) - - - (2,483) (1,254) (3,697)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ ~ £E 2 (B)/

income for the year et - - - - = (383) (2,100 - - (847) (3,290) 219 (3,071)

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interest of ;
subsidiaries = = = = = = = = = = = 26,400 26.400

Equity-settled share-based
transaction (note 42) - - - - - - - 1,900 - - 1,900 - 1900
At 31 December 2022
69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 12,058 5152 (18,775) 1,900 361 (161,858) 113218 17,59 130,817

The notes on pages 90 to 247 form part of these consolidated 28908 £2478 2 Wit AZ S 46 M5 ®R
financial statements. RZ—#boe
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
selEemnREX

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B AREBTT AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES MEET
Profit/(loss) before taxation B AR A, (EE) 7,888 (14,773)
Adjustments for: R
Amortisation of intangible asset mH A EEE 6(c) 866 578
Finance costs B & A A 6(a) 1,861 2,182
Depreciation of property, ME HERERE
plant and equipment e 6(c) 2,214 2,707
Depreciation of right-of-use CRAREENE
assets 6(c) 4,947 5,031
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B 5 N E th i Uk SR IE
impairment losses recognised ZTEHREEEE
under ECL model on trade BRIET 2 B R
and other receivables, net CREBERE),
B B 18 HE 6(d) (1,404) 2,797
(Written back of provision)/ BR 75 Ak AS (#E &5 E)
provision for cost of service B 5 (1,680) 454
Loss on written off of WEHTE S B 2 B 18
prepayment 5 - 12,013
Fair value loss/(gain) on KREYMEZATFE
investment properties BiE, () 16 1,231 (711)
Revaluation deficit on freehold KAFERELTHRET
land and buildings Z B EEEA 5 - 158
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment R 2 B 5 23 35
Written off of property, plant W BE N &G
and equipment 6(d) 342 -
Gain on lease modification HEBR 2 W 5 (9) (29)
Gain on disposal of associates BB A Al 2 Was 18 (500) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HRBARZ
ER 41 - 31
Interest income F B WA 5 (267) (587)
Fair value gain on financial BRAFEF AR
assets measured at FVTPL AECHMBEEL
N ERE 19 (690) (811)
Recognition of equity-settled WRUREEERD
share-based transactions RERIZIRS 42 1,900 =
Net exchange gain b X s 5 R 5 (39) (28)
16,683 9,047
FEEDEESRAT —B--FFH 87
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FMeEReTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—F-= —T—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARETT ARETIT
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL ZiEZSEE)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERD () 41 (79)
Increase in trade and other B 5 N E At e W R IE K
receivables and deposits paid SRRl (1,476) (1,427)
Decrease in financial BAFEFTABDE
assets measured at FVTPL ZHEEERLD —
— mutual funds/unit trusts REeEKZzEE
established in Taiwan HE BHfsE 1,277 518
Decrease in development and 7 B I B 7 R A Rk
formation costs 33 13
Decrease in trade and other B 5 & H A FE S 308
payables and deposits received B REWIRE (354) (1,724)
(Decrease)/increase in contract adaE ORd)
liabilities 1 0 (556) 8
Decrease in amount due to EN—ZREREZ
a shareholder FRIE R 24(c) (258) =
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due  FE{tE= =5 IE
to directors #mn, Crd) 1,125 (3,625)
(168) (6,316)
CASH GENERATED FROM KEMRES
OPERATIONS 16,515 2,731
Income taxes paid in BEXfTHEARLME
the People’s Republic of China ([ El) Z ST
("PRC") 29(a) (6,273) (3,138)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ BEEBRE(FA)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES IR& %% 10,242 (407)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BWEK
equipment B 14 (2,474) (1,303)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWHE  HE&E&EZ
plant and equipment FriS 503A 36 235
Net cash outflow arising on e —EHE AR
disposal of a subsidiary EENBEeRE TR 41 - (907)
Purchase of an intangible asset HBE-—HERLEE 17 - (2,600)
Purchase of financial assets BEEATFERA
measured at FVTPL — equity B2 M EE—
securities, debt instruments and REBEIN LT 2B
exchange traded funds listed rEHF BBIAR
outside Hong Kong RGFMEEES (83,871) (4,906)
Proceeds from disposal of HEEATFET ABZE
financial assets measured SECUMBEEZ
at FVTPL — equity FriSsRIB— &
securities, debt instruments and RONETH 2 RANFE
exchange traded funds listed BEHTARR S
outside Hong Kong BEEES 62,884 1,282
Placement of time deposits FHUEBE R (13,732) =
Withdrawn of time deposits REUE B R 4,689 =
Interest received B F & 5 267 587
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BEREFMAREEE
ACTIVITIES (32,201) (7,612)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
selEemnREX

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—=g-C —E-—fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 2 ARETT AREFTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& iEE
Capital contribution from M A R AR A
non-controlling interest of A
subsidiaries 26,400 5,780
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE 24(c) (1,177) (1,161)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITEERNE 24(c) (92) (105)
Repayment of lease liabilities, BRESAEB (B
including related interests MEEEFE) 24(c) (6,362) (6,480)
NET CASH GENERATED LSRR (FTA)
FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING H&FHE
ACTIVITIES 18,769 (1,966)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HEREEZEEYD
CASH EQUIVALENTS WY FHE (3,190) (9,985)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W®—HA—HZHE&R
AT 1 JANUARY HE&EEEYD 117,557 123,674
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE 4MSEZXRSEFH 2L
RATE CHANGES (1,890) 3,868
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W®W+=-—A=+—Hz2
AT 31 DECEMBER HERRELEEY 112,477 117,557
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF He&RRELEEUELR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  ##7
Cash and bank balances He KIRITHER 24(a) 112,477 117,557

The notes on pages 90 to 247 form part of these consolidated ~ £590H = 247EZ M BzEiRe UM% R
financial statements. =Z— 2D

FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR 89



90

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Cayman lIslands Companies Law. Its shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
provision of funeral and related services in the PRC,
Taiwan and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
the PRC ("Hong Kong"), sale of burial plots and
tombstones and provision of cemetery maintenance
services in Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”),
provision of advisory services on stem cells and
immunocytes in the PRC and sales of advanced
biotechnical machinery and other electronic products in
Hong Kong. The Company and its subsidiaries are herein
collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address of
the Company’s registered office is The Grand Pavilion
Commercial Centre, Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road,
P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company's principal place
of business was changed from Unit 601, 6/F Ovest,
No. 77 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong to
18/F, Ovest, No. 77 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong with effect from 15 December 2022.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “"GEM Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group's interests in
associates.

2.

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Items included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollars ("US$"”). The
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB"),
Taiwan dollars (“NTD"), Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and Vietnamese dong (“VND") for subsidiaries
established/incorporated in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Vietnam respectively. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise
indicated, which is different from the functional
currency of the Company as majority of the
Group’s transactions are denominated in RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that the following assets
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties;
- freehold land and buildings; and

- financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 44.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

2.

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income or expense for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income or expense
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position depending on the nature of
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses, unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as
at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment.

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group's
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee's net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(n)). At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group's share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate, after applying the ECL model to
such other long-term interests where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see note 2(h)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(s).

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
end of the reporting period.

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)):

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see note
2(h)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

ERTBE (&)

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation;
and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will
be credited to profit or loss to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to
profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- freehold land is not depreciated;

- buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- The Group's interests in buildings situated
on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion;

- Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

- Furniture, fixtures 2 to 5 years
and office
equipment

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets
are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in property revaluation reserve in respect
of those assets to accumulated losses.

Property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, including cost of testing whether
the revalued assets is functioning properly and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Sale proceeds of items that are produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management (such as samples produced when
testing whether the asset is functioning properly),
and the related costs of producing those items
are recognised in the profit or loss. The cost of
those items are measured in accordance with the
measurement requirements of HKAS 2 /nventories.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated losses.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(g) and 2(n)), except for the following
types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment properties are
carried at fair value in accordance with
note 2(f); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is
the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2(g).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from the
right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments
in debt securities carried at amortised cost.
Any difference between the initial fair value
and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments
made and is included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

& B 1% R M 5

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the condition set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e RS R AR Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)
(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2(s).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2(h)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

0

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

(i)~ Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other income
and other net gains/(losses)” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and cash
equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12
months ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

(1)

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(1)

(1)

(iif)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effect.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward
looking macroeconomic information.

(i)

= — —

B _F+_A=+—HIEFE

ERTBE (&)

BT A (&)
HMHEE (&)
REBEEBMEHREERIE
5% 78 #E 17 RUE &Y 1h B BT 75
BERE (&)

(v)

BEIEEBRME
R HEE

BEHREEBEENAER
BOBE BHBRKRERE
JE (B 3 £ B0 18
RIEE) KEQR R A
B B R RED
BAXBEEZHMGBINR
BEEBERAEEER
RERE - BAHREEBHEN

flr 5t R BR LA A 8 3% 4G
HMEBRIESNMEERTZ

RERBENESTE A
SEKERBAEGEEE
BREBEREAREE N
Z K KA K AE S S
B Al BE 1t & K 1R R A B
HHEREIRAERE =

EEETE 5 E K RIED
EEHEEEE-

—MRimE BHEEEIE
RIBBEHNPRENEE
ENMBEEHNRESRE
B 7N £ [F] 78 B Y BX B BT
ERERNEZAMNERE
W 1% ) 2 R E E
BERAN R -

ETESRERENRE
HEHEERELERE
i@ BB A R K BT RE
FERBEENEHBE
EEMIEEREREEE-

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022

(i)

EETBR (&)

BB TA (&)

HBEELEE (&)

REBEFBV GRS ERNE

5% 78 17 BB R 1 B BT 1S

BEERE (&)

(v) BHIEEERMNTE
RHgER (&)
RERTGEMS A5H
DU E B A TR

o BHIKR:

e BEBAME -HRE
SERE SW

o HEEEFA (M
B)-

DHEBEEREE iR

AR B 48 2 ME PK 4 4B

. E*EMZE%?EL % ¥

Ly

s

MBWATIREYHE
ENREAESE KRFE
MBEELREERE"

HABWARIZE /R
BEEMBHRATE-

AEERAEMB TR
BAAEREERNES
AR (B Wk s Sk B 1R
HEZRERKREBBE
ERERUEREEE
TTHREHE-



Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no
contractual obligation for the Group to deliver cash
or other financial assets or the Group has the sole
discretion to defer payment of distribution and
redemption of principal amount indefinitely are
classified as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade
and other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due
to directors and amount due to a shareholder are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows as a result of interest
rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or
financial liability to which the amortised cost
measurement applies as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform, the Group applies the practical
expedient to account for these changes by
updating the effective interest rate, such change in
effective interest rate normally has no significant
effect on the carrying amount of the relevant
financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by interest
rate benchmark reform if and only if, both these
conditions are met:

o the change is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark
reform; and

o the new basis for determining the contractual

cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the change).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

1)

(k)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The following intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- trademark 5 to 10 years

- computer system 2 to 3 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gain and loss arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Development and formation costs
The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site
which will be completed for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
burial plots.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

0

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones
is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is
determined by an apportionment of the total
development costs (see note 2(k)) attributable to
completed but unsold units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

EETBR (&)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(i).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to

identify indications that the following assets may

be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an

impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- deposits paid and prepayments;

- interests in associates; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

In addition, for goodwill,

intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (that is a cash-
generating unit (“CGU")). A portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset
is allocated to an individual CGU if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
CGU if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, every three months. At
the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& B 1% R M 5

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(p) Share-based payments

(i)

Share options granted to employees
The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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AR MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(p) Share-based payments (Continued)

()

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(p) Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Share options granted to non-
employees

Share options granted to non-employees
Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair value of
the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably,
in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains
the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses
(unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except

to the extent that they relate to items recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(f), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied,
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

i.e. when

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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T A

& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group's performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good
or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided
by the other party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentive granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets
or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of non-PRC operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BETBE (8&)
(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting (w) 7 EPHRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Company’s executive
directors, which are the chief operating decision
maker of the Company for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3.

HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework
COVID-19-Related

Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts

— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The Group has not applied any new standard or
amendment that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(a)

4R B

& B 1% R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

W 25 & 53 B & ¥

(a) W=D IF
BEBZEMmARBEES DN

customers by major products or services lines is as RKEEP &K 2 Wm» iF
follows: s 8
Disaggregation of revenue for the year Bl __—_&F£+=-H
ended 31 December 2022 St —HULEFEEH Kz S
Stem cells and
immunocytes
Funeral and other
services businesses Total
BABR
Gz
BRI REMES Eh)
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Major products and services TEERRRE
Funeral services and cremation services provided ~ AEEEE 7 B & LBEREH L
in funeral parlous and funeral service centres ~ #24% 2 BERE LA LIRS
under the Group's management 74,468 - 74,468
Funeral arrangement and related consultancy ~ BEZHRIAEZARE
services 2,809 - 2,809
Sales of burial plots and tombstones HEEMRER 692 - 692
Provision of advisory service on stem cellsand ~ REBMIA R &R AHARE
immunocytes = = =
77,99 - 77,969
Timing of revenue recognition W3 R
At a point in time RE-BRE 5,087 - 5,087
Over time REBSRIER 72,882 - 72,882
77,969 - 77,969
Primary geographical market TEBERS
The PRC EF 74,468 - 74,468
Talwan =) 1,531 - 1,531
Hong Kong &k 1,278 - 1,278
Vietnam il 692 - 692
77,969 - 77,969
FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WZROIMEE (E)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) W=k (&)

BE_F_-_—F+_-H
=1 —HIFEN K 5

Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021

Stem cells and

142

immunocytes
Funeral and other
services businesses Total
El
RN
BERE REMER &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Major products and services FEEMRES
Funeral services and cremation services provided  AEBER 2 AR E REERH L
in funeral parlous and funeral service centres 24t 2 BERE K ML R
under the Group’s management 69,561 - 69,561
Funeral arrangement and related consultancy ~ BEZ M RAREIH AR
services 2,342 - 2,342
Sales of burial plots and tombstones HEZHMRER 228 - 228
Provision of advisory service on stem cellsand RSN R & R AR HRE
immunocytes - 733 733
72,131 733 72,864
Timing of revenue recognition W AR
At a point in time RE-FHH 5,532 - 5,532
Over time REHEY 66,599 73 67,332
72,131 733 72,864
Primary geographical market FEWETS
The PRC i 69,561 733 70,294
Taiwan =) 1,450 - 1,450
Hong Kong &b 892 - 892
Vietnam il 228 - 228
72,131 733 72,864
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

Funeral services and cremation services

The Group offers services of planning funeral
arrangement and interment, organising and hosting
of the funeral. Revenue from funeral services is
recognised when services are provided. Except for
sales of prepaid funeral services packages offered
to individuals, payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the funeral services
are provided. Sales of prepaid funeral services
packages is sales of funeral services based on a
contract prior to death occurring. The payment is
due when the contract of prepaid funeral services
packages is signed, which gives rise to contract
liabilities at the inception of a contract, until the
revenue recognised when the funeral service is
offered. Details of the prepaid funeral services
packages contract are disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Funeral arrangement and related consultancy
services

Revenue from funeral arrangement and related
consultancy services is recognised when services are
provided. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the funeral arrangement
and related consultancy services are provided.

Sales of burial plots and tombstones

Revenue from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones is recognised when the control of
burial plots and tombstones is transferred to the
customer, being when the right to use of burial
plots and tombstones has been passed. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the burial plots and
tombstones.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

WamBRkaEBEE (&)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts
with customers (Continued)

Provision of advisory service on stem cells and
immunocytes

Revenue from advisory service on stem cells
and immunocytes is recognised when services
are performed. Advisory service on stem cells
and immunocytes is advisory service based on a
contract prior to the advisory service. Payment
of the transaction price is due when the contract
of advisory service is signed, which gives rise to
contract liabilities at the inception of a contract,
until the revenue recognised when the advisory
service is rendered.

Sales of biotechnical machineries and other
electronic products

Revenue from sales of biotechnical machineries
and other electronic products is recognised when
the control of such products is transferred to
the customer, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer's specific location.
Transportation and handling activities that occur
before customers obtain control are considered
as fulfilment activities. Following the delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risk of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 90
days upon delivery.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied
performance obligations on the above mentioned
revenue, have original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines and geography. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally
to the executive directors of the Company (the
“Executive Directors”), which are the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group had below two reportable segments:

(A)

Funeral services: Provision of funeral related
service, including arrangement services and
related consultancy services, provision of
funeral and cremation services and sale of
burial plots and tombstones; and

Stem cells and immunocytes and other
business: Provision of advisory service on
stem cells and immunocytes and sales of
biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products.

The segment information provided
to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is
as follows:

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Executive Directors
monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible asset and current assets with
the exception of certain financial assets
measured at FVTPL and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables and deposits received, contract
liabilities, lease liabilities, bank borrowings,
amounts due to directors, amount due to
a shareholder, provisions and income tax
liabilities attributable to the activities of
the individual segments and borrowings
managed directly by the segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W EBE9DSEE (8)
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) D EER (,,E
(A) The segment information provided (A) B =—EFE=-=-FK

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is
as follows: (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

Segment results represent the earnings and
loss of each segment without allocation
of fair value (loss)/gain on investment
properties, fair value gain on financial
assets measured at FVTPL, net reversal
of impairment losses/(impairment losses)
recognised under ECL model on trade and
other receivables, unallocated other income
and other net gains/(losses), unallocated
head office and corporate expenses, finance
costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. YW RS EE (E)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) o3

(A) The segment information provided (A) BE=-_ZFE-—-FF
to the Executive Directors for the —E-—-F+ZH
reportable segments for the years =+ —HIFEEMH
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is FHITEZWARE
as follows: (Continued) T B 5 EE AW

T (#)
Segment results, assets and liabilities PHEE BEERAE
(Continued) (%)

For the purpose of assessment by the
Executive Directors, the finance costs on
bank borrowings and lease liabilities were
not included in segment results while the
bank borrowings and lease liabilities have
been included in the segment liabilities.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive
Directors are provided with segment
information concerning interest income and
expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, deficit on
revaluation of freehold land and buildings,
fair value gain on financial assets measured
at FVTPL, net reversal of impairment losses/
(impairment losses) recognised under ECL
model on trade and other receivables,
depreciation and amortisation,
tax expense, and additions to non-current
segment assets (including property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets) used by the segments in
their operations.
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AR e RS R AR Y At

Fortheyearended31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wi RSEEE (E)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) oEER (%E)

(A) The segment information provided (A) BZ-—EFE-_—_FF
to the Executive Directors for the —F=- - J’%E 7" - A
reportable segments for the years =+ —HIFEEMH
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is THTEEFNAHKE
as follows: (Continued) o B Ry 7 B8 & KW

(A ok g)
Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE BERERE
(Continued) (&)
Information regarding the Group's reportable @AM EBEE-_TE_—_F
segments as provided to the Executive kZZ2=Z—%+=ZA
Directors for the purposes of resources =+ —HIEFEZER
allocation and assessment of segment 7 B R FEfE o 28 & 3R M
performance for the years ended 31 HITESREHEZAEH
December 2022 and 2021 is set out below: ISl (v - =
m
Year ended 31 December
BEtZR=t+-BLEE
2022 2021
ot St —B--%
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Funeral and other
services business Total services business Total
EARE 24
SRR eRiH
RERE  RARER @it BERE  RALES 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFE  ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR ARETR
Segment revenue
- Funeral services and cremation services provided in
funeral parlous and funeral service centres under
the Group’s management f 74,468 - 74,468 69,561 - 69,561
- Funeral arrangement and related consultancy services —’f?ﬂ ZH Wﬁﬁﬁn 2,809 - 2,809 2,342 = 2,342
- Sales of burial plots and tombstones - HERWRER 692 - 692 28 - 28
- Provision of advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes - - - - 33 733
71,969 = 77,969 2131 733 72,864
Segment operating profit/{loss) 16,697 (301) 16,396 3,07 (520) 2,551
Other items:
Amounts included in the measure of segment operating profit/{loss):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (2,084) (88) 2,172) (1,765) (44) (1,809)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (4,792) - (4,792) (4,785) (182) (4,967)
Amortisation of intangible assets (866) - (866) (578) = (578)
Loss on written off of prepayment - - - (12,013) - (12,013)
Written back of provision/(provision) for cost of service 1,680 - 1,680 (454) - (454)
Amounts not included in the measure of segment operating profit/(loss) E
but reqularly reported to Executive Directors:
Interest income 217 - 217 561 1 562
Finance costs (1,849) - (1,849) (2,131) (49) (2,180)
Deficit on revaluation of freehold land and buildings - - - (158) = (158)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets measured as FVTPL
(234) - (234) 340 - 340
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) recognised
under ECL model on trade and other receivables, net
1,400 (109) 1291 (2,566) = (2,566)
Income tax (expense)/credit (7,262) 14 (7,248) (2,888) (14) (2,902)
Others:
Additions of property, plant and equipment 1,462 - 1,462 840 463 1,303
Additions of right-of-use assets 412 - M2 - - -
Additions of intangible assets REBVEE - - - 2,600 = 2,600
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& B 1% R M 5

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

(A)

B+ A=+—BItEE

W RS EBEL (&)
(b) ZEWMEHR (,E)

The segment information provided (A) BZ—_E-_-FF
to the Executive Directors for the —EFE - - fl-"' +=A
reportable segments for the years =+ —HIFEEMH
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is FHTEZEHNITRE
as follows: (Continued) 7 B R 5 B8 & K W
T (#4&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities PHEE BEERAE
(Continued) (%)
There are no inter-segment sales during the REEHMES MBS
year (2021: Nil). (ZBE=—F:\)
The following table presents segment TREIIR T
assets and segment liabilities of the Group’s T —&%+ = A
reportable segments as at 31 December 2022 =+ —HASEEAT®RE
and 2021: DEE D EBEE KD H
AR
2022 2021
ot o 3 —E-—%
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Funeral and other
services businesses Total services businesses Total
EARR i
SR ER
BERB REMER @t BERYE REME FCE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment assets HHEE 220,613 7,469 228,082 234,537 4,160 238,697
Segment liabilities AHAfE 127,695 8,899 136,594 135,452 6,048 141,500
FEEGEEERAT —ZT-—FFRH
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AR e RS R AR Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wi RSEEE (E)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEIER (&)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment (B) A/I#EDH WKz 1A
revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities w BEE-BERAM
and other items HE Z ¥k

2022 2021
k- oot 3 —E_—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B E ARBTR AREFT
Revenue g
Total reportable segment revenue  A] & % 2P Uk a5 A 58
and consolidated revenue Kbz e W 77,969 72,864
Profit or loss B
Total reportable segment AEEINAEFELEZ
profit derived from Group's AR 5 B0 A R R
external customers 16,396 2,551
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment % & %)% X F{&
properties (E#B) Mz 16 (1,231) 711
Fair value gain on financial BATEFABRTE
assets measured at FVTPL ZHBEENATE
Wi 19 690 811
Unallocated other income and 5’% @EH YA B E A
other net gains/(losses) =/ (6E) 38 1,327 1,242
Net reversal of impairment losses/ LATRIEZTEHM*“
(impairment losses) recognised BREENET 2
under ECL model on BRERREEE
B8 CRERBE)FE
— Trade receivables - B S IE 6(d),
34(a) (302) (400)
— Other receivables - E i fE YR IE 6(d),
34(a) 1,706 (2,397)
Finance costs BE A 6(a) (1,861) (2,182)
Unallocated head office and ADFRBBRARFAL
corporate expenses (8,837) (15,109)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before &R ABRFATGF,/ (EE)
taxation 7,888 (14,773)
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& B 1% R M 5

n\/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BEZE=ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WZE RS BEFE (F)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) D EBER (&)
(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment (B)

revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities

T & 5 5 - A
#BE -BMRAM

and other items (Continued) HE ¥R (&)
2022 2021
—g--F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR AREFIT
Assets aE
Total reportable segment assets AmEDHEELE 228,082 238,697
Unallocated head office and RAOBEHRAREE
corporate assets
— Cash and cash equivalents -BERBESEEY 15,233 15,041
— Time deposits with original - REI B RA =
maturity over three months AR TR 9,334 -
- Financial assets measured -BAYEFAER
at FVTPL AEZHMBEE 26,006 4,095
— Other deposits paid and -HMBERNZE: R
prepayments B FHIE 4,028 3,706
- Others H A 2,105 2,315
Consolidated total assets TEEERLE 284,788 263,854
Liabilities BiE
Total reportable segment liabilities ~ AJ ¥R 2 A &R 5 136,594 141,500
Unallocated head office and ANRBIRAEAEE
corporate liabilities
— Amount due to a shareholder - —BRR A 12,098 11,390
— Other payables and accruals - HERRIE R
FE & FRIE 4,142 3,921
— Others - Hith 1,137 1,455
Consolidated total liabilities TeEaEesE 153,971 158,266

TEEDEEERA A

CEC__FER
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AR e RS R AR Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wi RSEEE (E)

(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) oEER (8F)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable (B) A/I#EDH WKz 1A
segment revenue, profit or loss, w HEE - BEREM
assets, liabilities and other items HHZH 8 (&)
(Continued)

Other items HibIHH
Year ended 31 December
BET-R=t-HLEE
2022 2021
k- et 3 “E--f
Total Total
reportable reportable
segment Consolidated segment Consolidated
amount Unallocated total amount  Unallocated total
28§ B
SR FOE & HiEE AR @it
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT AREFR ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
Other items: HHER:
Amounts included in the measure of FESBEERT/ (BB
segment operating profit/(loss): LEH:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% * R Rt E (2172) (@2) (2,214) (1,809) (898) (2,707)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE (4,792) (155) (4,947) (4.967) (64) (5,031)
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEERY (866) - (866) (578) = (578)
Loss on written off of prepayment HEBAREZEE - - - (12,013) - (12,013)
Written back of provision/(provision) for cost BERARERD/ (BE)
of service 1,680 - 1,680 (454) - (454)
Amounts not included in the measure of segment  Kif AR BELEF/ (HE)
operating profit/(loss) but regularly reported EEBmuTEzREneE:
to Executive Directors:
Interest income KA 217 50 267 562 25 587
Finance costs BERK (1,849) (12) (1,861) (2,180) @) (2.182)
Deficit on revaluation of freehold land and KARBLHRET 2B EE
buildings Bt = - - (158) - (158)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BATEGABSHE BB
measured as FVTPL BENTE(BR) /s (234) 924 690 340 an 811
Reversal of impairment losses/ BAREMERTE BEEE
(impairment losses) recognised under BRENET 2 ERR
ECL model on trade and BEFEEE/
other receivables, net (FEER) 1,291 113 1,404 (2,566) (231) (2,797)
Income tax expense FEHEX (7,248) (14) (7,262) (2,902) - (2,902)
Others: L]
Additions of property, plant and equipment RENE BEREE 1,462 1,012 2,474 1303 - 1,303
Additions of right-of-use assets REGRREE 412 - 412 - 368 368
Additions of intangible assets REERVEE - - - 2,600 - 2,600
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4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(o)

Geographic information

The following set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers; and (ii) the Group'’s
property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, right-of-use assets, intangible assets,
interests in associates, goodwill, other receivables
and deposits paid and deposits for hire of funeral
parlours and funeral services centres (“Specified
Non-Current Assets”).

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical locations
of Specified Non-Current Assets are based on the
physical location of the assets, in case of property,
plant and equipment, the physical location to
which they are located. In the case of right-of-use
assets, intangible assets, interests in associates,
goodwill, other receivables and deposits paid and
deposits for hire of funeral parlours and funeral
services centres, it is based on the location of the

& B 1% R M 5

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

W RyEBEE (F)
(c) HEEHR

AT #0515 BRG)A & B 2%k 8 5h
REP W M(iNVAEEZ
WE - BEIRRE REME-
CREEE BVEE R
EREMEDS BE - HEMER
FERENESUARERABES
EMBEREPL2ES (15
ERRBDEE]) 2HEEF -

BPZAER T EREHR
B AR E a2 & 5 E JF
MEEE 2 PR R AR &
EfRERUESELEMBY
X -BERZE BIAEDE
REEECERUBERESE-
WREREEE BFEE-

REERRMER BE H
KRB MEMiZE A RE

RERELRBERE T LZEK
T RINENRZFEELRE

operation to these assets are allocated. TSP R A o
Revenue from Specified
external customers Non-Current Assets
REMRER 2K REFRYEE
For the year ended As at
31 December 31 December
BE+T-A=t+-HILEE R+=A=+-H
2022 2021 2022 2021
“¥-Z§g =% CZBIZZHE —ZT-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETR ARBTX
The PRC H 74,468 70,294 31,917 37,688
Taiwan = 1,531 1,450 30,565 33,073
Hong Kong £ 1,278 892 1,055 60
Vietnam i 692 228 174 59
77,969 72,864 63,711 70,880
Information about major customers FTEEFEH
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, BE_T__FR-FT=_—%

revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

TZA=+—BLFE #HE
KEEME-SIREP 2

EAREBRZF10%T A ko
THEGEEERAT —E--FER
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& M 1% Rk M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

T A

5. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET 5. HWARHEMUE (&
GAINS/(LOSSES) 8) T8
2022 2021
—E-—F —EF -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARMET T
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF B2 F B A 267 587
Total interest income on financial assets R # KA & 2
measured at amortised cost M EEZHE
WA %58 267 587
Sundry income FEIEMA 643 846
Rental income from investment properties & & ¥3 & WA 299 221
Government grants B 48 BY 93 178
Deficit on revaluation of freehold KAEELTHRIEFZ
land and buildings (note 14(c)(ii)) B EESA
(FEE140)(i) ) - (158)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  ME R &
equipment Z 18 (23) (35)
Gain on lease modification (note 15) HE Bz W=
(Mt5E15) 9 29
Written back of provision/(provision) RIS R A B B/
for cost of service (note 30) (#EfE) (M3E30) 1,680 (454)
Loss on written off of prepayment MESHTE S RIE 2
(note 23(e)) BB (F5E23(e)) - (12,013)
Net exchange gain b 5 e % 5B 39 28
3,007 (10,771)
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AR e B Rk Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRBigiidad ~(E#E)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBATER, (BB &Mk,
(crediting) the followings: (FFA) THIEEREE :

2022 2021
-z —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETIT
(a) Finance costs (a) RUERRA
Interest on lease liabilities (note 15) HEaBEZHNE
(FFzE15) 1,769 2,077
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEEZHE 92 105
Total interest expenses on financial W IR A FEEA
liabilities not measured at FVTPL B E 2%
BEMNEMZ B 1,861 2,182
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BEIRAE (BIEEE
emoluments) F oM )
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITEREM
& %1 23,787 27,251
Contributions to defined E R FURIRET &
contribution retirement plans HFR 1,446 1,238
Share-based payments VARR D A 2R 2 93K 686 -

25,919 28,489
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AR e RS R AR Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6. B H e F  (EBiE)
(Continued) (45)
BE AT AL (B5E)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/

R Ll

156

(crediting) the followings: (Continued) (st A) TNHBBRETE: (8)
2022 2021
—T=-= —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREEF T
(c) Depreciation and amortisation (c) & R i#s
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mk
(note 14) (FF7E14) 2,214 2,707
Right-of-use assets (note 15) EAEEE (MFE15) 4,947 5,031
Intangible assets (note 17) mEE (M17) 866 578
8,027 8,316
(d) Other items (d H#mEH
Auditors’ remuneration 2 EN I &
— audit services — AR 902 954
— non-audit services —3EF TR - 207
Cost of inventories FEKA 9,684 6,871
Rental income from investment KEMERS WA
properties less direct outgoing WE R
of Nil (2021: Nil) (T —%F:
z) (299) (221)
Lease payments for property, RN ]
plant and equipment not HMER KR
included in the measurement (T AHES
of lease liabilities (note 15) BZETE)
(MI5E15) 500 240
Impairment losses recognised B S EBGRIA 2
under ECL model on trade FEHEEEE
receivables, net BRI 2
(note 34(a)) BERBE
B8 F 5
(MI5E34(a)) 302 400
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ H b e WERIE 2
impairment losses recognised BEEEEE
under ECL model on other BRI 2
receivables, net (note 34(a)) BRER ORESE
E1),mEEE
FEE (P EE34(a)) (1,706) 2,397
(1,404) 2,797
Written off of property, WEE Y BB KR E
plant and equipment (note 14) (FH5E14) 342 =
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& B 1% R M 5

/\\/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. ZEaEBERZHEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
2022 2021
—g-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR T T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (note 29(a)) ~ A BIMZEFTSH
(MIsE29(a) )
— current year —REE 4,007 2,888
— under-provision in prior years —BEFERETE 3,269 =
7,276 2,888
Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 29(a)) BBMEH (M5E29@))
— current year —REE - 14
— over-provision in prior years — AT FERERE (14) =
(14) 14
Total et 7,262 2,902
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong (@) WEEBNESHEM A FSR

Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax
of the qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on
the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit above
HK$2 million.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Independent State of
Samoa (“Samoa”) and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
for both years.

ZHE AEREEAERHE2ES
7 7T 2 %8 B 5 428.25% 5T B - 1 R
2B BB L2 s M E16.5%5"
M- FEMBEFNEREFNEZ
SEEBZMNGEREZRR —BX
165%E+@‘=L Hit 6 ERERE

R B BB B IR G5 R B R A
Eﬁézﬁ%ﬁémﬁiﬁs.zs% i &8
B2E BB TG BRI A
16.5% °

AR AEEREE T -_—_F+=
R=+T—BHIEFEBEEEEEL
{F {a] & 3R B0 F] - 8030 & 1 BB
ST

AEERMEFEABEBAR=
RS TEE BB ([FEERE]) R
REREAES ([RBRLES])A
SRR SR Z A TRIA

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B 1%y &< BT EE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

l_\_l
e

7.

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, other than
Chongging Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited
("Chongqging Xizhou"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the remaining subsidiaries
operating in the PRC are subject to Enterprise Income Tax
rate at 25% in accordance with the Law of the PRC on
Enterprises Income Tax.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all subsidiaries
operating in the PRC (including Chongging Xizhou)
are subject to Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25% in
accordance with the Law of the PRC on Enterprises
Income Tax.

In prior years, Chongging Xizhou considered to a
preferential tax rate of 15% in accordance with 7G&f
ABELEMBFHMEE since 2011 and up to 2020;
and (AR TEEABARBECEMGERBRNRE)
(Announcement No. 23 of the Ministry of Finance
in 2020) issued in April 2020 (collectively the “PRC
Preferential Tax Regulations”) for a period from 1
January 2021 to 30 December 2030, when the annual
revenue from the encouraged business exceeded 60% of
Chongging Xizhou total revenue in a fiscal year.

During the year, Chongging Xizhou was notified by the
local tax authority that its principal activities did not
meet the criteria for an encouraged business under the
PRC Preferential Tax Regulations. This led to Chongging
Xizhou being subjected to a 25% Enterprise Income
Tax rate. Following negotiations between Chongging
Xizhou and the local tax authority, the local tax authority
reaffirmed its original decision, resulting in Chongging
Xizhou paying an additional amount of approximately
RMB3,269,000.
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GERBRZMEH (R)

GEE

(#&)

HE-_ZT-_—4F+=-A=+—H1
FE BRAARZEEZ2ENBA
RIEEHARERBEERAR ([E
Ef%%J)ﬂ\Eﬁ%R‘\EF B 4% & 7 Bft
ARRIBRBERBECEMER AR
B%Zm%% ot B R AR o

BE-—B-—F+-A=+— a¢
AR BEE 2 HED
(@%Egﬁm)m@ﬁ$lmiﬁ
18 B4 12225 % ) B 00 1 2 P 18
Bio

RBEFE EEHAE-F——
e RE T A
HORFBHEE RS T —

ifﬂfaﬂzi_7¢+ H
—t+EHEBE-_T_ZTFMA
B (R TEERDAMELE
FIERMEBENRAE) (FRIAE
[2020]1%23%) (BB [FEER
mmenﬁ¢¥ﬁw% ER
BME R—EVRFEEEBREED
NFEWRABBEESABARKRAD
60% ©

RZEFE EEGHAEZE MG
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BEEEMBERE T ENEES
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BB S EEERE ZEEER
HEEAE EEHRABIINIHLH
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

& B 1% R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) B 5

(d)  Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan"), (d)
a direct subsidiary of the Company, Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“Bau De") and Bu Lao Lin Limited (“BLL"), both
of which are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2021:
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan.
No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as Bau Shan has accumulated tax losses brought
forward which exceed the estimated assessable profits for
the year, and Bau De and BLL have no assessable profits
for both years.

(e) Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan (e)

Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2021:
20%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision
for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao
Son Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for
both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

FEHRBRZAEH (R)

C(#)

AABEHEMNBEARE ILAMRE
BHAERAR ([EWL])RARRR
MEENB AR EREDSERND
BRAR ([BE]) RTEKRBRA
Al ([REM]) BIRE & BB
T B AR R K 2 - IR E SR T U A Y
17% (ZE=—F:17% ) B & &
EMBH AR E LARSFEE &R
M2 RIEEBBATET R R
M BEERTEMNRBEFEDS
EERTEAN W ER e E b
FRS R 1E L B4 o

ARRlzHZEIZEHREHRB R
ABLEGETERAA ([E LWL
A4 %5 |) & Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa
Corporation ([HLV Duc Hoa |)7B1E
BUEERERRERETE ZER
Bt F4220% (ZFE=—F :20% )
CHEHMMNEECEMSH AR
Z | A @ M HLV Duc Hoat ™ fE 4
EHEERTGEF - Eﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘itﬁ
EMSHELEE

BERHEFEZHEHAIRS
sHRAL (EE) 2R :

2022 2021
—g=-= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSFTT ARETT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRE AR A (EE) 7,888 (14,773)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, & 48 #7578 5l A#E R A
calculated at the rates applicable to wmA (EER)EA
profit/(loss) in the tax jurisdictions B F R B AT
concerned (BE)FTEZERTIEA 2,806 (2,944)
Under-provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax i@7E & & &8 M 5 5%
in prior years BETE - 14
Under-provision of PRC Enterprise BAEFEPBECEMER
Income Tax in prior years BETE 3,269 =
Over-provision in Hong Kong Profits Tax B FE &BE MG
in prior years BRER S (14) =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAHBASZ BB 2 2,009 3,590
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBAZTH BT E (1,111) (384)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIEEB 2B
T& 303 2,626
Actual tax expense ERHIERX 7,262 2,902
REEBEMARAT —F--FEHE
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l_\_l
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

8.

B M RR M

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part (N

N\

B+ -A=+—HALEE

=

8. E M

RIBEE (RBED) 5E383(1) &K%

A (BREESMEER) RO

2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about A EEATHEBECESTHF MO
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: T
2022
k-t
Retirement
Salaries and benefit Share-based
allowances Discretionary scheme payments
Name of directors EEiE Fees (note i) bonuses contributions  Sub-total (note ii) Total
NEHE
HeRRH BHER b3 PALE
kA (F3Ei) BRETL  HEER it GED) act
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARBTT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu") 2R (T2%E]) 1,076 565 b] - 1,664 - 1,664
Mr. Xu Jianchun (*Mr. Xu") TRERL ([FrE4]) 1,288 - - - 1,288 - 1,288
Dr. Xu Qiang (“Dr. Xu") Rt ([REL)) 52 - - - 52 W 293
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai (“Mr. Chai") ~ E&ExE ([BxE]) 60 - - - 60 - 60
Mr. Sun Fei ("Mr. Sun") BREE ([BEE]) 52 = = = 52 211 293
Dr. Yang Jingjing ("Dr. Yang") BEEEL ([BEL]) (i) Y] - - - Ly) - 1Y)
Mr. Wang Jun (“Mr. Wang") FHRE([EE4E]) (v) 9 - - - 9 - 9
2,579 565 23 - 3,167 482 3,649
2021
“E--F
Salaries and Retirement
allowances  Discretionary  benefit scheme Share-based
Name of directors EEH2 Fees (note i) bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
HeREY RIER ARR1A &
e (F3Ei) MERL  HEfRR Nt BRZER &t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wiz ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR AR%Tn
Executive directors HirEE
Mr. Liu 2%k 1,030 3,082 48 = 4,160 - 4,160
Mr. Xu Fitea 1,44 - - - 1,244 - 1,244
Dr. Xu fHET v 46 - - - 46 - 46
Non-executive dlrector FHITEE
Dr. Xu Rt ) 4 - - - 4 = 4
Independent non-executive BUFHITEE
directors
Mr. Chai Bk 58 = = = 58 - 58
Mr. Sun i3 50 - - - 50 - 50
Mr. Wang TrE 50 - - - 50 = 50
2,482 3,082 48 - 5,612 - 5,612
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& B 1% R M 5

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iif)
(iv)
(v)

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to the
executive director are generally emoluments paid or
payables in respect of those persons’ other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme (as defined in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements). The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group's accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

2(p)(i).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Appointed on 4 March 2022.
Resigned on 4 March 2022.

Redesignated as executive director and the chief executive
officer of the Company on 22 January 2021.

No director of the Company waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

As at 31 December 2022, the directors held 7,424,000

share options (2021:

Nil) under the Company’s share

option scheme. The details of the share options are
disclosed in note 42.

E-E-_—_F+-A=1+—HIEE

8. EEHM (&)

GEE

@)

(ii)

XNHTEENGES 2HEREY
ME-—RDAXNRENZEAL
HARRREMB AR EREK
PR ER (R H) H A AR TS RO BN £ o

ZECHRERE T - —FRBRE
SEIRTEERZEREZGEEE
(E%Eﬁ* ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁi‘%ﬁﬁﬂz) ° %

SRR AV B E TR B M T 2(p)() A
%XZK‘i AR LAHQT%Z%%WZHTA
R HW GRS

e

ZEBRMANENFE (BEREE
BENIBEFEBE)INGA Y
TSR P TE424 B -

R-E-__—_F=-ANAEZRE-

R-T - —F=FHMBA#E-

R-T=——F— ﬁ‘-?—‘EIEﬂE%
RARRITEERERHNTE

*H

>H

MEFE ARAHMEEENES
EB&%EH BN NSRBI
EREE BN HFBMERMA
IR MAREE R 2 20 HERBE
BRRE -

RZZE

=== = i g lEl

EERAEALAERESEET
7,424,000 R E (2 = —F
M) BB FBERM 428 T -

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH

161
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T A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

Of the five employees with the highest emoluments,
two (2021: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of
the emoluments of the remaining three (2021: three)
employees are as follows:

AEREHES
REBRBHESBERE (T —

FMB)ANRQNREE EFHHAHK
HSEBE -HEHp =R (= —F:
B)EEHEEZHMARENT

2022 2021

—g-= T

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREFTR AREFT T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits & - 3285 & H {h 18 2,710 3,587

Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 19 60
Contributions to retirement benefit RORE B ET B 51

scheme 22 15

2,751 3,662

The emoluments of the three (2021: three) employees
with the highest emoluments are within the following

=R (ZB=—F =Z%)%
B2 HMNFToIEE:

= %’

band:
2022 2021
—g-= —E - —F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH =N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to = % 1,000,000/ 7T
approximately RMB858,795 (FHEREL
(2021: RMB829,601)) AR #858,7957C
(ZB=Z—%:
AR#829,6017T) ) 1 =
HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/% 7T 22,000,000
(equivalent to approximately BT (HERAL
RMB858,795 to RMB1,717,591) AR 858,795t &
(2021: RMB829,601 to RMB1,659,203) AR #1,717,5917C
(ZTB=—%:
AR #829,6017T%E
AR#1,659,2037T) ) 2 3

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the three (2021: three) highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/
INCOME

11.

There was no tax effect on each component of the other
comprehensive (expense)/income for both years.

LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB847,000 (2021: RMB9,872,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2021: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not
assume the exercise of share options because the
share options had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was

no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding.

Therefore, the diluted loss per share is the same as
the basic loss per share for both years.

& B 1% R M 5
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11. BREE

(a)

(b)

BREXREIE

FREAAREIBTDRE A QG %#
B AELEEARS847,000
T(ZZ2EZ—F: ARK
9,872,000t ) R FNE BEITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
12. g2

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries
are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme administrated and operated
by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC and
Vietnam subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to scheme based on certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of all qualifying employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and
Vietnam respectively. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered
and operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan
for employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme,
the employers are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 6% of the employees’ relevant income.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan managed by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer)
and its employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earning as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

13. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
retirement benefit schemes beyond the contribution
described above.

The Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF
Scheme and its defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes in the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan which may be
used to reduce the existing level of contributions during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). There
were also no forfeited contributions available to reduce
future contributions at the end of the reporting period
(2021: Nil).

13. B AREFIGHE (4R)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME - BERRE

166

(@) (a)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
fEER
EHAFE
L] ¥4
KAg#ELL HH-RER
RigF HERE  HAERE RE EBIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AR®ETR
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021 24,516 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 64,665
Exchange adjustments 734 103 68 (16) - 889
Additions - - 288 463 552 1,303
Disposals - - (34) (1,687) - (1,721)
Surplus on revaluation, net EMMBHTFE 3,546 = = = = 3,546
Less: Elimination of accumulated R EHE
depreciation (@57) - - - - (457)
At 31 December 2021 RZF_—F+-A=t1-H 28339 19,392 15,344 4,203 947 68,225
Representing: B
Cost &S - 19,392 15,344 4,203 947 39,386
Valuation - 2021 BE-—F-—F 28,339 - - - - 28,339
28,339 19,392 15,344 4,203 947 68,225
At 1 January 2022 28,339 19,392 15,344 4,203 947 68,225
Exchange adjustments (159) (4) 51 88 2 (22)
Additions - - 188 1,515 m 2,474
Disposals - (1,786) (38) (982) - (2,806)
Written off - - - - (342) (342)
Transfer : - - 1,280 - (1,280) -
Deficit on revaluation, net EfBATE 911) = = = = 911)
Less; Elimination of accumulated W 2EELHE
depreciation (456) - - - - (456)
At 31 December 2022 W-ZE-—#+-A=+-H 26,813 17,602 16,825 4,824 98 66,162
Representing: B
Cost KA - 17,602 16,825 4,824 98 39,349
Valuation - 2022 fHE-=T==% 26,813 - - - - 26,813
26,813 17,602 16,825 4,824 98 66,162
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ui
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& B 1% R M 5

FH+_A=+—RHIEFE

(Continued)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
ffEER
BHAFE
Sk
KAEE Ri-RER
THREF HERE  HAERE RE EBIR @3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETRE ARETR ARETR
Accumulated depreciation and  BiHTERRERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%5-A—-H = 16,382 13,444 4197 . 34523
Exchange adjustments LS - 93 53 (16) - 130
Charge for the year REER 457 1,273 725 252 - 2,707
Elimination on disposals HERHE - = (32 (1,419) = (1,451)
Elimination on revaluation BB HH (457) - - - - (457)
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—-§+-A=1+-A - 18,248 14,190 3,014 - 35,452
At 1 January 2022 R=%--§-A-AH - 18,248 14,190 3,014 - 35,452
Exchange adjustments 7 - (@ 52 63 - m
Charge for the year AEERM 456 498 709 551 - 2,214
Elimination on disposals HERH - (1,782) (39) (926) - (2,747)
Elimination on revaluation EfhRHHE (456) = = = = (456)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ-—§+-A=+-H - 16,960 14,912 2,702 - 34,574
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z#+-A=t+-H 26,813 642 1,913 2,122 98 31,588
At 31 December 2021 R-Z=—-§+-A=+-H 28,339 1,144 1,154 1,189 947 32,773
(b) Had the revalued freehold land and buildings held (b) MEEEHIEBRZKAERE
for own use been carried at cost less accumulated 40 R R T LA K AR & R T
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have ErER - REAKEOT :
been:
2022 2021
g-=f -—T-—f%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBET T
Freehold land and buildings FIEB A KA %R
held for own use T REF 19,017 19,257
FEAEREEERAT —T-_FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. V¥ -BERRE(R)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % EREE(E)
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties (c) MEZAFEFE (E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) XAFEERE)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2022 categorised into

RZ¥-Zf+ZA=+-B2

ATEENER
Fair value at
31 December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
e Jonfet:
+ZA=t-H
ZAFE F-EfR EZBR EZBH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement EEMATHEE
Freehold land and buildings KAZRLHR
- Taiwan BF-5i 25,175 - - 25,175
Buildings - The PRC BT -1H 1,638 - - 1,638
26,813 - - 26,813
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into
RZBZ-F+ZA=+-RAZ
ATENENEAR
Fair value at
31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RITZ-%
+ZA=+-H
20FE F-ER PoER $2E9
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBFT AREBTFT ARETFT
Recurring fair value measurement BESENTEGNE
Freehold land and buildings KAZRLHR
- Taiwan BF-88 26,914 - - 26,914
Buildings - The PRC CENLT 1,425 - - 1,425
28,339 - - 28,339
During the years ended 31 December 2022 RBEE_ZTE-_—_FK=
and 2021, there were no transfers between T - —F+ = H ==
level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or =] Lt¢§* F—EEFEFZ
out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to [ M EeEia . JriEeg
recognise transfers between levels of fair AE=EXEF=EH
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting o ARNEE 2 BK AR R
period in which they occur. EHRATERER M
PIREREEREHEE
#ao

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The Group's freehold land and buildings held
for own use as at 31 December 2022 were
revalued and the valuations were carried
out by Graval Consulting Limited (“Graval”)
(2021: APAC Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (“APAC")). Both Graval and APAC
are independent qualified professional
valuers with recent experience in the location
and category of properties being valued.
The Company's directors have discussed
with Graval (2021: APAC) on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation are performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

14. V¥ -BERRE(R)

() MEZRFVENE (FE)

(i) AFEER(E)

—E-_-_f%+=A
=+—B AEEFER
B2z AFERLHLEZ
FHEEM HEREE
CEBERBERQA (18
mEE]) (ZT=—%F:
TFARAEEERERERA
B ([EEXR]) )ETT 18
CERTAIRE it
ERER/E i &=l
BERBEELBRZBY
& BB EERD - 7E % @
HRFEREBHEST
BER  AAREREHE
BEHELEE(ZE=-—F:
TR ) & Rl E R R Rk

| 3

BHER-
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value (ii) BEEEE=/E L FEL
measurements BEZEHN

Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range

HERH TOBRRBAE 8
2022 2021
—B-Cf —E--F
Freehold land and buildings - Taiwan  Direct comparison approach Property- specific adjusting rate  (10%) to 25%  (30%) to 18%
KAFELHRET - 2 BENRE NEETEHE (10%)E25%  (30%)%18%
Buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach  Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (10%) to 10%  (3%) to 10%
BT -hE HELBA MEETAEE (10%)F10%  (3%)Z10%

The fair value of properties held for own use
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined
by using direct comparison approach with
reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for building quality,
location of the properties and timing of
the reference transactions. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the
property-specific adjustment rate. There has
been no change on the valuation technique
during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

4R B

& B 1% R M 5

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 1% -BERRE (F)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (c) MEZAFEFE (E)
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value (i) BEEFE=/FLFHE
measurements (Continued) EZE a‘»/ ( &)
The movements during the period in HA LE=ERATE
the balances of these Level 3 fair value ATEAEREHOT
measurements are as follows:
Freehold
land and
buildings - Buildings -
Taiwan The PRC Total
&L
TR
gF BF
-&8E - FE Faby)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AR®TT ARETRT
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZT=——%—H—H 23,124 1,392 24,516
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHERT (161) (296) (457)
Exchange adjustments ERE@%& 734 - 734
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation B &%/ (Bi)
- recognised in other comprehensive - E 2 EUEFER -
income, included in “properties FTA [ EG ]
revaluation reserve” 3,375 329 3,704
— recognised in profit or loss, -PMER R ST AR MK A
included in other income & E B8 558 (HTs5)
and other net losses (note 5) (158) - (158)
3,217 329 3,546
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE=-—%+=-A=+—H 26,914 1,425 28,339
At 1 January 2022 R-—ZBE-_—_&—H—H 26,914 1,425 28,339
Depreciation charge for the year REFHERS (160) (296) (456)
Exchange adjustments i 5§ (159) - (159)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation B (BA) /B
—recognised in other comprehensive ~ -RAE b 2 S HER
income, included in “properties ENEZEEXE
revaluation reserve” (1,420) 509 (911)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H 25,175 1,638 26,813

(d)

Effect of foreign currency exchange
differences of freehold land and buildings
held for own use are recognised in other

comprehensive income in
translation reserve”.

The carrying amount of freehold land and buildings

“foreign currency

(d)

held for own use pledged as security for the
Group’s bank borrowings was RMB22,578,000

(2021:
December 2022.

RMB23,552,000) (note 28) as at 31

FIEBRMKAEREL
RBFZINEERZE
ENPTERELFHRE]
ZEMBE W EER -

T el i el B e
H BERFEEANEBERITHE
EERR2FIEE ANKAZE
I EEFHEREBEASA
52578, 000 ( =5 ==
& : AR #23,552,0007T) (Fft
5£28) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w5 B 7% R MY RL

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H = —
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(e) No impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment has been provided for both the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(f) As at 31 December 2022, the Group's freehold
land in Taiwan amounting to RMB1,000,000 (2021:
RMB1,578,000) was under trust arrangements.

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

FT_A=+—HLFE

14. V¥ -BERRE(R)

(e) BE_ZET_-_—_FR_T-—4F
+—A=+—BILMEFE:
BMERYE BEKLZHEIR
ABEIE -

) RZE-_—_F+=ZA=+—
H AEEREBEEITLHERE
BREZKAERLIHLAAR
#1,000,0007C (=& = — 4 :
AR #1,578,0007T) °

15. FHEEE

Prepaid Leased
leasehold lands properties Total
EfHEELH HEWE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARET T ARET T
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEZZ#+-A=+-H
Carrying amount RAE 2,536 20,382 22,918
At 31 December 2021 WZE-Z—F+ZR=+—H
Carrying amount REE 2,603 25,035 27,638
For the year ended BE-S-—%
31 December 2022 +TZA=+—-HLEE
Depreciation charge NERX 67 4,880 4,947
For the year ended HE_ZT_—F
31 December 2021 TZRA=T—-HILEE
Depreciation charge NERY 67 4,964 5,031
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4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group holds lands of which the Group is the
registered owner of the lands, including the whole or part
of undivided share in the underlying lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the lands from
its previous registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and
properties for its operation. Lease contract is entered
into for fixed term of 1.58 to 19.92 years (2021: 1.07 to
19.92 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had additions of right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB412,000 (2021: RMB368,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had lease modification and recognised gain on lease
modification of approximately RMB9,000 (2021:
RMB29,000).

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

15. EHESE (F)

GEE

@)

(ii)

(iii)

AEERZ L (BEERLIMZ
2RO TADENDE) 2EL
BEAN-AEEEHBELENERL
T?Eﬁ/\%l%iii%ﬁﬁ*%ﬂﬁﬁ

Ko MARE i HEZ G BA
\%ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁm"

RRETE AEBHAEZERD
i&%%l’}\ \EL DT—LEI,]TE/%\
EHHEEHRA1.58219.92F
—E - —F:1.07819.9246F) -
B ER EEER  YBEETR
TR RIE G - REEHERTHT
AR RERN AEBCEE
REHNNEELETES L ARG B
f:IE"]ﬁi»quEﬁ“

HE-_ZT-_—_F#+=-A=+—H1
FE - ASBEABEFERAREEEYN
AR#412,000c (ZT=Z—F: A
R #368,0007T) °

HE_ZT-_—_F#+=-A=+—H1
EE AEBEHBEEERLER
HE Bz W= AR, 0007
(Z==—%: AR¥29,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. EREEE (&)
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets REBEENENE D 2 ERAEE
by class of underlying asset is as follows: ERNREFEI AT
2022 2021
—E-= == =4E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARBTT

Ownership interests in leasehold FlerE EHAN T B 28 8
lands carried at amortised cost AT ER 2 FHE i

with remaining lease term of: P B
— Between 10 and 50 years - 10E504F 2,536 2,603
Leased properties carried at THEWHERITE AT R
depreciated cost, with remaining B EI#FH N F1.50%8
terms between 1.50 and 4.42 4RF (ZE=—F:
years (2021: 0.50 and 5.42 years)  0.50%5.42%) 20,382 25,035
22,918 27,638
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases EANE=RER2EE 2R XIER
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: ST
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use ¥ZiHEE & EHERIE D 2
assets by class of underlying asset ~ {FAEEENTERX

(note 6(c)): (FtsE6(C))
— Ownership interests -HETM A ERER
in leasehold lands 67 67
— Leased properties -THEmE 4,880 4,964
4,947 5,031
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE (M:E6@))
(note 6(a)) 1,769 2,077
Lease payments for property, Wz HEREHEEENRK
plant and equipment not (P AHEBBZETE)
included in the measurement (FF7E6(d))
of lease liabilities (note 6(d))
— Expenses relating to short-term - B HATE SRR RO B 2
leases 481 223
— Expenses relating to leases -HEEBEEEMHE
on low-value of assets, HENRXZ T8
excluding short-term leases REBEEERHHEE
of low-value assets 19 17
500 240
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16.

& B 1% R M 5

/—_|_\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. ERHESE (8)
Cash outflow for leases HEBRSARE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash SFTAGERENERZHESER
flows for leases comprise the following: FEATN &8
2022 2021
it et 3 S
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Within operating cash flows KL REN (500) (240)
Within financing cash flows MEREREN (6,362) (6,480)
(6,862) (6,720)
These amounts relate to the following: ZESHENTSESN:
2022 2021
—g-— T —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETFIT
Lease rental paid BENEERES (6,862) (6,720)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IEWME
2022 2021
it e —B-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREETFIT
At fair value BRAFEE
At 1 January n—A—H 7,401 6,531
Exchange adjustments PE 3 (38) 159
Fair value adjustment to profit or loss SFABRZZAFEARE (1,231) 711
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H 6,132 7,401

TEEDEEERA A

]

et S 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. ILEYE (EF)

Fair value measurement of investment REVMEZATFHEFTE
properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (i) R-FEER

TREVIRBEHRRERE K
EEFENATREREMEN
RFE BEREAUB RS

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,

categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy ERFEI1RA FEIAEETED
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. =B RFEEH - NTEFE
The level into which a fair value measurement SERENERKLL2EHERME

FRANBAENAERENRSE
EMEFENOT:

is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. ILEME (F)

Fair value measurement of investment REWMEZATFEGE (8)
properties (Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) LFEELR(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2022 categorised into

R-B-—#+-R=+-B2

AFEHENER
Fair value at
31 December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
k- et
+ZA=+-H
ZAFE B4 EZER EZER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFR AREFR ARETTR
Recurring fair value measurement ERMATHEE
Investment properties REME
- Taiwan ) 4,684 - - 4,684
- The PRC -HE 1,448 - - 1,448
6,132 - - 6,132
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into
%:f:*¢+*ﬁi+*ﬂz
AFEHENE
Fair value at
31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RIZZ-%
TZA=1-H
20T F-ER £ZER EZEA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETFT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement BEEDNTEGNE
Investment properties REME
- Taiwan -8E 5,899 - = 5,899
- The PRC - 1,502 - - 1,502

7,401 = = 7,401
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

16. REME (&)
BREMFEZ D FENE (&)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) RFEER (&)
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and RBE_T-_—_FK_FT=
2021, there were no transfers between level 1 E+ZA=+—RLEE"
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3. The —EBEEZE M jfﬁiﬁﬁ
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between NEEAZF=—EIEF=-EH
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the HeAKREZBE RN &REH
reporting period in which they occur. RAFEER 2B LR ERE
HRE B
The Group's investment properties as at REBZREMENR=_ZT ==
31 December 2022 were revalued and the F+ZA=Z+—HE iﬁﬁﬁ
valuations were carried out by Graval (2021: APAC). HeofERBEELEE (=
Both Graval and APAC are independent qualified Z—F R R)ET EE IE%
professional valuers with recent experience in the R XA RE Ll HEYHE
location and category of property being valued. FriEs R BRI AR BAELR
The Group's directors have discussed with Graval 2B E B G ER 5 E
(2021: APAC) on the valuation assumptions and RHERFESRE B EETHE
valuation results when the valuation is performed H# ZIKE BEEEC EFEERE
at each interim and annual reporting date. T EEji)"J‘ (R
& Kb B 4
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value (ii) BEBEFEF=ELFETEZ
measurements =
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
HERH FUEREAE §iE
2022 2021
k- oot 3 —ZI--F
Freehold land - Taiwan Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (1.5%) t0 20%  (20%) to 30%
KAKELH - 28 HELBA NEEEBEEX (15%)Z20%  (20%)%30%
Land and buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate ~ (10%) to 10% (3%) to 10%
THRET - HE HELEA MEETHEEX (10%)E10%  (B%%E10%

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using direct comparison approach
with reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for location and size of the
properties. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the property-specific adjusting
rate. There has been no change on the valuation
technique during the year.
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=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. B EME (F)
Fair value measurement of investment REMEZAFEFE ()

properties (Continued)

(iii) As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment (iii) AR E-_—_F+ =/ = —I- =
properties in Taiwan amounting to RMB4,684,000 E AEERBEIELHER
(2021: RMB5,889,000) were held under trust ERBEZREMERAR “&%

arrangements. 4,684,0007E (ZEBE=Z—F: A
R #5,899,0007T ) °
(iv) Fair value adjustment on investment properties (iv) EMERFENAEBRES

is recognised in the line item “Fair value (loss)/ BmkHEMEE KR XA &

gain on investment properties” on the face of the EMEZLATFE(ER) K
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other @] —ITRAER -
comprehensive income.
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer
Trademark system Total
(i EXEEX st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREETFIT AREEFIT
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 RZTZ—%F
—H—H 19 1,785 1,804
Exchange adjustments ME H A - 38 38
Addition B = 2,600 2,600
At 31 December 2021 RZBEZ—%F
+-A=+-n8 19 4,423 4,442
At 1 January 2022 i
—HA—H 19 4,423 4,442
Exchange adjustments ME 56 58 28 = (7) (7)
At 31 December 2022 R=ZT==
+=ZRA=+—8H 19 4,416 4,435
Accumulated amortisation HatiEsH
At 1 January 2021 RZT=—%F
—H—H 17 1,785 1,802
Exchange adjustments b H A - 38 38
Charged for the year FEMR - 578 578
At 31 December 2021 R_EZ—%F
TE=R=E— 17 2,401 2,418
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE_—_—F
—H—H 17 2,401 2,418
Exchange adjustments ME H A B (7) (7)
Charged for the year FEHBR 866 866
At 31 December 2022 R=ZT==F
+=-—A=+—8” 17 3,260 3,277
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2022 NR-B-—%f
+=HB=+—H 2 1,156 1,158
At 31 December 2021 R-ZTZ—%F
+=ZA=+—8H 2 2,022 2,024

EERENERGEEGRAFERAFE:
WIEEGEED BIREGFT A ERF
HAD Z= 10 4 o

Trademark and computer system have finite useful life
and are amortised on a straight-line basis basic over its
estimated useful life of 2 to 10 years respectively.
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T e B R M A
W 7] A
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFEATHH#ER
2022 2021
—_g-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR AR®ETTT
Cost of investment in associates: TE RS DAl H KA - 500
Share of losses from associates E(EEE = AR EE - (105)
- 395
Less: Impairment losses on R B R B 2R E E R
associates - (395)

The following list contains the particulars of associates, T?E@J HEAIELET AR T

all of which are unlisted corporate entities, whose quoted SR IE Y BT A 3 % :

market price is not available:

Form of business ~ Place of Registered Paid-up
Name structure establishment  capital capital Group's effective interest  Principal activities
&8 3L ERRILYE 2REF HREK SEERES IEEH
2022 2021
%o &

Guangdong Weixiang Established PRC N/A N/A - 30% Disposed in 2022
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (2021: RMB24,000,000)  (2021: RMB1,000,000) (2021: Research and
("Guangdong Weixiang") (note 1) development of

ceH Cultivation)

ERAZENBRARAR BB Gilél ER TER = 30% :
(IBRAR]) (Hit1) (ZB2=-%: (ZB=-%:

AR%24,000000)  AR%1,000,0007) EH%H’@%%E)

Guangdong Yashan Established PRC N/A N/A - 20% Disposed in 2022
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (2021: RMB10,000,000) ~ (2021: RMB700,000) (2021: Research and
(“Guangdong Yashan"”) (note 7) development of

cell cultivation)
ERELENNERA F("’ B HE T TR - 0% R=F
(TEREW]) (Hi#1 (Z2=-%: (Z3=-%: :
AR%10,000,0007) AR#700,0007z) ik zﬂihtuég‘
Foshan Zhougong Intelligent Established PRC RMB6,000,000 RMBNil (note 2) 20.91% 2091%  Not yet commenced business
Technology Co., Ltd. * (2021: 6,000,000) (2021: RMBNil (note 2))
("Foshan Zhougong")
@%MEI THERRERA BRY T8 AR %6,000,0007 )\R%TH‘W&Z 20.91% 2091% HRAREE
(THILET]) (ZE=-F:ARE  (
6,000,0007%) )\R%:T\ﬁrﬂ/‘/
a The English translation of the companies’ names is for & NEIGHMKEZEEHE2EZ - HEH
reference only. The official name of these companies are %*M%‘:F' X o
in Chinese.
Notes: B 5
1. During the year ended 31 December 2022, Guangdong 1. HE—_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—H
Weixiang and Guangdong Yashan were disposed IFFEE BRARKEREILNA
of to an independent third party at an aggregate KB ARK500,000cHEH L E T
consideration of RMB500,000, resulting in a gain on —BBEUE=F BYHEBER
disposal of associates of RMB500,000. AUz A R #500,0007T ©
2. Registered capital of Foshan Zhougong was not paid-up 2. BLEINEMEAR=-ZT ==

as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT

Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

AR e B Rk Y At

TE - —FE+ - A=+—HILFE
19. BAFHFANEBRFEZ
B4 E

FVTPL E
2022 2021
—E-- T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Mutual funds/unit trusts established RNEERY 2 BERES
in Taiwan (note (j)) BT (KTEEG) ) 32,771 34,482
Listed outside Hong Kong for REBIRINETIEER
trading purpose (note (ii)) & (BIaEi))
— Equity securities — R AFE 15,729 4,095
— Debt instruments —EBTA 4,532 =
— Exchange traded funds —RGMEBESR 5,745 =
58,777 38,577

Notes:

@)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEEIREH]) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on
17 July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and
4 July 2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross
receipt of each funeral services deed entered into after
31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan as trust
monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds
and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were managed by
fund managers of these financial institutions in Taiwan.
The mutual funds and unit trusts comprise a basket of
financial assets including local and foreign currencies
bank deposits, bonds and equity securities listed in
Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They have
no fixed maturity and coupon rate.

The fair value of the above financial assets is based on
their current bid prices in an active market.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the equity securities,
debt instruments and exchange traded funds listed
outside Hong Kong for trading purpose were stated at
fair value, determined by reference to bid prices quoted
in an active market.

The above financial assets are classified as current as
the management expects to realise these financial assets
within twelve months after the reporting period.

Mutual funds/unit trusts are presented within “operating

activities”

as part of changes in working capital and

equity securities, debt instruments and exchange traded
funds for trading purpose are presented within “investing
activities” in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
The Group recognised a net realised and unrealised gains
of RMB690,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022

(2021:

RMB811,000).

(i) BER-_ZETE_FLA+tHERX
BHIETN—_"ZTZT=F+tA—HBEK=
TR LELANBE—FSBIIZE

BEEEERKM AEEARR =

EE=F+A=+—BRBILZE

BRERBEZANGESEER

WA EE 2 75%1EBEES -
FEREEREREGENERESR
BUfEE EHRaEZZS Rl
BESCEBEAETE -ERESHE
NVETH £ THRKEEMAK B
BAMRIINREBERITER EE
g&ﬁm%ﬁﬁ mEmzESRRRK
L BEEARAEEREEBA
FEHKSERBRZKE ZEH
HEEWEETERHAE REAAME-
TR EEENRAFEIIERER
ERMIEMEREAEBME -

(i) M-ZZTE-_—_FKR-_ZFT-_—4%+_-A4
=t+—HB REBBINLETIEEE
AgprzBRAZSF BEEIARRS
FEEESEAFEYE KR
EZRERMIZFABHEAEME °

HREEBRARBRENR T — @
ARER LR HEE R AR5
BEDHERRDEE-

EEES BENEAREAE SR
E%W%%WWEEIJ {/H%M;@
BB NIEESHBR ZBRAZS
ﬁﬁ%Iﬂ&i%ﬁﬁf‘ﬁ%ﬁ%@—%ﬁﬁ'
BEEEAFAURIBEETSH] R -
BE—_T_—_#+-_A=+—H1
FE AEERERARKE90,0007T
ZEEBEEREBRFUNFZ (T ——
£ : AR¥811,0007T) °

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL 20. &
2022 2021
—g-= T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETTT
Cost B :
At 1 January Rn—H—H 19,010 18,449
Exchange adjustments PE 7 38 =& (107) 561
At 31 December Rt+t—-_A=+—H 18,903 19,010
Accumulated impairment losses SEHiB{ERE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 19,010 18,449
Exchange adjustments PE W 82 (107) 561
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 18,903 19,010
Carrying amount R (B
At 31 December R+Z=ZH=+—H = =
Goodwill was arising from the Group obtained control EEDREAEEZAWEIRER
of BLL through the acquisition of 100% equity voting EREEEZEREESARBEN S E
interests in BLL which is engaged in provision of elderly MZ1OO°/0WM&7R$E£EI’JHX$$E@'
care and related consultancy services. T REMRZ IR
The goodwill was fully impaired prior to year ended 31 REBEE_T=-Z—F+=ZA=+—8H
December 2021. IEFEZH BEE TE2ERE-

21. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION COSTS 21. BRI &

2022 2021

—F¥=-= — T —F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTT

Burial plots under development for sale FIZEFEE i 4,657 4,529
The development and formation costs represent FERKIKAEFR —EERF
development costs incurred for burial plots construction TERFLE 2B 2 RBEKAR  WiE
in a cemetery site which will be completed for sale by ARSI FEME R 2 REE

burial plot and are stated at the lower of cost and net B B ©
realisable value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
22.

23.

INVENTORIES 22. 58
2022 2021
—®-C —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREETFIT
Merchandises for resale EEE R 701 714
Completed burial plots BEIEH 916 911
1,617 1,625

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

3. BESRHAMBEBKRERE

DEPOSITS PAID s
2022 2021
—g-C —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETX AREF T
Trade receivables =) 3¢ 1,800 1,216
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE
(note 34(a)) (M$7E34(@a)) (1,092) (777)
Trade receivables, net B S5 EWGRIE  F5E
(notes (c) and (d)) (Pff 3£ (c) K2 (d) ) 708 439
Prepayments (note (e)) TE T ZRIE (FisE(e)) 30,195 26,680
Deposits paid (note (e)) ERtiEE (M) 2,272 2,268
Other receivables (note (e)) H Ath e Uk 538 (B RE(e) ) 2,941 2,343
36,116 31,730
Representing: = -
Non-current assets JERNERE =
— other receivables and deposits paid — H ftb fE IR FRIE
[EENE&A 915 44
— deposits for hire of funeral parlous —THABEE KRB RERE
and funeral services centres FLZEe 1,000 1,000
Current assets ENER & &=
— trade and other receivables and — B 5 M H AW FRIA K
deposits paid EfZRS 34,201 30,686
36,116 31,730
Notes: B -
(@)  As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contract @ RZEZ—F—A—H RXEEF
with customers net of allowance for credit losses BHZESERRZE (NREES
amounted to approximately RMB619,000. BEAE) 4 5619,000/8 7T ©

All of the current portion of trade and other receivables
and deposits paid are expected to be recovered within
one year and prepayments are expected to be recognised
as expense within one year or in its normal operating

cycle.

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid approximate to their fair values.

PE B 5 R E g R RIE R E R
WS BHAR —FRKRE
BN BN —FAXNIES
EERPRARFEX -

by EBIREMEIFEARENEZEEZ
FREEEE QA FERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. B S R H

DEPOSITS PAID (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@}

Trade receivables with the following aging analysis by age
presented based on the invoice date, net of allowance, as
at the end of the reporting period:

fib FE W RIE R E

fHie (&)

B eE: (#8)

(0)

AT B E BRE 2 e R (0
BRREE)REZAHNZ2IZERED
ik

2022 2021

=g== —E-_—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

0 to 180 days 0Z180H 708 439

The average credit period for funeral arrangement
services granted to non-funeral services deed customers is
45 days (2021: 45 days).

There is no credit period granted to customers for the
other service rendered by the Group.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB1,270,000 (2021: RMB1,075,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, none of the balances for both years has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. ES5 RHWMEWKZIERDE
DEPOSITS PAID (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

Included in prepayments, deposits paid and other
receivables are deposits paid for funeral parlours and
funeral services centre and the respective consulting
services, prepaid hire charge of funeral parlours and
funeral services centres, prepayment for purchase
of biotechnical machineries and other electronics
products, prepayment for purchase of raw materials
and prepaid agency commission for funeral services of
approximately RMB1,000,000 (2021: RMB1,000,000),
RMB8,835,000 (2021: RMB8,756,000), RMB6,521,000
(2021: RMB3,421,000), RMB12,423,000 (2021:
RMB11,812,000) and RMB2,553,000 (2021:
RMB2,606,000), respectively.

A commission is paid to the agents when the service
deeds amounts were received. During the year ended
31 December 2021, one of the agents, which was
incorporated in Taiwan with limited liability, was dissolved.
The directors of the Company considered that the Group
is no longer able to request future services from this
agent, and the chance of recovering the prepayments
made to this agent is remote as advised by the Group’s
Taiwan legal adviser. After the above assessment, the
Group written off the relevant amount of prepayments
with this agent in full under the funeral service segment,
and recognised a loss on written off of prepayment of
approximately RMB12,013,000 during the year ended 31
December 2021. No further impairment or written off on
prepaid agency commission was recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Details of the Group's credit policy and impairment
assessment of trade receivables and other receivables and
deposits paid for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 are set out in note 34(a).

& (&)

B :

(e)

(%)

AAABEMRE BN ESREME
WRIB B D B AR & E KB ERE
FALORSENBARBE XN ZIZ
& BEERBEERES L ZTEN
e BEEADREESLREME
TERZBNRE BERMEZ
BRNREREEBRERE ZEGR
4 4 AR ¥1,000,0007T (=2
——4: AR#1,000,0007T) * AR
#8,835,000t (—ZFE=——F: AR
#8,756,0007T) * A R #6,521,000
T (ZET=Z—F: AR¥3,421,000
7T) AR#12,423,0000T (=&
——%: AR®11,812,0007T) & A
K #2,553,000t (ZE = —F: A
R #2,606,0007T) °
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EAEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE

24. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL 24. REHBEBA=EAN
MATURITY OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH EHER BHeRBELE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B9
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () BakReZEDMEIE:

2022 2021
—g-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREEF T
Cash and cash equivalents REBBARAER R
in the consolidated statement of REHEMERA

financial position and consolidated ~ BIRE KR EEY
statement of cash flows

— Cash at bank and on hand —RITRFERS 112,477 117,557

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based RITRESERIBERBITER
on daily bank deposit rates. MEGFEZZBFEET B -
At 31 December 2022, cash at bank and on RZE-_—_F+_A=+—
hand of the Group of RMB19,364,000 (2021: A AEEcRITEFER
RMB19,051,000) were denominated in RMB © A ARK¥19,364,000T (=
and placed with banks in the PRC. Conversion Z-—4: AR%19,051,000
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the L) AARBEHEIEFHRR
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and FEZRT AR KoMK
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of AR R B A BE 6 B % A
Foreign Exchange Regulations. i BERNEERERTET
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

24. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash at bank
and on hand are denominated in the following
currencies:

m

24,

& B 1% R M 5

—E - —HF+ - RA=+—HILFE

JiR B 5 B [ 8 AR = 1A A 89
EHER RERBELF
BEY (&)

(a) BLRASZEWEE: (B)

AEBZHRTERFBERE 2K

HEKTIIE®E

2022 2021
—E-—F — -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREF T
us$ =TT 5,470 5,706
HK$ BT 5,229 9,580
RMB ARE 19,369 19,053
NTD e 82,277 83,082
VND WA 77 83
EURO BT 55 53
112,477 117,557
(b)
2022 2021
—T|-_F —E - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Time deposits with original D EREEEN
maturity of over three B 3| BR RS R R 3B
months classified T
— b == BA 1= 2
as current assets = {8 A8 ERER 9,334 —
Time deposits with original maturity over three DHERNBE=EAYNTE

months of approximately RMB9,334,000 (2021: Nil)
represent fixed deposits with maturity more than
three months from the date of acquisition which
carried interest at prevailing market rate of 3.60%
(2021: N/A) per annum as at 31 December 2022.

At 31 December 2022, all the time deposits of
the Group of RMB9,334,000 (2021: Nil) were
denominated in US$ and placed with banks in
Hong Kong.

Hﬁﬁixiﬁ/\ﬁvm 334,0007T
—E - —F:|E)iEBKRER
et HEBE=EANE
EFER R_ZE-_—_F+=-A
=+ —BEBROIMSEFNEE
360% (T =——F:T@EA)
B o

W_E::¢+:HE+—

CAEBRMEETHERAR
M93340Mﬁzv—f:s—$:
E)VHUETHELERRE
EHERTT o

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T -——F+-_A=+—HIF
24. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL 24.

MATURITY OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

() MEFDFESREYHK

Amount due
Lease liabilities Bank borrowings to a shareholder
HEARH RITIHE Eft—2RRZRE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—¥--§ -T--% CZ¥--§ -Z--f CZ¥-Z§ _-T--%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARET:I
At 1 January R—A—8 27,488 31,870 6,004 6,964 11,899 12,221
Changes from financing HARSRED
cash flows
Repayment of principal of EEREEEALHD
lease liabilities (4,593) (4,403) - - - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE - - (1,177) (1,161) = =
Payment of interest FEMR (1,769) (2,077) (92) (105) = =
Total changes from HERGTEHEE
financing cash flows (6,362) (6,480) (1,269) (1,266) - -
Finance costs BEARA 1,769 2,077 92 105 - -
Changes in amount due to CEEEE TR
a shareholder — AR FEED
under operating activities - - - - (258) -
Addition of right-of-use assets REGRAEEE 412 368 - = - =
Lease modification HEER (203) (344) = = = =
Exchange adjustments A% 10 3) (39) 201 1,014 (322)
At 31 December RTZA=1-H 23,114 27,488 4,788 6,004 12,655 11,899
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group R-ZEBE-——FR_FT-—F+—A8

performed impairment assessment on bank balances
and time deposits, and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and
accordingly, no allowance for credit loss is provided.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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E-FE-_—F+-_A=+—BIEE
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 25. BES RHMEFNZERES

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

DEPOSITS RECEIVED Wiz &
2022 2021
it e —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
Trade payables (note (c)) B SR IA (M) 2,416 2,221
Other payables and accruals HL A FE 5 5RIA K FE AT RUE 10,899 11,878
Deposits received BilkiEE 791 =
14,106 14,099
Less: deposits received W B iR e (791) =
Financial liabilities measured at REHK AT E 2
amortised cost (note 34(b)) 5 s (MEE34(b)) 13,315 14,099
Representing: Al
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
— other payables and deposits received — H {th & {7038 & 2 U % & 1,135 -
Current liabilities mE B E
— trade and other payables and — B 5 KHE A ER KIE
deposits received B iz % 12,971 14,099
14,106 14,099
Notes: Bt 5
(@)  All of the current portion of trade and other payables and (@ FEESREMENKEREWRIZ
deposits received are expected to be settled within one CHRBTDTEHER —FALEE
year or are repayable on demand. SRR AT o

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables and
deposits received approximate to their fair values.

BHREMENREARBKIEZS Z

FREEEEQFERSE-

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, (© MHATARBESHREZEMNREIR
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting BZEHE BRI D AT
period:
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%EFR ARBT T
0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,188 650
31 days to 90 days 31HZE90H 451 724
Over 90 days 90H M E 777 847
2,416 25224
The average credit period on purchase of goods is BEAmHOTEHEEAR0BE (=
30 days (2021: 30 days). The Group has financial risk T —F:30R) - AEEE HlE 8
management polices in place to ensure that all payables % [ B i ER BSR - LARE(R FT B JE T
are settled within the credit timeframe. HREEEEHRRANGEE -
FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. B¥IAERE
2022 2021
—g-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR AR¥ET T
Funeral services deeds (note (a)) BERBZL (@) 80,933 83,366
Burial plots under development FE R 2 k2 (KEE(D))
and tombstones (note (b)) 2,452 2,346
Stem cells and immunocytes and B 40 B Kz 6 5% 40 B e EL fth 275
other businesses (note (c)) (B s¥()) 6,731 4,848
90,116 90,560
Analysed as: DA
Current BN ER 89,660 90,207
Non-current JEBNHR 456 353
90,116 90,560
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTAFEMERELEE S L
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward BEEEMNNESRE-

contract liabilities.

Stem cells and

Funeral Burial plots under immunocytes
services development and and other
deeds tombstones business
RABRRE
il oy e
BERBRY RAEFELRIE E3]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HBE-F--%#+=-H
=+—HILEE
Revenue recognised that was included SAFTENE RESRERL
in the contract liabilities balance U za
at the beginning of the year 1,749 97 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

26. BHRAE (&)

Funeral Burial plots under Stem cells and
services development and  immunocytes and
deeds tombstones other business
BERRER
AR E A
BERBRA RS R EE 5%
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2-T-—F+-A
=t+—HIFE
Revenue recognised that was included FAFNE LB RERERS
in the contract liabilities balance g
at the beginning of the year 1,695 43 -

As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted
to RMB88,180,000. Contract liabilities, that are not
expected to be settled within the Group’s normal
operating cycles are classified as current and non-current
based on the Group's earliest obligation to transfer goods
or services to the customers.

There was no revenue recognised during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 that related to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior years.

Notes:

(@) Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services
deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral
services deeds are prepaid funeral services packages
which mainly comprise particular types of funeral services
at the choice of the customers to be arranged in future.
The Deed Holders can elect to make payment on a lump
sum basis or settle the outstanding amount of the funeral
services deeds by mutual agreed instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering
these services, after having taking into account of major
factors including the timing of the instruction of the Deed
Holders. Amounts received from funeral services deeds
sold are recorded as contract liabilities. When the Deed
Holders have defaulted payment for two months and do
not pay back the defaulted amounts after the Group’s
not less than 30-day’s demand notice, the funeral services
deeds would be regarded as lapsed and a minimum of
20% of the total sum of the funeral services deeds or the
instalments paid, whichever is lower, will be forfeited as
income. The Deed Holders can request for funeral services
or terminate the funeral services deeds at any time
after the funeral services deeds are sold. Accordingly,
contract liabilities is classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

R-ZE-_—F—A—H AHEEAE
AR #88,180,0007T ° R AN 5% [E &
PREFEEERIREHEL &
E+T\@E$$lrt%*%&%ﬂﬁﬁm#
EMENEEIBARYRIERE -

BE-F_—_FR-F-_—F+=
)Elf—f— Elﬂifﬁr_ *E%ﬁﬁgwu\giﬂ'ff
FRERNBORTRBOKES -

B &

@ ARBZIBARELRPEED
(BEB)AERQAA ([FELED (F
BINAER (ZHBFBEADHE
BERBRO - BRERGROHLHE
NEBERBAEAS TEREHRTR
BEERRRLFERR 2B RR
B ROFHAAFTERE -FBXN
RIEXETREBD M RERNZ
BERBEZOFB - AEELEE
FERR(BRZODFEAZETR
BifE]) & B BEIRHZE R 2
FHECAS hn £ 2B B FR - 1 E A
ERBROZER -REELEE
HEA““%%FM&ZHYLZ RIBNEHEE

R RAITE ABHERNRM
flﬂ BRAEEZHADRN30H
A FCBANE R R EER I R KA
AITE B IR 75 R KRR AE R I
1% 08 Wa 78 2 AR 15 R A B Ak 2 20%
HEMNIBNR(LSBREER
EVERBRA - ZLFE AFTRE H
BERBZOREMNSHE ZRE
BRI B EREIZA - Fit -
AEHNABRESARMBRART SR
RmE B

RELHEBERAT —E--FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 26. EHEE(4E)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (F&
ZEEREH) in Taiwan, the Group has to deposit 75%
of the gross receipt of each funeral services deed entered
into after 31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan
as trust monies. As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
invested trust monies in mutual funds and unit trusts in
Taiwan at a carrying amount of RMB32,771,000 (2021:
RMB34,482,000). Details are disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount
will be recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue
recognition criteria are met.

(c) Contract liabilities of stem cells and immunocytes and
other business are arising from the receipt in advances

BsE : (&)

(a) (%)

BEAEREETEGN KNEBE
BN —_ZET=F+A=1+—H%
ETiZN%%%HW&@ZWEWEMZ
ANBBIZISHIFERAREEZ S BH
BIERETER- Bé_f**¢+_
A=+—H XxEEBKERT

ﬁééi@ﬁ@ﬁ%%@&ﬁ@%%ﬁ%
HmEAAR32,771,000T (=&
—— 4 A\R#34,482,0007T) ° 5
BRERE M B RERMTTE 198 5& -

6) BAEEEBEAESHANKHET
MR B A TR
72 £ 10 BB R 25 R VRN S TR
e o

(0 HAREKEEAREEMEBZNE
Z’JEETSQEJEEHEW;”IE i 7%

from customers and such amount will be recognised as © A A AR B W A i RR AR
revenue when the relevant revenue recognition criteria Eﬂ:& R AU s o
are met.
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&A®E
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Lease liabilities payable: AR TR
HEAE:
Within one year —F R 4,757 4,564
Within a period of more than one  #BiA— F{E T A M F
year but not more than two years 5,032 4,699
Within a period of more than two  BEMFE BB A F
years but not more than five years 13,325 15,768
More than five years B idhF - 2,457
23,114 27,488
Less: Amounts due for settlement  Jg& : 121& A R 2| EJ(E 1~ &9
with 12 months shown KIE (F BRE
under current liabilities a/|) (4,757) (4,564)
Amounts due for settlement after  121E B 1% 2| #J4& (- 59 20 &
12 months shown under G AEERBEE)
non-current liabilities 18,357 22,924
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 27.

28.

Details of maturity of lease liabilities are set out in note

34(b).

BANK BORROWINGS

;A

NF
E-T-o—FE+-A=+—ALEE
E 15 ( n‘ﬁ
MEAE S S
34(b) °
28. fRITIEE

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, bank borrowings were
due for repayment, which are based on the scheduled
repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan

agreements, as follows:

RZBE - —_FR_F-_—F+_-A
=t+—B BITEEAR T HME
(HE&XQE K h ek N BT E] BB B9 7B

EEEHHFAE)EE:

2022 2021
—EgE-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFTT
Within 1 year —F A 1,198 1,192
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FEERMER 1,222 1,211
After 2 years but within 5 years RRFERERTIFEA 2,368 3,460
After 5 years RAF & - 141
3,590 4,812
4,788 6,004
Less: Amounts due within one year and & : A —F R EIH &
shown under current liabilities A mE B ER
TNIA (1,198) (1,192)
Amounts due under non-current ERBEETH
liabilities 2| A I8 3,590 4,812
FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR
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All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants. If the Group were in breach of
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group’s liquidity risk are set out in note 34(b). As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after
one year contain a repayment on demand clause and
hence these balances are not expected to be settled
within one year and are classified as a non-current
liability.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the effective interest
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. RITIRE (&)

FEAEERTEEETBILR
FRR- AL ERZE B8
B EEERN BRI -

s

4

$E@EH}%W“5’E?—EL? ZEH
REFREEHARHEEEHER K
SERHERRNE —TFBE
K 3E34(b) RZZT_—_F K=

T+ HA=1+—B - AEELE
EREEHAEERN S -

4[[3#
el

PRERITEERBHKATIE -

R—FRIBPEENRITEERE
HARBREEGTK I&t % ERE
HREHAR-—FARRES ADER
FRBEIME-

RZEZZ_FRk=-_FT=-_—F+T=H
=t+—B RITEEZEERENX®
B

2022 2021
—g-= —E-—4F

Variable-rate F B A&

1.37%-2.41% 1.37%-2.04%

Bank borrowings of RMB3,403,000 (2021:
RMB4,213,000) denominated in NTD were secured by the
freehold land and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying
amount of RMB22,578,000 (2021: RMB23,552,000)
(note 14(d)). The remaining bank borrowings of
RMB1,385,000 (2021: RMB1,791,000) (note 35(c)(iv)) is
guaranteed by Mr. Liu.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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29.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

—E - —HF+ - RA=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29. G €M BIRARAZHE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION i

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HEWBARAKA ZENARTIE
financial position represents: ¥g
2022 2021
o= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETTT
At 1 January W—A—8 3,567 3,567
Provision for the year FEEE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax - B EMEN
(note 7) (BE7) 4,007 2,888
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7) - BAENEH (FEE7) — 14
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENRE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PR EMEH
(note 7) (BRE7) 3,269 -
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7) - BABMEB (MIzE7) (14) -
Income tax paid during the year FRAENMFTER (6,273) (3,138)
Exchange adjustments ME X, 38 B 486 236
At 31 December Wt+—H=+—H 5,042 3,567
Representing: Bl
Income tax receivable FEU P 1S (14) -
Income tax payables B ETE R 5,056 3,567
5,042 3,567
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) REWAELEHIBEE
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC, *EHJ%‘:P BEREHE B=
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared ENFEF—RR HPBEMNE

in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB31,752,000 (2021: RMB22,434,000) as
the Group controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax
Act of Republic of China, the net dividend or
net surplus earning received by a profit-seeking
enterprise organised as a company from its
investment in another domestic profit-seeking
enterprise shall not be included in its taxable
income. Such exemption is not applicable for
investment in foreign profit-seeking enterprise,
which is subject to income tax at the rate of 17%.

jgﬁHXZ/ﬁnﬁJfl)KZHXg
15&451%55%% =AW TRl

EZ%W%’AETZHQEBZ%@E
B HE B 2% Fom A N KA BE
ﬁﬁﬂiﬂiﬁiﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁé,?é

B 15 3R R 5t D R AR B i A B
BAFINZzZEEHRBEBARKE
31,752,000 (=& = — & :
AR #22,434,0007T ) 1 H
e

& BREFERBEAEH
HRLELUE U AR REAR
MEFCXRBEERELS —
MEFCEMESHR S FE
A F R ﬁﬁﬁk%
REWA-FHBEEHREILTEB
RENEEFICENRE  Z
ERENMBHBEERIT% °

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

& M 1% Rk M 5

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
(Continued)

As one of the Group’s subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan,
a rate of 17% is applicable to the calculation
of the income tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB28,420,000 (2021: RMB21,764,000) as
the Group controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of
Withholding Rates for Various Incomes issued by
Ministry of Finance of Republic of China, the net
dividends or profit distributed to a profit seeking
enterprise having its head office outside the
territory of the Republic of China from investment
in an enterprise within the territory of the Republic
of China shall be withheld at a rate of 20% of the
amount distributed.

As one of the Group's subsidiaries operates within
the territory of Taiwan having its head office
outside the territory of Taiwan, a rate of 20% is
applicable to the calculation of this withholding
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as
this subsidiary has no retained profit that can be
distributed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29.

30.

=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
unused tax losses of RMB29,841,000 (2021:
RMB27,673,000) available for offset against
future profits. Other than tax losses amounting
to RMB19,297,000 (2021: RMB18,447,000)
that would be expiring from 5 years to 10 years
pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the remainder at
the end of the reporting period can be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

29. ZREMBURRRAZHF
Bi(4g)

(C) *zﬁﬁﬁwua_kﬁilﬁ F
RZEBE-_—_F+=_A=+—
B A&EBE 2 RXSABES
B AR®29,841,000L (=&
Z—%: AR%27,673,000
70 ) B] A OBA 8 R 2R i F o BR
BIEFE- e ke E/iHEEE
A RREHRSE10F 5 55
BB IE 18 AR 19,297,000
T(ZZEEZ—F: ARK
18,447 00071)9\\' MR EHAR
2 T &5 2B Tﬁ%ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ,\\ o /h
Eéﬂi%;‘ﬁﬁuzmﬁ?\ﬁﬁ%iﬂu*
ST 48 B A T8 B 18 1 T RR R T

PROVISIONS 30. &
2022 2021
—E=-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREEFIT
Provision for future costs of REFEERRB2Z
delivering funeral services R A1 1R
At 1 January R—H—H 3,086 2,550
(Written back of provision)/provision for AR 2R (B fsHh = )
cost of service (note 5) Bt (BaE5) (1,680) 454
Exchange adjustments PE W EE (26) 82
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,380 3,086

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of
delivering funeral services in future, after taking into
account of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee
payable to the sub-contractor for each funeral service
deed performed, the current market conditions and the
price of deeds. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting period to estimate if the
contract liabilities for funeral service deeds can cover
the estimated future costs of delivering funeral services
and determine the need of making a provision in the
consolidated financial statements.

AEBEEBRIERE (BERY
BEAZEREE) % BBYRAE
IR R 8 TR 75 2 1 BT AR AR A0 38
PR B 4 T R 48 PR T 400 2 (R
o

ZEATIERABSEEBRTHNER
REZOENDBEZOBER B
RSN R 2 ERET EEE
REREPREF A AR FMEET A
HEZEFRERGEODAOAES
BRENAXMRBHEBERS 2 KK
FERCA - M EE R EARE S M BR
RPIEL B

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH

197



198

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
31.

- —F+-_A=+—HItEFEE

SHARE CAPITAL 31. ®B=&E
No. of shares Amount
e &8
RMB'000
AR®ETTT
Authorised: JERE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FIREEO.1 T2 HimAk
At 1 January 2021, 31 December RZE=-_—F—H—H:
2021, 1 January 2022 and —T=—%+=A
31 December 2022 ==g -====
—A—BkZ=ZZF=_Z
+=ZRA=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares issued and ERTRYELER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December R—ZT—_—F—H—A8"
2021, 1 January 2022 and —T-_—F+=H
31 December 2022 =Sdr=E-=28==
—A—Rk=Z=—_—
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREBEABREBNNAREIRZ
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled RERBERARHA Hﬁ%?ﬁ/'\i?ﬁ
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. BRiE—ZBETRR - FIELTERM
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the RARARZHTEEMEHAZTERSE

Company’s residual assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

& B 1% R M 5

:\\/T\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
32. RESERVES 32. fit A
(a) The reconciliation between the opening and () AEEGEERZZ MBI F

closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company's
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

HERGRIYRIANGREE
DEFR-ARARES LD
ZEVNERERZEBFHBHI
(N

below:
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
VAR 1 B
RipiE ERERE 2R it @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFL ARBTT ARETT AREFR
At 1 January 2021 W_FE-_—%—F—H 220,633 (18,845) B (183,960) 17,828
Profit for the year KEEHA - = = 13,765 13,765
Exchange differences on RENBRREEL
translation of financial EREE
statements - (2,803) - - (2,803)
Total comprehensive AEERE(AR) /WALE
(expense)/income
for the year - (2,803) - 13,765 10,962
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-A=+—H 220,633 (21,648) = (170,195) 28,790
At 1 January 2022 RZFZZF—-H—-H 220,633 (21,648) - (170,195) 28,790
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - (55,047) (55,047)
Exchange differences on BRERBRREEZ
translation of financial EHEER
statements - 5,607 - - 5,607
Total comprehensive AEEZERAN/ (%) B8
income/(expense)
for the year - 5,607 - (55,047) (49,440)
Equity-settled share-based ~ DARRBEE ik AERE 2
transaction (note 42) R 5 (KizE42) - - 1,900 - 1,900
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—#+-A=+—H 220,633 (16,041) 1,900 (225,242) (18,750)
TEEGEEERAR —E--EEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. fitifl (48)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) REEMHERAR
(i)  Share premium (i) BROZE
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman BREREBHEARNE K
Islands, the funds in the Company's share NBEZRHDRERAE
premium account are distributable to the PADIRKRTRE HEHR
shareholders provided that immediately EREMNKERBHER
following the date on which the dividend is NRAIBABREIRNEERRE
proposed to be distributed, the Company will HEREXEBRES I H
be in a position to pay off its debts as they Bz T EEIE -

fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Merger reserve (ii) &OiEE
Merger reserve arose from the business EHFEBEIIR_ZZE L
combination under common control in FHETEEEHAM
relation to the acquisition of Bau Shan W HE B LB Wtk R =
during the group reorganisation in 2007. The BIIET 2 EBamE
merger reserve of the Group represents the FEoAREEME G HEE
difference between aggregate net asset value Friiig o8Il EEF
of Bau Shan acquired and the consideration A ERBRESBEEAR
paid for the acquisition of Bau Shan pursuant pWEELENRKREZ
to the group reorganisation. E® o
(iii) Statutory reserve (iii) SEEFE

According to the applicable laws and BESENERERERK
requlations in Taiwan, the Group's Taiwan %EW rEBZRENE
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of NAIEEBERARE R &
their net profits after taxation, as determined W VA Z RlzBEEEr
under the relevant accounting principles and RAI R ERE  EEE
financial regulations applicable to companies BRREATNZ10%E T
established in Taiwan, to a non-distributable ANkFEES BEEMHE
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches EHREEZEHEBEEZE
the registered capital of the respective MERG I - H S RHEEME
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must HrEBENERRES
be made before the distribution of a dividend A7k AR B AT - 1B R 4K 8H
to owners but after offset the previous years'’ BAEFEE T,?i (/)&
losses, if any. (=

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. FEE (48)

(b) Nature and purpose of (b) EEMHEERAZRE (&)
(Continued)

(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

reserves

(iv) £EREFE

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group are required
to appropriate at least 10% of their
profit after tax, as determined under the
relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC, to a non-distributable
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before the distribution of dividends
to owners. The non-distributable reserve
fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital
of the subsidiaries, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of its
registered capital. The non-distributable
reserve fund is non-distributable other than
upon liquidation.

According to the Vietnam Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set
their reserve fund according to the respective
Charter. Under the Charter of the Vietnam
subsidiaries, they are required to transfer
5% to 15% of profit after tax to set up the
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 10%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises.

BEFRBERER A&
EzHh BB QR A
HRBEERARFBERKT
ARz BBEeREA
LB HEETEE R
1&@1%”?4\100/0?%;%7\
DIERFEEE BEE%H
ﬁ@%%ﬁ%ﬁ%Zﬁ
fit & K50% A& IE ° 1A 3%
S B R N AR R
BEADIKKERI#ETT T
AN IRGEES B RE
HEFEBBE(WE) &
IR B ER R ER
BARZEINEA KR
REEBETECES
$%ﬁ\ﬁﬁﬁé$z
25% ° fRIB BN
m%ﬁﬁTﬁﬁﬁo

BIFHEEARE ~&EH
Z B A R AR '
%E%/Tiﬁ“*ﬁ
He - RELENEAR
WRRER - &%ﬁ%%
5% %21 50/02|37T< %Rfé a1 Al
BYRES BEEAWRE
W ERBERZEM
BEAR10% A It -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(v) Properties revaluation reserve
The properties revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for freehold
land and buildings held for own use in note
2(g) and is not distributable.

(vi) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(t).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to eligible participants of
the Group recognised in accordance with
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(p).

(viii) Other reserve

The Group accounted for partial disposal of
interests in subsidiaries without losing control
as equity transactions and the difference
between the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interests and the consideration
received, after re-attribution of relevant
reserves was recognised in “other reserve”.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Finamcial Statements

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(o)

Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’'s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for owners and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry,
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is total liabilities divided by
total assets. The Group aims to maintain the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing
ratios as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

& B 1% R M 5

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

32. fi&fE (&)

(c)

ErEE
AEBEEEAZEIRZRER
BRASEENGTELE Kt
ﬁ%ﬁE%ﬁAﬁX@ﬁ&ﬁ
Hib w8 E & KA &
ﬁﬁﬁ@§$mﬁuﬂdéﬁ
RS

RERIABELAERE A&
BeRBERAEBANZEE
TR REBATHAA %
THBRODILEEERRIE
15 o

MEMRAERAT —B K&EH
uﬁ%é%mwﬁﬁmé$m

CEEBEBELXZBER
HMAAEJ cAREEETE
HEEBBLEEFREG EK
FToRZEZZFRT = —
F+-_A=+t—HBZEEAE
=T

2022 2021
—T/- ===

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥ETTT

Total liabilities HEE 153,971 158,266
Total assets 484 = 284,788 263,854
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE 54.07 % 59.98%

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to
capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

HEEFELE - AKEHE
REBZTALEZEH - A
Bl S E AT I 8 & B39 A = Sh
MERZEARERS
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AR MR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

INSTRUMENTS BY 33. iREREIH»Z2HBEITR

33. FINANCIAL

== === B ==

HIEFE

CATEGORIES
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥ET T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets measured at FVTPL EAFEFABRZTE
ZHBEE
Mutual funds/unit trusts established REEK Tz EE
in Taiwan B EUZFE 32,771 34,482
Listed outside Hong Kong for REEBEEZEI FTTIEEE
trading purpose Vosken
— Equity securities — R AR FE 15,729 4,095
— Debt instruments —BEBILA 4,532 =
— Exchange traded funds —REGMEBEESD 5,745 =
58,777 38,577
Amortised cost B AR 126,169 119,534
Financial liabilities MBEaE
Amortised cost SRR 56,628 61,053
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MEERKREBRRUBZE IR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL Z2AFEE
INSTRUMENTS
The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk, MAEE MBI AEEBRZRERE
interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk FEEERRE RBEERR - FER
arising from financial instruments. The Group's exposure B ERRERERER - TX

to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risk

are described below.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits paid, debt instruments
measured at FVTPL, time deposits with original
maturity over three months and cash and cash

equivalents.

Management has a credit policy

in place and the exposure to this credit risk is

monitored on an ongoing basis.
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=Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit Risk (Continued)

Except for debt securities measured at FVTPL,
the Group performed impairment assessment
for financial assets and other items under ECL
model. Besides, the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from refundable rental deposits is
considered to be low, taking into account (i) the

—E - —HF+ - RA=+—HILFE

3. B EIBEERUBIA

ZAEHE(ER)

(a) FERER (&)

BRIz A FEFABRAENE
BEHFIN AEEBEBEBE
EEFEEEAYcRmEEREM
IH B#EITRER o b 8 E
BOEENEETR RGBT
MR RENHEIRE -

landlords’ credit rating and (i) the remaining AEERMTREESESMmE
lease term and the period covered by the rental EHEERR ?Eiﬁi%?ﬁ =]
deposits. Information about the Group's credit risk BAEBEEERRERE &&

management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable,
are summarised as below:

Debt instruments measured at FVTPL

The Group invests in certain debt instruments
which are unrated. The investments in unrated debt
instruments have to be approved by the directors
of the Company. The directors of the Company
regularly reviews and monitors the portfolio of
debt instruments. Details of the terms of these
investments are disclosed in note 19. Summary
of the fair value and principal amount of these
investments are set out below.

1:. & & f K 48 BR R (B AT 14 (40
R BB T

BO-FEISABzRTEZE
BTA
AEERERETARIRZE
BILRE - RAFABRZEBIAEK
BARARRESEHE AR
7§$EH}%M§1& REBHT
BEl&- %%%&%fﬁ’]ﬂ%ﬂ(p?%
R EIRE - ZEFRENA
FERRSHEHIMAT -

2022 2021
—B-CF —E--F
Principal Principal
Fair value amount Fair value amount
A¥E b ¥ AYE &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETRH ARETTL
Unrated KR
— debt instruments —fERTA 4,532 4,700 = =

FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR 205
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MEEREERMEIAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit Risk (Continued)
Time deposits with original maturity over
three months/cash and cash equivalents

The Group’'s exposure to credit risk arising from
time deposits with original maturity over three
months/cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with a minimum credit rating of B3
(2021: Baa3), which the Group considers to be low
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. In
respect of trade receivables from funeral services,
the Group generally offer credit period of 45 days
to customers, whereas no credit period is granted
to customers for other services rendered by the
Group. Normally, the Group does not hold any
collateral over trade receivables. At 31 December
2022, the ECLs for trade receivable were measured
and loss allowance of RMB1,092,000 was provided
(2021: RMB777,000).

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in industries or countries in which the
customers operate. The maximum exposure to
credit risk without taking account of any collateral
held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. The
Group segments its trade receivables based on
geographic regions, due to different loss patterns
experienced in the different regions.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022

ZAEHE(EH)

(a)

EERE (&)

[R 2] 7] B [ # 18 = 18] A 79
ERHEH BERREZTE
EY

$EIE%ZE§E£JE@HTFT¢L
BZEANTEHRERBe R
ReEEBMEELAZEERREA
ﬁ’ﬁmmﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R AB3(—Z ——4% : Baa3)
2%”&%@%%vﬂk$%
REEFERBRER -

BEZSEKE
ﬁﬁlaﬂmﬁgﬂﬁaﬁﬁ

TBEEMETEEBA—T
ﬁmhﬁm%ﬁﬂmkﬁﬂ
ﬂ@%&m BohGEP TG
EEBAEERHREN LI
&Emmf%%ﬁviA%ﬁ
BEEEBEEBERUNEE KL
ENEBRBE - RBBERBEZ
B EWHEMS - $El—
MRAEFREME4sE 25 EH
ﬁv$%lkaEM%%T
BEYEFPEEBH -—Km s
RNEB W ELE S EWRIBERS
BERMEBEHRB - RZ_ZE=-=
+-—RA=+—H8 B:E85%
FEWRGEZ BEHEE BT
IR 1B A R #1,092,0007T
—T - —F: AR¥777,000
JT) °

AEERNEFEEMBEITENL
MEBRRYEEANEERRE
P~ ERBEIMITH 2 EM
an o AlER & B B R LR B & B
BEEN &= EERR SR
Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ&m%ﬁﬁl$
5 B M IR AT ] < AN & B K
ZEERBROER-

AEEZERREZHEHREER
EBlEz BT =28 5 EKKIE
ZEBBREG ENERBEEE
BETHE AR TRME 2
BEEXNTE N&EER KT
BEEE o HE 5 EWRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& B 1% R M 5

/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. BiBEKMEERMEITA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAFEE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Credit Risk (Continued) (a) f’f%ﬂ (#)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWE (&)
The following table provides information about the TREGEEEAREEMEEEDN
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade EERKRKEE S EWKIAZE
receivables: Eﬂﬁ%)ﬁﬂéz;ﬁﬂ :
2022
—g-—
Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
FEREsESE RE4EE P opicbedi
% RMB’000 RMB’000
=307 4 AR®FTR AR®TR
PRC P =
Current (not past due) BUER (R tp) = 472 -
1-30 days past due # H11-30H - 101 -
31-90 days past due # H#931-90H 69% 265 183
More than 90 days 151 BB 90 B
past due 100% 517 517
1,355 700
Hong Kong &
Current (not past due) BDER (R# A7) 100% 58 58
1-30 days past due i H11-30H = = =
31-90 days past due 1 8931-90H 100% 75 75
More than 90 days 20 B 3890 H
past due 100% 15 15
148 148
Vietnam Hr
Current (not past due) BVHA (R EA) = = -
1-30 days past due #H31-30H - - -
31-90 days past due 1 H331-90 H 42% 92 39
More than 90 days i BB 890 A
past due 100% 205 205
297 244
Total st
Current (not past due) BNER (R HH) 1% 530 58
1-30 days past due #H11-30H - 101 =
31-90 days past due #1 8931-90H 69% 432 297
More than 90 days 1 Bl k83890 B
past due 100% 737 737
1,800 1,092
FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MEEREERMEIAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAFEH(E)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022

Credit Risk (Continued) (a) 1"'5“[&‘? (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESZEWE (&)
2021
== =4
Expected  Gross carrying
loss rate amount  Loss allowance
TBEE B X RH2E a1
% RMB'000 RMB'000
Batt ARMET T ARMET T
PRC =
Current (not past due) BNER (K& HR) = 115 -
1-30 days past due #HEA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #1H831-90H 1% 312 4
More than 90 days 0 HA R 90 H
past due 100% 557 557
984 561
Hong Kong BB
Current (not past due) BIHA (R#HH) 38% 26 10
1-30 days past due #HA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #HA31-90H = = =
More than 90 days #1 HAEB 3890 B
past due - - -
26 10
Vietnam e
Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) - = =
1-30 days past due #HA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due #1H831-90H = = =
More than 90 days i1 B2 390 B
past due 100% 206 206
206 206
Total et
Current (not past due) BNER (K& HR) 7% 141 10
1-30 days past due #HEA1-30H = = =
31-90 days past due # H#i31-90H 1% 312 4
More than 90 days 1 HA 8 B90 H
past due 100% 763 763
1,216 777

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss

experience over the past 12 months.

These

rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.

TEEBEEENBE12(E A
EREBEBEER - ZENEXEH
LA SR B R S0 B ER U & BARE Y
LEMRR - SRR ARERE

HEHS MR

EEay @A
MR BEZEHEZR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

—E - —HF+ - RA=+—HILFE

3. B EIBEERUBIA

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAaFHE(LE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued) (a) f’%iﬂ (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) BEZEWE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect REAEE BSEKKRIEZES
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEEEREESOT
PRC  Hong Kong Vietnam Total
FE E% i @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 W_E-—%F—-H—H 168 3 206 377
Impairment losses recognised BRAREER 393 7 - 400
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—E+-A=+—H 561 10 206 777
At 1 January 2022 R-B-—%-f-H 561 10 206 71
Impairment losses recognised BRAREER 518 143 50 m
Reversal of impairment losses recognised & HE 2251 5 18 2 ¢ (379) (10) (20) (409)
139 133 30 302
Exchange adjustments 5 BB - 5 8 13
At 31 December 2022 iy e e = 700 148 244 1,092
The origination of new trade receivables net EEFEZEKFE (KRB
of those settled resulted in an increase in loss HEE RN BEUEER

allowance of RMB302,000 (2021: RMB400,000).

Other receivables and deposits paid

For other receivables and deposits paid, the
directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits paid
based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The directors of
the Company believe that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL.

1% i A R #302,0000T (==
——4%: AR¥400,0007T) °

AMEUFERENEE
REMEBURREBRE HREM
FARRERREBEGEHEC

B oBEKRALREEEEER
(BNAIE KA BB R HO A IE 1
BHR) - TE BT E A WK TE
B 1R & 19 AT e 314 5 77 {8 5
HE-ARBEERS ZEK
HEE R R R B 72 R AR
WiEAERS B REBERE12
B A B E BB RRRE

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

34. Bt %5 Bl &

EERUBEIR

ZAEE(SH)

Credit Risk (Continued) (a) EERMR (&)
Other receivables and deposits paid HMEWRFEARE 1=
(Continued) (%)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect RAFE HtEKRREBEREE
of other receivables and deposits paid during the NiEezEBEEBHRZDH N
year is as follows: N
2022 2021
—g=-= —E=—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 5,163 2,751
Impairment losses recognised R 2R IEEE 2,758 2,650
Reversal of impairment losses MR 2k B B 18 |
recognised (4,464) (253)
(1,706) 2,397
Exchange adjustments ME W B 4 15
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,461 5,163
The origination of new other receivables and i /\ﬁﬂfgqﬂl RIEREFIES
deposits paid net of those settled resulted in a (MBREEEE)EREERE
decrease in loss allowance of RMB 1,706,000 (2021: A AR ®1,706,0000T (= F
increase in loss allowance of RMB2,397,000). T EEBRBEMARE
2,397,0007T) °
Liquidity risk (b) Ee Rk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserve of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on current rates at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates

3. B EIBEERUBIA
ZAEHE(ER)

(b) REBELER (&)
RITEEME BB DM TR
BEXHEAENTETHEER

as stipulated in the respective loan agreements. HHERE -
2022
ot Jofet
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
SHRHERERE
More than
Weighted More than 2 years Total
average 1 year but but less contractual
interest Within  less than than  More than  undiscounted Carrying
rate On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BE-£ RAmE
i R3S B BHREE

FHHE  BRR R-%R
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR

W If R#IF HEeREAE REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETR AREBTR  ARMTR ARMTR

Non-Gerivative financial liabilities  FE{T4 515 B &

Trade and other payables B o REMERFE - 12,725 - 590 - - 13,315 13,315
Lease liabilities HERE 6.39% - 6,207 6,136 14,500 - 26,843 23,114
Bank borrowings BIRE 1.54% - 1,280 1,280 2413 = 4973 4,788
Amounts due to directors ERESZHE - 2,756 - - - - 2,756 2,756
Amount due to a shareholder R —&RE 258 - 10,325 - 2,330 - - 12,655 12,655
25,806 7,487 10,336 16,913 - 60,542 56,628
2021
—E--F
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
RORERRLRE
More than
Weighted More than 2 years Total
average 1 year but but less contractual
interest Within less than than  More than  undiscounted Carrying
rate On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BR-F BemF
g BAR BLR ANRER

FaNE  BEX R-ER
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR

[k iE  BBRE REREEE EE(E
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETR  AREBTRL ARETR

Non-derivative financial liabilities FATEH KB B

Trade and other payables BHREMERTE - 14,099 - - - - 14,099 14,099
Lease liabilities HEAE 6.47% - 6,308 6,125 18,000 2,500 32,933 27,488
Bank borrowings RITRE 1.48% - 1,277 1,277 3,543 141 6,238 6,004
Amounts due to directors ERESZHE = 1,563 = - = = 1,563 1,563
Amount due to a shareholder ~ fEff—ZR®E 2 78 = 9,757 2,142 = - = 11,899 11,899

25,419 9,727 7,402 21,543 2,641 66,732 61,053

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

14557 B 5k 50 0 45 K
2 fh st FIR TR - b5k 307
EHBAFIEIAHAZS
EELRE

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. gi‘%
\

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

AlEEERUHBEIR
1E(.‘.‘§’

(c) Interest rate risk () F=@E

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk REBAERZBERIZEBRITE

in relation to bank borrowings at variable rates. BEzREREMNERR - A&

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest B 7B A % B R B HA R [ R iR

rate risk in relation to fixed-rate time deposits “RAMEEEHFREEE

with original maturity over three months and BEZAFEMNERR K&

lease liabilities. The Group did not use derivative ] 37 E R AT AR B 7 T B DAY

financial instruments to hedge its debt obligations. FHEBREF-AEEE Eﬁﬁ

The Group aims at keeping borrowings at variable REEBER - AEBREHNX

rate. The Group manages its interest rate exposures K R B = &Yl ] F) = “@J

by assessing the potential impact arising from any FTEENEBEXE WEEREH
interest rate movements based on interest rate FMERRE - BEEESRNES

level and outlook. The management will review the FOF BB A IR E

proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates BEREEHEN-

and ensure they are within reasonable range.

Bank balances are carried at low interest rates and MITHEBRIZER R E - 5t

the interest income thereon is not significant. EENFERAL TERX-

(/)  The following table, as reported to the () HUOmAEEEIREREM
management of the Group, details the WwE - TRFHLAEER
interest rate risk profile of the Group’s assets/ HREBRONEE (8
(labilities) at the end of the reporting period. &) Fl KRB MR -

2022 2021
ol Janfent —E-—&
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
ARBTR  BRHZE%) ARETR BB (%)
Fixed-rate B2
Time deposits with R 5| B s e R 4R
original maturity =EAM
over three months EHER 9,334 3.60% = =
Lease liabilities BEAR (23,114) | 6.87%-12.00% (27,488) | 6.87%-11.59%
(13,780) (27,488)
Variable-rate #8
Bank borrowings BT 137%-2.41% (6,004) | 1.37%-2.04%

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The directors of the Company performed
sensitivity analysis with estimation of a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points.

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points (2021: 100 basis points) in interest
rates for variable-rate borrowings, with all
other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after
tax and increased/decreased the Group's
accumulated losses by approximately
RMB40,000 (2021: increased/decreased
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by RMB50,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not change in
response to the general increase/decrease in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
(2021: loss) after tax (and accumulated loss)
and other components of consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group's profit
(2021: loss) after tax (and accumulated loss)
and other components of consolidated equity
is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2021.

3. B EIBEERUBIA
ZAEHE(ER)

(c) FEER (&)
(ii) ®EE T H
RAREEAEE A
T RE10016 & 25 2 {513
THREDHT -

R—ZE_—_F+=_AH
=t+—H WEZEEERZ
Pl A T FE100
MEZH(ZZF = —F:
100fE E 2) - ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
fih B B M 35 R B R fA AT
$%l2ﬁﬁm§mﬂﬂ%
B RN
2 BB B MR
# AR #40,000T (=
Z—F AEERKRTE
Bk R BRI,
B AR #50,0007T) °

Hth e =TT
%agﬂ"liiﬂ/TM
i o 38 &

il gERELSTER &
FH RSB RIS
KL WEBEBREH
SAEAREERFEAE TR
HEHREAEE @G
AFEMERERKRDN S
T A -AEBRRE S
FM(ZEZ—F:EFHE)
(REFTEER) REZE#

= B E A KRR ) A E
G0l Al RN

RBERRFANIH
MEFFTEIAEMELE
MIRE REMERRM
5 HAK BB KGR
—Eo—F:58) (&

REEBER) REAEED
H@EXBoNTET
CRGERIES kR

BRXIBANEEY
B R MER =T —
R AR -

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. B EMREEBRHERIA
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL /N E(E
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (d) E®ER

The Group currently does not have a foreign NE&E B AR INE B

currency hedging policy. However, the directors of KeAM RAREFERAK

the Company monitor the Group's foreign currency SEZINERE WHERER

exposures and will consider hedging significant TRZREEANNINE R R E

foreign currency exposures should the need arises. £ o

(i)  Exposure to currency risk (i) FrE¥#zE%ERE
The Group is exposed to currency risk AREBERZHEERR
primarily through bank deposit denominated \I E B LA EHE R
in a foreign currency that is a currency TER (ABBEBA
other than the functional currency of /i & B I BE B & DA AN AY
the operations to which they relate. The B o 5| But IH & B /Y
currencies giving rise to this risk are EURO, B AT -ET AR
US$, RMB and HK$. The Group’s policy is BERABT AEEREE
to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an HREHAXEH  CBEXB
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign REEEXEEING U
currencies at spot values when necessary to RS RRFELRTT
address short-term imbalances. AT KT
The following table details the Group's THRAFINAEERHRE
exposure at the end of the reporting period HAREANIEBEERY &
to currency risk arising from recognised BEEUIN B EZ
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency ERREEXBEME
other than the functional currency of the EvEBRR -HE2HM
entity to which they relate. For presentation T RAREBEIIUARE
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are TR EDERFEEZEBR 2
shown in RMB, translated using the spot rate BVEARE =i & o

at the year end date.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
FEH 2 MERE (MAREIIR)

2022 2021
ot et —E-—F

EURO us$ RMB EURO us$ RMB

XL ES ARH B EY AR

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

T T T T T T

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 55 378 13 53 1,013 99
Net exposure arising from HMRAEEMEL L

recognised assets B FE 55 378 13 53 1,013 99

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
(2021: loss) after tax (and accumulated
losses) that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and the US$ would

202 BE T -+ -_A=+—HItFE

3. B EIBEERUBIA
ZAEHE(ER)

(d) E#EkR (&)
(ii) BEEDH
TRV HERS B R
REBMEEAFEZE
KRz AR (L
ERZAMA E 2 &
HERFTEZBRT &
SR BRBREREN(ZF
Z—F:BB) (K&
B8 eEE 2 BN E
o ms B/EIZ
TCH E LB B IE R

be materially unaffected by any changes in TgRETHEHEMER
movement in value of the US$ against other 2 £ T—Hﬁfﬁm &) ifn % 2
currencies. BEATE
2022 2021
“¥CCE “E--F
Increase/ Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/
(decrease) (decrease) (increase) in (decrease) in (increase) (increase) in
in foreign in profit ~ accumulated foreign exchange in loss accumulated
exchange rates after tax losses rates after tax losses
Ex BBl g A RitBE Ex BRH%EE ZHER
I#/(TH) #h/(E8P) B/ (Em) EA/(T%)  wS/ ()  md/(Em)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT AREFT ARBFT
us$ e 10% 31 31 10% 84 84
(10%) (31) (31) (10%) (84) (84)
EURO BT 10% 5 5 10% 5 5
(10%) (5) (5) (10%) (5) (5)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
group entities’ profit/(loss) after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into RMB at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

ERZNNZ DM ERE
EREEEERYREER
B E (AREBRAETT
ZEZRHBBARE)E
SEERH RSN (B
TE)&$E¥ i*’\EDH—iﬁ?
EHZESNA

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. Bt¥ &
Z/

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The Group's mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits,
bonds and equity securities listed in Taiwan and
other foreign stock markets.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities,
debt instruments and exchange traded funds as
disclosed in note 19. Decisions to buy or sell listed
equity securities, debt instruments and exchange
traded funds are based on daily monitoring of
the performance of individual securities, debt
instruments and exchange traded funds compared
to that of the index and other industry indicators,
as well as the Group’s liquidity need.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the financial assets measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2021: 10%) lower/higher,
the Group's profit after tax would decrease/
increase and the Group’s accumulated losses
would increase/decrease by RMB2,336,000 (2021:
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
would increase/decrease by RMB745,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair value of
financial assets measured at FVTPL.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit (2021: loss) after tax
(and accumulated loss) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the changes in the stock market index or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group's equity
investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market
index or the relevant risk variables, and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.

Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

& B 1% R M 5

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

3. B EIBEERUBIA
ZAEHE(ER)

(e)

(f)

EEEXRRERE (&)

BEREDW (&)

WiE A FEFABDTEZH
BEEZEBHRERL HEIN10%
(ZZE=-—F:10%) ' Bl&x&E
B 2 BB & 0E F A5 4,1
MAREEN R EBIEGENS
B AR #2,336,000T (=&
Z—F AEEBRREEBEKX
2t EEEE N RS AR
745,0007T) W TY AR IZR A F
@ﬁk% SRTEZHBEEZ
NEELB TR

BREEDMABR F“kmh
%ﬁ%%%a%i It E FE A
REFHEAEEMFE IR
HERRFEAEEEGERAE
BEBZERMIE AEE2
BHREMN(ZE=Z—F: &
B) (KRR EBB)REA#
mZ H o BEE Z BN g
ot MBREIAEEBRA
BEZ AT EGREEERERK
EMIHEEBKAEEREE 2
FEEHABEEmES . moTe &
B B 4 m:%:—
FERAEREELETON-

o

NEEFE

(i) BLAFHETEZHE
BEEREBE
NEEER
TREV R HE B RIE
@%ﬁgﬁ%§m$%
B TENRFEE"
ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
FI13% A FEHE E%

M=ZRRFEER 1F
BEFfEFENERRLS

EZEER P F RN E
AENIHEREREES
HEEMT :
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MEEREERMEIAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAFEH(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) 2FEFTE(E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities (i) BRFETAEZHHE

measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not
available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the
finance manager performing valuations for
the financial instruments. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. A valuation report with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement
is prepared by the team at each interim and
annual reporting date, and is reviewed and
approved by the directors of the Company.
Discussion of the valuation process and
results with the directors of the Company
and the audit committee is held quarterly, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MR ETERIHE IR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ZAFE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) AFEFTE(E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities (i) ZRFETEZHFE
measured at fair value (Continued) BEERBE (&)
Fair value measurements AT EFTE

Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into

RZBZZF+ZA=+-BH

31 December 2021 categorised into

%:?: ¢+‘ﬂ’+ =)

ATLEAENEB B ENER
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2022 Level 1 2021 Level 1
RZB-Z% RZZZ—%
+ZA=+-H +=A=+—-H
WATE - HATE F—E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBFTT ARBFT
Recurring fair value EEMATEGE
measurements
Asset &E
Financial assets measured BRATEFABRETE
at FVTPL ZHBEE 58,777 58,777 38,577 38,577

During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to

RBEE_T_—_Fk=
T —F+ZHAH=+—
AEFEE - F—[EH%E =
BTAEZEIGEEL K

recognise transfers between Levels of fair mEAE=EEE=

value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting BEE AEEZBER

period in which they occur. ﬁ’\ BAEEKm WwE R
BRATFEER 2 ER-

(ii) Fair value of financial instruments (i) WHZELFEIERZ
carried at other than fair value HMHETREZLFHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 75 B 4R 8 X AR 7 BR
instruments carried at amortised cost were 2B TAEZEREEHR
not materially different from their fair values HRZZZZFR=%
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. ——F+-_A=+—H

ZRFELEERD R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-A=+—

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35.
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company's directors as disclosed in note 8 and

BLEFE
EEMELXS

BREeUBHRREMTOARER
Rggih AEBERILATEEREH
BARS:

(a) FEEBEAEMSE
AEBIZEBAEMESBE
XN FARRBEE (B S
MEBE) RETRSFHEE (K

certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed KT FEOPTIRER ) 2 FRIBMAT ¢
in note 9, is as follows:

2022 2021

—g-— —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREETTT

Short-term employee benefits EHES R 3,167 5,612

Post-employment benefits B B 2 A = -

Share-based payments VARR 0 A EL 7 2 A 31 482 =

3,649 5,612

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see

note 6(b)).

(b) Remuneration for close family members
of key management personnel

(b) TEE

FMRBEAATEIRA] (R
fEE6(b) ) °

BABLRZHME

Remuneration for close family members of key AEBFEER ABLE 2
management personnel of the Group is as follows: W
2022 2021
—ECCF —E-—fF
Short-term Post- Short-term Post-
employee  employment employee employment
benefits benefit Total benefits benefit Total
BHESEHN RERAEH @y RHREEEA BEBAR A @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTT  ARETR
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan 920 - 920 1,733 - 1,733
BIRESt £ 4
Ms. Liu Ting Hsin 300 = 300 751 = 751
BIEm L
1,220 - 1,220 2,484 - 2,484

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

—E - —HF+ - RA=+—HILFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEFEFXSH (E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Remuneration for close family members
of key management personnel
(Continued)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

(c) Other related parties transactions

(i) On 15 March 2013, a deed of trust (the
“Niao Song Deed”) was entered into
between Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms.
Li”), spouse of Mr. Liu, in relation to the
land property situated in Taiwan at No.
943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township,
Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the “Niao Song
Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau
Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be
registered under the name of and held on
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
Subsequent to 31 December 2022, a renewal
of the Niao Song Deed was entered into
between Bau Shan and Ms. Li in relation to
Niao Song Property for a term of another 10
years commencing on 15 March 2023. Ms. Li
has agreed that she shall act in the interest
of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song
Property during the term of the Niao Song
Deed.

(i) On 25 March 2016, a deed of trust (the
“Neimen Deed”) was entered into between
BLL and Mr. Liu in relation to a land property
situated in Taiwan at No0.0300-00001 in
Section Laizikeng, Neimen District, Kaohsiung
County, Taiwan (the “Neimen Property”).
Under the Neimen Deed, BLL agreed that
the Neimen Property, which is owned by BLL,
shall be registered under the name of and
held on trust by Mr. Liu for BLL. Mr. Liu has
agreed that he shall act in the interest of BLL
in relation to the Neimen Property.

(b) TEEBABLBR M=

(c)

(&)

FoMeEs AIEIRA] (R
BiEE6(b))

HEMEERZRXRS

iy M-ZE—=F=A+=
B BLEFEE L+
(IFZt] BEEZR
BIRAUNREESHEZS
R BB AR A ER 9433t 5% 2 +
(ISR E])E]
V- EAEE([BRA
i) - BIBE SN
ELREHRELESEZ
EMRYMEBANFTLL 2
ZE M XA EEER
ABBELUEE BH_ZT—=
F=At+HB®TAEH
TE- RZE__F+=
A=+—RH#% BlL8EZF
LI BRI ER L —
MEESNZE BT
= ZAt+HBEH
BHtF-ZTLLRER
SMZEFHAN L5
EMYENE L ZF=
7%

(il RZE—RF=ZA=+=H
B M2 %45
TReEsHEEAMNE
K 1 1 E20300-00001
Sz LtwE([RMHY
XD —HiEERE
(TAMZE]) - RER
PIZ2¥E - REMREE BT
EMBER 2 AP E
NBEEZREFMIL
LEFEERAETE MR
BB RAERERAMY
EUTEMZFHITE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEREAXTS (E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions
(Continued)
(iii)  On 1 April 2016, BLL was granted by Mr. Liu
Ting-Hsuan, close family member of Mr. Liu,
on an exclusive basis a licence to use a
number of trademarks in connection with the
elderly care and related consultancy services
of BLL at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

(iv)  Guarantee for the Group's bank borrowings
of RMB1,385,000 (2021: RMB1,791,000)
(note 28) is given by Mr. Liu during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

(v)  On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell
Therapy (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongke
Guangju”), a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and is indirectly
held as to 30% equity interest by Mr. XU
and his associates through a controlled
company, and Zhongke Zhengi Biotechology
(Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Zhongke
Zhengi"), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an agency agreement (the “Agency
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agency
Agreement, Zhongke Guangju has agreed
to engage Zhongke Zhengi as a tier 1 agent
to represent its sales and/or services of stem
cells and immunocytes in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Macau.

* for reference only
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEFEFXSH (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions
(Continued)

(v)

(Continued)

Zhongke Guangju, as service provider, will,
in addition to providing stem cells and
immunocytes products and/or services, be
responsible for complimentary advisory and
promotional materials. Zhongke Zhenqi,
as agent, will be responsible for market
development, market promotion and
providing market feedback to Zhongke
Guangju. The prices of the products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju were
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between both parties and are consistent with
the prices provided by Zhongke Guangju
to existing agents. Zhongke Guangju may
determine at its own discretion the sale
prices of the relevant products and/or services
based on market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Zhongke Guangju has provided stem cells
and immunocytes products and/or services,
and complimentary advisory and promotional
materials to Zhongke Zhengi of RMB212,000.
No such services was provided by Zhongke
Guangju during the year ended 31 December
2022.

() RBEMBELSZXS (&)

(v)

(%)

RRERES RS RS
BoRERRARR 2R
AMBESR R HRBIN
BT RERERSN
KE B - R BREE
RRERH BREMHF
B mBEENRATHE
BREMERE-PRE
BFRHENER R HR
BERDBAETERYF
ERgERZ BEPNE
BRRERETRTRENE
®—E - B ERARE
mZERETHIEEE
M E MR RB
HEBE-

REBEE=_ZE=-_—F+=
A=+—HLEE #F
ERmh R SRR HE
MK R MR ER N
SRBEARREZAR
EEME - ERARARK
212,000 REE-F
&+ =ZA=+—-H
EFE - FRERTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEREAXTS (E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() Other related parties transactions ()

(Continued)

(vij  On 13 September 2021, Zhongke Xunda
Biotechnology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited* (“Zhongke Xunda”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a capital increase agreement
(the “Capital Increase Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Nanyue Crown Block Bio Intelligent
Equipment Investment Co., Ltd. (“Nanyue
CB") to increase the registered capital of
Zhongke Zhenhui (Guangdong) Medical
Technology Company Limited (“Zhongke
Zhenhui”), an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, from
RMB 10,000,000 to RMB80,000,000 on a pro
rata basis. Pursuant to the Capital Increase
Agreement, Zhongke Xunda and Nanyue
CB agreed to contribute, by way of cash,
RMB35,700,000 and RMB34,300,000 into
the registered capital of Zhongke Zhenhui,
respectively. Nanyue CB is ultimately owned
as to approximately 71.25% by Mr. Xu and
his associates.

As at 31 December 2022, Nanyue CB
contributed RMB16,200,000 (2021:
RMB4,800,000) into the registered capital of
Zhongke Zhenhui.

*  For identification purpose only

(d) Amounts due from/(to) other related (d)
parties
Particular of amounts due from/(to) other related
parties, which are included in trade and other
receivables or in trade and other payables are

HEMEEL XS (&)

(vi)

RZEZ—FNLA+=
H ARaHEZEN
BRrfRAEEDHE
B OR ﬁ\l)ﬁﬂﬁ@i(rﬁtﬂ
BEER 2 | ) BRI
KEEYEREERE
BRAA ([EHMKXE])
R IR EWE ([EEH
#|) BAAREEER
BEH B A ﬂﬁiﬂﬂ%*ﬂrﬁ'
RIBEREAERA
(Wﬂﬂi%,‘inzufﬂﬁéf
@ AR¥10,000,000
TR FIIEME AR
80,000,0007T ° 1B #& 1 &
ek PRIFERBERX
BERENAREHADF
MAPREEZEMER
& AR#35,700,000
TR AR¥34,300,000
TLoEMAERTLEE
MEBBASRKRERY
71.25% °

==

ﬂE‘bR

+
N

]]]“
18 |1
o Jm

+—8 @
ﬂ%%ziﬂ%}éa&ﬂj
AR #16,200,0007T
—E - —F: AR
4,800,0007T ) °

Aﬂba%\\l?‘;

* AR

JEH&/ EN)HEMEER

FRIE

FEU, (REAT) E At B 2 75 3%
R (Gt AE S K& H A E W ROR
o B 5 B A At 8 4 20B ) i 3

disclosed as follows: EHEEMT
2022 2021
ot St 3 —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB’000
Relationship Mz ARETR ARBFT
Ms. Chang REBZLE  Key management TEEBAE
Hui-Lan personnel 245 1,445
Mr. Liu BIEFE4L  Close family member TEEBRASEH
Ting-Hsuan of key management
personnel (336) (165)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B Rk Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEFEFXSH (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Amounts due from/(to) other related (d) B§H&/ (B HEMBEER
parties (Continued) FIE ()
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is EWE—hﬁHﬁé gk RN
as follows:
2022 2021
—Eg--F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBT T
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan REBZ T 1,717 1,445
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan 2IpEsF L £ N/A N/A
~i#EH i A

SEABREN B RAR
EEHEE-

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

() Amounts due to directors (e) ENEZZRIE
Particular of amounts due to directors are disclosed ENESRENFBERZEN
as follows: T

2022 2021

—T|-_F —E - —4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARBEFIT

Mr. Liu 2% & 1,366 1,141

Mr. Xu FFEAE 1,122 136

Dr. Xu wiEL 213 147

Mr. Chai b e 15 115

Mr. Sun REE 27 12

Dr. Yang HiET 13 -

Mr. Wang FRE - 12

2,756 1,563

SEREER BEURER
EEMEE-

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f) Amount due to a shareholder

3. X ERAEAX D (&)

(f) BN—2BRRZHE

Particular of amount due to a shareholder is B —BRERENFERE
disclosed as follows: m
2022 2021
—E=-= —=E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological BB = IEE R
Technology Company Limited BR QA 12,655 11,899
Analysed as: DA
Current liabilities mEEaE 10,325 11,899
Non-current liabilities EREEE 2,330 =
12,655 11,899

As at 31 December 2022, the amount due to
a shareholder classified as current liabilities
amounting to approximately RMB10,325,000
(2021: RMB9,757,000) are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand, and approximately
RMBNil (2021: RMB2,142,000) are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year, while
the remaining portion of RMB2,330,000 (2021:
RMBNil) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
after one year.

36. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2022, the Group had contracted with
tenants in respect of part of its office and investment
properties for the following future minimum lease

RZBEZZFF+ A=+ —
H EST—2RENSES
MBAENRELNAEAREK
10,325,000t (=& = — F:
AR ®9, 757,000 ) A & i
B EmBRAREEEE  HA
REZT(ZZTEZ—F: AR
MZ14zoooﬁ>¢%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ~ﬁ
BEAR—FREE mMEH%
*Bf‘z%/\EEﬁ¥2,330,oooii(::
T —F: ARBZT) BERK
HomB HAR —FEEE-
36. EEMR
AEBEBEAEEA
RZEZZF+ZH=+—H A&
ERELI PR AR EYEME
BEATHZARZERENKBEW

payments: i
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ET T
Within 1 year —FR 232 207
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 465 =
697 207
Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by EWEEHRERB D ANEERE

the Group for certain of its investment properties. Leases
are negotiated for terms of 3 years (2021: 3 years). None
of the lease includes contingent rentals.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022

ETREMERWMNIES - HEPLRE
HMEAIF(ZZT-—F:3F) I
ERNBEXAEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e B Rk Y At

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. A AkiE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022 NTEMBERERARBE RS
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements ::¢ +ZA=+t—BHKREBTTZ
are as follows: BARAENT
2022 2021
—g=-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Capital expenditure contracted ERANERERE
but not provided for: BEARX :
— Investments in associates — R EHE RN T 2,460 11,160
— Investment in a joint venture —R—HEELFE KA 6,500 6,500
— Construction in progress —fEETRE - 768
8,960 18,428
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EIEE
As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of the RZEBEZZF+=ZA=+—H 'K
Group were secured by land and buildings with an SERTEERRABEARARK
aggregate carrying amount of RMB22,578,000 (2021: 22,578,000 (=T = —F: ARK
RMB23,552,000) (notes 14(d) and 28). 23,552,0007T ) 2 + b J 1 = {E K 4

(H5E14(d) %2 28) °

FEEREEERAT —E-_FFR 227
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
39. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

228

39. M H2

ol

Details of the Company's subsidiaries, which are (@ MZZE__FR_ZT_—%F
private companies or, if established/incorporated +TZA=+—8 &ARna K
. ; L A 5 e NS
outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same B A (R A AR (R
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as BEAFINK LMK ) A
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: BRBEELARBRNBARZ
Frdh) 2 BT
Issued and
Place and date of Authorised ordinary fully paid-up
incorporation/ share capital/ ordinary share or
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital re?istered capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities/place of operation
HfL/ EEEHE ERTRYREER
HEATEE RIRHREH gHRER ikt 3 5:b4) RN/ EY
Group's Held
effective by the Held by
interest Company  asubsidia
Yy I R
BRRR #E ATRE
Directly held
EERE
Bau Shan Taiwan NTD70,452,000 NTD70,452,000 60% 60% - Provision of funeral services,
29 December 1998 (2021: NTD70,452,000) (2021: NTD70,452,000) sale of funeral services deeds and
. : investment holding/Taiwan
i 2 70,452,000%7 4 % 70,452,000 2% RERERY HERERY
-“AANETZAZTAB (Z3--%: (Z22-%5:70452,000 FORRARE/ 88
70452,00057 4 %) ek
Full Spread (China) Limited Hong Kong A HKS1 100% 100% - Investment holding/Hong Kong
‘ 5 October 2007 (2021: ) (2021: HKS1) ) )
45 (E)ERAR % ) NER , 18T RERHR/ R
“RRLETATA (ZF=-%:78R) (ZB=—£:1%7)
Alied Smart Development Limited Hong Kong A HKS1 100% 100% - Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010 (2021: ) (2021: HKS1) )
RRERARLA v ] NER ) 17 RERHR/ R
“2-REMA-A (ZB=-%:78R) (ZB=—£:1%7)
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong A HKS1 100% 100% - Provision of funeral services and sale
9 August 2010 (2021: N/A) (2021: HK$1) of funeral services deeds/
. 3 N ) Hong Kong .
hELD (B8 ERAR &% ) NER ) 18T REBERBREERERH
ZI-TEN\ANA (ZF=-5:T8R) (ZF=-F:1%71) 2H/8%
Dayrise Enterprises Limited BVI 15$50,000 US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding/BVI
13 SeBtember 2010 (2021: US$50,000) (2021: US§1) .
RALEERAA ERERES ) 50,000% 70 ) T RERE/XRRXES
“T-SEAATER (2225 :50000%T) (Z2=-F1%7)
Jing Run Limited BVI US§1,000,000 US§1,000,000 55% 55% - Inactive/BVI
_ _ 12 February 2010 (2021: US$1,000,000) (2021: US$1,000,000)
REBRAT ZRRAHS ) 1,000,000%7 1,000,000%7 TER/RRRLES
ZT-SECATSA 0 (SES-E01000000%T)  (ZB=—%F:1,000000%7)
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Hong Kong NA HKS1 100% 100% - Inactive/Hong Kong
Limited 17 April 2012 (2021: NIA) (2021: HKS1)
K (578) R AT 3 NER ) &7 TER/EE
“R-ZEMATLA 2--F:FER) (Z2=-F:1%7)
PRERENRE (ER) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - Research and testing development/
ERAF 29 November 2018 (2021: RMB10,000,000) The PRC
LT AR10,000,00070 FEAHARRS/RE
Z2-\f+-AZthA (2% ARK
10,000,0007c)
Zhongke Zhengi Biotechnology Hong Kong A HK$1,000,000 100% 100% ~ Sales of biotechnical machineries/
(Hong Kong) Company Limited 9 April 2019 (2021: NIA) (2021: HK$1,000,000) HongKong
PRERENRE (BR) &7 ) NER 1,000,000 ENNRESHE /A%
RAw ZZ-NEBAAE (ZF-%:48R) (ZF=-%
1,000,000 7%)
Indirectly held
30
Chongging Xibao** The PRC US$4,000,000 US$4,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 (2021: US$4,000,000) (2021: US$4,000,000) investment holding/The PRC
BERR: 4,000000%70 4,000000%7C RERBRBRERLR/ 8
SERLESATAR (ZEC-F:4000000%7) (Ea==4
4,000,000%7)
Chongging Xizhou*" The PRC RMB300,000 RMB300,000 100% - 100%  Provision of funeral services/The PRC
25 October 2006 (2021: RMB300,000) (2021: RMB300,000)
ERRR HE RH%300,0007 ARH300,0007 RERERE/TE
ZEENFTAZTEA (22=-F:ARK (3=-%
300,0007) AR300,0007)
Sino-Life Eternities Limited BVI US$50,000 US$10,000 78.75% - 78.75%  Investment holding/BVI
- 15 April 2010 (2021: US$50,000) (2021: US$10,000) .
RN ERERAT ABRAES - 5000057 10,0007 RERR/ZRALER
“E-ZEMATEA (ZBZ-F:50000%7)  (ZFZ—%F:10,000%7)
Sino-Life Eternities Services Hong Kong A HK$1 78.75% = 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
Limited 20 April 2010 (2021: NiA) (2021: HK$1) Hong Kong
hEREDRBARAA ) R 1AL HARR/ B
“E-TERA-TR (ZB=-%:T8R) (ZR=—F:1%7)

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ= —
39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

TSt A=t—

39. IBAT (&)

(a)

Issued and fully paid-up

(%)

BIEFE

Place and date of Authorised ordinary share ordinary share or registered
Name of subsidiary |ncorporat|on/ establishment capital/ registered capital capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities/place of operation
EERERE E’s'éﬁ&ﬁﬂ’*i!lﬁ
WBAR R mmsuam HREx gHfEx ikt § 32040 TERE/BERY
Group's Held
effective by the Held by
interest ~ Company ~ asubsidia
350 BxAE  B-EM
BB #E  AERE
Indirectly held (Continued)
& (8)
Jinhao Enterprises Limited BVI 1§50,000 U1 100% - 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 (2021: US$50,000) (2021: US$1) )
SELEERAA RERXEE 50,000% 70 ~ %L RESR/ RBRLES
“2-RENATERA (ZB-F:500002T) (ZF=-F1%7)

Sino-Departures Limited Hong Kong NA HKS5 100% - 100%  Not yet commenced business/

5 December 2011 (2021: NIA) (2021: HK$5) Hong Kong

RERTEERAR &% iyl o 5B hﬁﬁﬁ/é,’é

—2——4£+-A1A (Z2=—%:74R) (ZR=—%:5%T)
Bao Son Life Vietnam 5$200,000 U5200,000 80% = 80% Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 (2021: US$200,000) (2021: US$200,000)
BliR #E_ 20000070 20000057 RERR/ B
. Sty —F:00000%7)  (ZFZ—F:200,000%7)
Ban Shan Consulting Limited Samoa US$50,000 Us$1 60% = 100%  Inactive/Taiwan
14 November 2013 (2021: US$50,000) (2021: US$1) )
EED 50,0005 B3 TER/AE
“F-Zft-A+EA (ZF=—F:50000% ) (ZF=—F:1%7m)
HLV Duc Hoa (note (b)) Vietnam VND50,000,000,000 VIND39,750,000,000 - - - Sale of burial plots and provision
22 June 2012 (2021 - YND50,000,000,000) (2021: VND39,750,000,000) of cemetery maintenance
o senvices/Vietnam
HLY Duc Hoa (I3 (h)) il 200,00, Q00 39,750,000,0008 /& HEENRRUERALRE/
“E-FRACTCR To-F: (ZFC-F:39750000,000 il
50,000, 000 ooomé HERE)
BLL Talwan NTD15,000,000 NTD15,000,000 60% - 100%  Provision of elderly care and related
12 October 2015 (2021: NTD15,000,000) (2021: NTD15,000,000) consuhancy services/Taiwan
AEH Rl 15,000,005 4% 15,000,000374 % REELRABHARE/ R E
“E-RftATZR (Z%=—%:15,000,000 (ZFZ—#:15,000,000
fink) #a%)

Chongging Shouen Elderly Care Services  The PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Not yet commenced business/
Limited"” 27 September 2016 (2021: RMB1,000,000) (2021: RMB1,000,000) The PRC

ERRBRZRBAERLT A % 2000007 AR% 0,007 HARE/ P

“BRFAACTER E_—f —£:
/\R% ,000,0007C) )\EW 000,0007¢)

Zhongke Life Holding Co., Limited Hong Kong NA HK$1,000,000 100% = 100%  Not yet commenced business/

22 July 2019 (2021: N/A) (2021: HK$1,000,000) Hong Kong

THERERERAT 5 ki 1,000,007 hifi%/ ik

“E-hELA-TCR “-EAER) (ZFS-F:1,000000%7)
Zhongke Xunda® The PRC RMB40,000,000 RMB1,812,890 100% = 100%  Not yet commenced business/
17 September 2019 (2021: RMB40,000,000) (2021: RMB1,812,890) The PRC
R AR40000,000T ARS1812,8907 HARE/TE
“2-AEAATER (Z%=— —3=-
40,000,007z ) ARH1812 89075
Zhongke Zhenhui®* The PRC RMB80,000,000 RMB17,090,000 51% - 51%  Biomedical technology research/
19 May 2020 (2021; RMB10,000,000) (2021: RMB5,690,000) The PRC
HHEE /\M‘BO 0000007 AEE17,09,0007 ENBERARE/ 26
“2RFIATAR (ZB=—%:
"%10 000 0007C) AR 5,690,0007)

Guangdong Zhenyuan Investment The PRC RMB70,000,000 RMB30,000,000 29.14% - 57.14%  Investment activities and corporate
Company Limited *® 20 December 2021 (2021: RMB70,000,000) (2021: RMBNil (note)) management consultation (2021:
(“Guangdong Zhenyuan”) ) not yet commenced business)/PRC

ERBEREEEREL AR BE }\RWO 000 00070 AE 30,000,000 REEDROZERRN

([E=5E]) “EC-FTTACHA T4 (ZF=-F:ARBIR (ZF=-F:WARR/TE)
A%moooo 0007C) (M)
@ Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise established in the * F; Bl s Ak 2 SN R 9B B
PRC

i Wholly-domestic-owned enterprise established in & FA AR B Al AR S ) D & 1 3

the PRC

. For identification purpose only " EXe il

2 Guangdong Zhenyuan is a non-wholly owned s Eﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ BRARRNEEZIFEEE

subsidiary of Zhongke Zhenhui and therefore KB A=) B AN E E S E
the equity interest of Guangdong Zhenyuan BEEIR29.14% P8 HE o
attributable to the Group is 29.14%.

Note: Registered of the company was not paid-up as at BE: R—E——ER KT —

31 December 2022 and/or 2021. F+_A=+—B BAFAZ
SMERBRME -
TEEGEEERAR —E--FEH 229
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

The Group does not hold any ownership interests
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based
on the terms of the contract under which HLV
Duc Hoa was established and controlled by the
Group, the Group receives substantially all of the
variable returns related to the involvement in HLV
Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and has the
ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most
significantly affect those returns.

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"):

Place of incorporation/

(b)

39. B AT (&)

ANEEIWESFHE EFEHL Duc
HoaZ fE FT A Mz o AT
B4R AN & B & DA K S K 42
HLV Duc HoaZ % & Rl Z &3
ANEEUWE AL 2 N2
HAHLV Duc HoaZ# 2 A] & [0
RRFEE URBRENEE
HZEOHRAEZRATEZHLY
Duc Hoa% 7% »

TRINTASEREE BRI FE
Pergas ([FREIRMMERR]) M3
2EMBRRFE:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights

Name of subsidiary establishment held by NCI
FiERESRAZHTEES
Bt B A B) & 18 G Jo v v ik R RHELL B
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Bau Shan Taiwan 40% 40%
g1 =)
Bao Son Life Vietnam 20% 20%
B4 Ry
Zhongke Zhenhui PRC 49% 49%
RRIERE ey

Summarised consolidated financial information in
respect of Bau Shan and its subsidiaries (“Bau Shan
Group”), Bao Son Life and its subsidiary (“Bao
Son Life Group”) and Zhongke Zhenhui and its
subsidiary (“Zhongke Zhenhui Group”) that has
material NCI is set out below. The summarised
consolidated financial information below represents
amounts before intra-company eliminations.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39. IBAE (&)

(c)  (Continued) () (%)
2022 2021
k- Sonfent- 3 -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETR
Bao Son Zhongke Bao Son Zhongke
Bau Shan Life Zhenhui  Bau Shan Life Zhenhui
Group Group Group Group Group Group
BUSE ZL4s5E +HBERE ZLEE ZLE6SE TREEEE
Financial information of GAMBRARN
consolidated statement of MER
financial position
Current assets MHEE 170,158 14,728 31,402 165,840 14,061 5,276
Non-current assets ERHEE 30,070 174 - 33070 59 349
Current liabilities mERE (207,202) (48,318) (110) (212,056 (46,038) (389)
Non-current liabilities FrRBEE (4,135) (456) = (4,813) (353) =
Non-controlling interests RS - - (15,229) - - -
(11,109) (33,872) 16,063 (17,959) (32,271) 5,236
(Deficityequity attributable to ownersiA T A LI AL AR
of the company, attributable to: ~ AJE(5 (54t /#E%
— owners of the Company ~ARREBA (6,665) (27,098) 366 (10,775) (25,817) 656
- NCI — RS (4,444) (6,774) 15,697 (7,184) (6,454) 4,580
(11,109) (33,872) 16,063 (17,959) (32,271) 5,236
Financial information of GABLREMEE
consolidated statement of KERMMBEER
profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
Revenue W 1,531 692 - 1,450 228 -
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable A7 AR AE(EEE
t0 owners of the company wil/ (BB) 10,156 (450) (573) (16,335 (745) 65
Profit/(loss) for the year ATALEEARR
attributable to owners of the BREANEEER
company, attributable to: wfl/ (BR):
— owners of the Company YN %ﬁ A 6,094 (360) (292 (9,801) (596) 33
-NCI — RS 4,062 (90) (281) (6,534) (149) 32
10,156 (450) (573)  (16,335) (745) 65
Total comprehensive income/ AYNGIE N
(expense) attributable to W&/ ()88
owners of the company 6,850 (1,601) (573) (8,620) (745) 65
Total comprehensive income/ ATALEEARR
(expense) attributable to owners ~ HAAEEZE
of the company, attributable to: ~ JR& /(B %) &5
— owners of the Company ~AREERA 4,110 (1,281) (292 (5172 (596) 33
-NCI e ERiEs 2,740 (320) (281) (3,448) (149) 32
6,850 (1,601) (573) (8,620) (745) 65
Financial information of GARERERN
consolidated statement of MER
cash flows
Net cash (outflows)inflows mEEHRL (i),
from operating activities MAFE (580) 68 (964) (4,570) - (329)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) REEBHELAN/
from investing activities () F8 1,312 - (21,022) 559 - (3,641)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows BEEHRS (FL)/
from financing activities MAHE (1,176) (66) 26,252 (1,264) (64) 4,035
FEEGEEERAT —ZT-—FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
40. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 40. g%}%"‘lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%i&

41.

SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group disposed of 48% of equity interest of Zhongke
Zhenhui to Nanyue CB at nil consideration. Nanyue CB
contributed RMB4,800,000 to Zhongke Zhenhui, and the
equity interest of Zhongke Zhenhui attributable to the
Company reduced from 99% to 51% thereafter.

An amount of approximately RMB361,000 (being the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
liabilities of Zhongke Zhenhui) has been transferred from
non-controlling interests, and credited to “other reserve”.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 2 July 2021, the Group disposed of its entire 51%
equity interest in Zhongke Kangyuan (Guangzhou)
Biotechnology Company Limited* (“Zhongke Kangyuan”)
to the non-controlling shareholder of Zhongke Kangyuan
at a consideration of approximately RMB833,000.
Zhongke Kangyuan is inactive during the year.

The aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities
attributable to Zhongke Kangyuan on the date of
disposal were as follows:

41.

HE_22_—F+_-_A=+—81Lt
FE AEBUSRERAEBRREN
ERRIREZA8% R - R KB [
BlZE)x & AR ®4,800,0007T ' Utk
BARBEMEPREZREHII%
[£ZE51% o

—F4EHARE361,0007T (BIE
FREESZEERAEMNLD)E B
JEIEp s R B WEF A [H Ath 4
&l e

HE—EHEBLE

RZEZ—FtHAZH XA Tru?
RERIET (EMN)EMEIEFRA
(TR RLEIT]) By FEHE Hxﬂx%ﬁ:.,\
RARIEITHZI51%EE REA
#) AN R833,0007T ° F BHEE T N F
AN ZE TS VE B o

REEER HRETEEEEKE
BrazgEm T :

RMB'000
AREETFIT
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE:

Property, plant and equipment L E R &L 36
Other receivables H b & W 518 39
Cash and cash equivalents e NREEEY 1,740
Other payables H {th B4 5R0E (121)
1,694
Less: non-controlling interests R IEE R (830)
864

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE B AR ZEIE:
Consideration received B2 WA (E 833
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE (864)
(31)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELECHESREIFE:
Cash consideration received BUIRENR(E 833
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W EEZRENIREEEBY (1,740)
(907)

*  For identification purpose only

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

41. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDAIRY 41. HE—RMHEBAZ (&)
(Continued)

42.

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended
31 December 2021 did not contribute significantly to the
results and cash flows of the Group during the period
prior to the disposal.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution of the shareholders

of the Company dated 21 April 2021,

a share option

scheme (“2021 Share Option Scheme”) was approved
and adopted. The major terms of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme are summaries as follows:

(a)

The purpose of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel,
to provide additional incentive to eligible
participants and to promote the success of the
business of the Group.

The eligible participants include any director,
employee, advisor, consultant, supplier, agent,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of
the Company or any subsidiary of the Company,
who, in the absolute discretion of the board of
the directors of the Company, has contributed or
may contribute to the Group so as to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

The exercise price of a share option under the 2021
Share Option Scheme shall be determined at the
absolute discretion of the board of directors of the
Company but in any event will not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of
the particular option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
business days immediately preceding the offer
date of that particular option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share on the offer date of the particular
option.

42.

BE_ZT_—F+_HA=+—HIF
B HE 2B A TR & A H A
%EZﬁ#ﬁ&ﬁ&mMéjﬁ@itaﬁ

UEREEHEHRGAERZ
X5

BREARARRR-_ZT-_—FM0OA
T -HOEBERER —EBRE
AE(—E-—FEREFEIE
Bt ENMRS e — T — —FRERER
M EBGRRBALLT -

() ZE-_—FHEKREFEZEN
DRReI RBEEHHEBAL
REBRSEERHEEINEE
REBHAREBREBLZKY -

by ARAFEFS2RBBIAR
EER2EE (BRARAX
RABERMBRR 2 EME
= EE -EBEE -FHAA HE
BRE-FEF AEBHEA
LEEBHIERAEEIEY
BRATREFL R NS
REBMEH 2K -

(0 =T —FBEREFIHETE
BREZITEERARRAEER
BRBEE - HEERmOMWNILE
ERATESE: (INBEBE
BRENZHRR(BAERER
BB RBEXMERERER
ERREB AR TE : (i)
%%%E%%%W%%E%m
R EEEE ¥ B RO R
iﬁﬁgﬁi@mmﬁﬂ%m
B: RO EEBRER
HWEHMEE-

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. LUBHEZERMAEBEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue,
unless the grant of options, beyond the limit of
10% but not exceeding 30% of the shares in issue,
is specifically approved by the shareholders of the
Company in an annual general meeting.

Unless approved by the Company's shareholders,
the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted pursuant to the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue.

An offer shall be made to a eligible participant in
writing in such form as the Company's directors
may from time to time determine and shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant
concerned for a period of 10 days from the date
upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the adoption date of the 2021 Share
Option Scheme or the termination of the 2021
Share Option Scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by the eligible participant to
whom the offer is made when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed
by the eligible participant, together with a non-
refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant
thereof is received by the Company within such
time as may be specified in the offer (which shall
not be later than 10 days from, and inclusive of,
the date of the offer), or within such time as may
be determined by the board of directors of the
Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9)

An option may be exercised at any time during
the period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors of the Company to each grantee
at the time of making an offer for the grant of
an option, but in any event no later than 10 years
from the date of offer.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the circumstances by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of shares in respect of
which it is so exercised. Each such notice must be
accompanied by a remittance for the full amount
of the subscription price for shares in respect of
which the notice is given.

The terms and conditions of the options granted
are as follows:

Number of
shares issuable
under options

& B 1% R M 5

—E- &+ A=+—BItEE

R2.UBREEEROHAERZ
X5 (%)

(9)

BREIRARBDEETSAER
B AR B A E B ORE )
A & AR A 18 TE B B O BE B
TE-HE—DBERTAEER
EHHHEFT105F -

ARANBARAARAZELER
BARERT2MREDTE
FERHE - %GB ANZARE B R A
TR UL 1T R Re 7T R AR AR P Y
REBROHBE -SBRBMNEA
RETER £EA/FLNEAN
RS R BERNDRBEE-

B B AR 2 5K R R
T

Contractual life of

granted Exercisable period options
bgidid 1
S RTRIHE T8 BRESHEN
Options granted in 2022:
REFZZFRAZBRE:
Options granted to directors:
RYEEzBRE:
-on 19 May 2022 7,424,000 19 May 2022 to 18 May 2032 10 years
-RZZ-—FRA+NH “ZECCERATABREIZEEZFRATNE 10F
Options granted to an employee:
RY—RES2BRE:
-on 19 May 2022 3,700,000 19 May 2022 to 18 May 2032 10 years
-RZZE-—ERA+AHA “EZZFRATNREZZ=_FRATNR  10F
Options granted to
business partners:
RYEBRIERH 2 BIRE:
-on 19 May 2022 14,832,000 19 May 2022 to 18 May 2032 10 years
-RZZ-—FRA+AH “E-FRATNREZZ=_$RATAR  10F
Total share options 25,956,000

BREEH

The method of settlement for the options granted
is by equity. The closing price of the Company’s
shares on 19 May 2022, the date on which the
options were granted, was HK$0.137.

REZEREDRAERSEE
FR-AARBRMOHR T ==
FARA+NB (BN #EER
W2 BH) AT 2 W & &0.137

e a0

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE =T - —F+-_A=+—HILFE
42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. uﬂﬂE.. HEhBAERZ

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) X5 (4)
()  The particulars of outstanding options at the end () RI|EHRZERITEERE
of the reporting period as follows: BT
2022 2021
—E-HF —E-—F
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average  shares issuable average shares issuable
exercise under options exercise under options
price granted price granted
BiRHZ AREZ
R fE ki
IHEEL 31T 19 A 81T
TR B E 18 B in 5 B
Outstanding at ~ FHIHRITE N/A = N/A =
the beginning TiER TiE A
of the year
Granted during  FREHEH HK$0.137 25,956,000 N/A =
the year 0.137# 7T NEA
Outstanding at  FAHARITE HK$0.137 25,956,000 N/A =
the end 0.137& 7T NEA
of the year
Exercisable at FERATIIE  HK$0.137 25,956,000 N/A -
the end 0.137#& 7T TE A
of the year

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. UIBHEEZERMKABEHZ
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()

4R B

(Continued)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of shares

3‘55 (n‘ﬁ)
G &)

R & B R 2 1 K & i B i R
TTEBRERRLIT :

issuable under Exercise
31 December 2022 options granted  Vesting period Exercisable period price
MRz BRE

—®--%#+-BA=+-H ARTRHEE HEH T T
Options granted to directors:
RYIEF2BRE:

-on 19 May 2022 7,424,000  N/A 19 May 2022 to 18 May 2032 HK$0.137

-RZF-=FHATNA TER “Z--FRARTNAE-Z=-FRA+/\H 0.137#%7T
Options granted to an employee:
RY—REEZBRE:

-on 19 May 2022 3,700,000 N/A 19 May 2022 to 18 May 2032 HK$0.137

-RZE-__FAA+ANA TiEH “E__FRAATNRE-Z=_FAA+/\R 0.1378 T
Options granted to

business partners:
RTEBEEBH 2 EIRE:

-on 19 May 2022 14,832,000 N/A 19 May 2022 to 18 May 2032 HK$0.137

-RZZE-=§RA+AA TER “Z_—FREATNREZZ=_FHA+/\R 0.137% 7T
Total share options outstanding 25,956,000
W AR ATIE B AR A B

—

The share options outstanding at 31 December RZE_—_F+=ZH=+—8H

2022 had exercise price of HK$0.137 (2021: N/A)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 9.38 years (2021: N/A).

The options granted on 19 May 2022 shall
expire ten years from the date of grant. As at 31
December 2022, 25,956,000 options (2021: N/A)
were exercisable at any time during a period of 10
years from the date of grant.

MARTEZEREZTEES
01378 L (2= —F: 7@
B) mEFHFGELHFR

B9.38F (—&F —

R) e

—F: @

HhER—_ZT-——®F 7 AA+1H

REzEREERLBH+F
BEm- R_ZET_-_—_F+_H
=+ —H " 25,956,00017 B i&
B(ZE-_—F:F@EA)IJR
B 10FEE A 2 EM
B TTE

TEEGEBARARN —FE-_FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

42. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 42. LUBHEZERMAEBEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k)

X5 (&)

Fair value of share options and (k) BREZAFERER
assumptions
The fair value of services received for share options AEERERLBREER
granted is measured by reference to the fair value Rz RFEDZZEERER
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair 2 AFEFE BREBRE
value of the share options granted is measured ZEETAFEERZEAEXG
based on the Polynomial Model. The contractual EBEREZENFHARIE
life of the share option is used as an input into this Nz —HEAZH-

model.

On the grant date

Fair value of share options ARt = B HE AR E 2
at measurement date granted to: NFE
— directors —E= HK$0.07617

0.076178 7T

— employee —&EE HK$0.06424
0.064247 7T

— business partners — BB HK$0.09594
0.095947% 7T

Share price % B HK$0.137
0.1377% 7T

Exercise price IfEE HK$0.137
0.137%8 7T

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted TEER IR (AZ AR 59.96%
average volatility used in the modelling R AEAR
under the Polynomial Model) hNiEF R iR )

Option life (expressed as weighted average RS (AZER 10 years
life used in the modelling under B0 R A A Nt 104F
the Polynomial Model) I EH)

Expected dividends yield T HA AR B e R 0%

Risk-free interest rate [ Bz 1) & 2.79%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
yield are based on historical dividends. Changes in
the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB1,900,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil) in relation to share options
granted by the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. A AT MBHRRAE
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—F'=-= —E—-——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
s AREFTT ARETFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries NGRS 39 12,357 13,966
Intangible assets BV EE 2 2
12,359 13,968
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H th i U 5R I8 74,193 118,530
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 4,572 9,006
78,765 127,536
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables H b & S ZUR 40,656 | | 43,496
40,656 43,496
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREBEE 38,109 84,040
NET ASSETS FEE 50,468 98,008
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves & 32(a) (18,750) 28,790
TOTAL EQUITY IR 4REE 50,468 98,008
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

S R fh 3t

44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. &
ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies,

management has made the following

judgement:

()

Consolidation of an entity in which
the Group does not hold any equity
interests

The Group conducts a portion of the
business through HLV Duc Hoa in Vietnam
due to regulatory restrictions on the foreign
ownership. The Group does not have any
equity interest in HLV Duc Hoa. The directors
of the Company assessed whether or not
the Group has control over HLV Duc Hoa by
assessing whether it has power over HLV Duc
Hoa, has the rights to variable returns from
its involvement with HLV Duc Hoa and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over HLV Duc Hoa. After assessment,
the directors of the Company concluded that
the Group has control over HLV Duc Hoa
as a result of the contractual arrangements
and accordingly the financial position and
the operating results of HLV Duc Hoa are
included in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements throughout the years presented.
Nevertheless, the contractual arrangements
may not be as effective as direct legal
ownership in providing the Group with direct
control over HLV Duc Hoa and uncertainties
presented by the Vietnam legal system could
impede the Group’s beneficiary rights of
the results, assets and liabilities of HLV Duc
Hoa. The directors of the Company, based
on the advice of its legal counsel, consider
that the contractual arrangements with
HLV Duc Hoa and their equity shareholders
are in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in Vietnam and are legally
enforceable. Changes in market conditions
or interpretation of the Vietnam law and
regulations in future may have a material
impact on the assessment of control over HLV
Duc Hoa.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =
44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. 5T

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, interests in
associates, goodwill and deposits)

The Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or CGU
and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Provision of ECLs for trade
receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for the trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with credit-impaired are assessed for ECLs
individually.

—E-_—F+_A=Z1+—HILFE
EatHIET R 45 (48)

(b) fAEFTHBARZEZEEZRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
44, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. &

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(iif) Net realisable value of inventories
and development and formation
costs of burial plots
Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated cost of completion
and estimated cost to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value based on assessment of the realisability
of the development and formation costs of
burial plots which takes into account costs
to completion based on management’s
experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. If there is an
increase in cost to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will
decrease which may result in writing down
development and formation costs of burial
plots to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value
of development and formation costs of burial
plots is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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44, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. 37

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H =

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv) Depreciation and amortisation

(v)

(vi)

The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and
amortisation charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
assets of similar nature and functions and
taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation and amortisation
expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject
to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
current tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Provision on funeral services deeds
The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin
to the estimated cost of delivering funeral
services in future, after taking into account
of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

—E-_—F+_A=Z1+—HILFE
EatHIET R 45 (48)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T -_=_F+=-_A=+—HLFE
44, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. &

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Provision on funeral services deeds
(Continued)

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for
each funeral service deed performed, the
current market conditions and the price of
deeds from sub-contractors. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period to estimate if the receipts
in advance for funeral service deeds can
cover the estimated future costs of delivering
funeral services and determine the need
of making a provision in the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair values of freehold land and
buildings held for own use and
investment properties

The freehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties of the Group
were revalued at each reporting date during
the year based on the appraised market
value provided by independent qualified
professional valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information
from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

44. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 44. St ¥ R &t (8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) fAEFTHBARZEZEEZRR

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued) (#)

(viii) Estimation of incremental borrowing viii) 15 & 12 8 (& & F &
rate (“IBR”) (/_fm;-e EEFIZFE])
The Group cannot readily determine the REBREL S@EMA

interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore,
it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+_-A=+—
45. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 45.

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 17 (including the October 1 January 2023
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17),
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS To be determined
28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease 1 January 2024
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification 1 January 2023
of Liabilities as Current or Non-
Current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 1 January 2023
Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of 1 January 2023
Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax 1 January 2023

related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction
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45,

46.

4R B

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HiZE T -—F+_-_A=

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, there has been no significant event occurred
after the end of the reporting period.
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Five Years Financial Summary

hF 815 E P&

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the ZAEENRBEREUBREEZEE LE
Group for the last five financial years is set out as follows: kEENREERIMT :

Results E4

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“®B--E —F-F —E-EF —E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARBTR

Revenue Wz 77,969 72,864 68,340 66,610 62,667
Gross profit = 39,800 37,977 29,167 32,042 27,889
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHEA (FE) 626 (17,675) (1,942) (4,164) (8,523)
Loss attributable to RNAREE NG
owners of the Company &8 (847) (9,872) (2,974) (3,804) (8,352)
Basic loss per share BREXERE
(RMB cents) (ARED) (0.11) (1.33) (0.40) (0.51) (1.12)
Assets and liabilities EERAE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

“g--f T ZE-TF ZT-NF ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRHE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Non-current assets FERBEE 63,711 70,880 70,393 76,569 43,072
Current assets MENE EE 221,077 192,974 207,221 216,588 193,481
Current liabilities mEBEE 128,103 130,177 130,732 137,010 125,510
Non-current liabilities FERDEE 25,868 28,089 35,156 38,498 8,234
Net assets BEFE 130,817 105,588 111,726 117,649 102,809
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